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CECBANKSA 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 3 1 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in thousand RON unless otherwise stated) 

Interest income caJculated using the effective interest 
method 
Interest expense 
Net i nteres t income 

Net impairment loss on loans and advances to customers 
Net interest income aft.er impairment loss on loans 
and advances Lo custome rs 

Commission income 
Commission expense 
Net comnlission income 

Net gain from trading in foreign currencies 
Net gain/Ooss) from financia l derivatives 
Net loss from financial assets mandatorily measured at fair 
value through profit or loss 
Net gain from tlte sale of financial assets measured at fair 
vaJue through other comprehensive income 
Net gain/(loss) from foreign exchange differences 
Other operating income 
Operating income 

Staff costs 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 

Net loss from impainnent of debt instruments 
Other operating expenses 
Operating expenses 

Profit be fore tax 

Income tax expense 

Ne t Profit for the year 

Note 

5 

5 

6 

6 

2 020 

1,533,270 

(429,366) 

l,.lQ3,..9-QA 

(291,361) 

8.12"~ 

300,080 

(33,063) 

--2.67,017 

38,540 

(93) 

(7,996) 

63,498 

(3,068) 

7 25,778 

4,l9~ 

S (469,761) 
19, 20, 21, 22 (71,751) 

(1,822) 

9 (263,361) 

_ (806_,!)95) 

11 

337,700 

The accompanying notes frum pages 9 to 135 form an integml p.irt of these financial iitatements. 

Page I of 135 

2019 

1,367,749 

(243,163) 

1,124~.£86 

(158,487) 

966 os9 

281,838 

(29,856) 

251.,9.82 

37,151 
(212) 

(464,687) 

(67,166) 

(322) 

(288,864) 

(82.l~ 

379,585 

This version of Lhc financial statements is a free lrunslatfon from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. AU possible 
care has been taken lo ensure thal Lhc Lranslation is an accurate representation of the original. I lowe\·cr, in all matters of 
interpretation o[ information, \iew~ or opinions, the Migioal language version of our report takes precedence over this translation. 



CECBANKSA 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts arc in thousand RON unless otherwise stated) 

Note 2020 2019 

Other comprehensive income 
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or 
loss: 
Change in the fair value of financial assets measured through 
other items of corn prehensive income, net of tax 240,862 58,272 
Net gain from transactions with financial assets measured 
through other items of comprehensive income, transferred 
to profit or loss upon disposal, net of tax (53,338) (305) 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit 01· loss: 

Net gain from revaluation ofland and buildings 34 87 7 
Prior year corrections 1,879 ~ 

Other compre hensive income 1-8.9.4.9.0 ~ 

Total comprehensiv income for the year 527,190 43.z,810 

The financial stateme1 \Vere signed on b ehalf of the Bank by: 

Bogdan Co w•<U ... l.U '-. 

General Ma tive Committee 
$tefan Silviu Fota 

Director, Accounting Division 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of Lhese financial statements. 

P,i,e 2 of 135 
This version of U1e financiaJ s tntcment~ is a free trnnslaticm from the origina1, which was prepu.rc<l in Romanian. All possible 

care has been taken to ensure that the translation is un accurate representation of the original. Llowcver, in all matters of 
interpretation of information. Yicv,s ()r opinions, the original language version of our report takes preccdcnec over this translation. 



CECBANKSA 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounls are in thousand RON unless otherwise stated) 

Note 31 December 2020 31 December 2019 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents at central banks 
Derivative financial assets 
Loans and advances to banks 
Loans and advances to customers 
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value through 
profit or loss 
Financial assets measured a t fair vaJ ue ilirough other 
comprehensive income 
Financial assets measured a t amortized cost 
Current tax assets 
Property and equipment 
Intangible assets 
Investment property 
Right-of-use assets 
OtJ1e r financial assets 
Other assets 
Total assets 

Liabilities 
Derivative financial Liabilities 
Deposits from banks 
Deposits from customers 
Borrowings from banks and other financial 
institutions 
Cunent income tax liability 
Deferred tax liabilities 
Lease liabilities 
Provisions 
Other financial liabilities 
Other liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Equity 
Share capital 
Revaluation reserve for property and equipment 
Reserves for financial assets at fair value measured 
through other items of comprehensive income 
Other reserves 
Retained earnings 
Total equity 

Total liabilities and equi 

The financial statements wet 

12 
13 
14 
17 

18 

15 

L6 

19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 

.L3 
25 
26 

29 
30 
28 
32 
31 

33 
34 

35 

4,757,396 
16 

383,799 
21,924,072 

19,430 

11,075,914 

2,267,578 

572,680 
27,969 
89,453 
84,936 
22,227 
24.805 

41~~ 

6 
1,072,401 

34,833,093 

565,380 

546 
73,876 
86,874 
28,827 
36,329 
66,896 

3.6~764.228 

2,499,746 
458,554 

219,568 

248,553 
l.059,626 

~.,A~ 

4,041,653 
6 

378,107 
19,903,286 

5,625,182 

2,097,416 
8,140 

577,837 
20,325 
66,132 
72,658 
44,765 
u..8..85 

3b~2 

8 
235,405 

27,985,149 

429,335 

45,332 
74,213 
19,193 
31,937 
~ 

28-,_894,51,3 

2,499,746 
460,845 

48,660 

227,739 
721,889 

3,.958.879 

Bogdan Constantii1 Neac;;p 
General Manager - Presid, :o.j: J.:R'f.PW!ie ~ Director, Accounting Division 

/. 
The accompanying notes frnm pa·,.""""~''·" oflllcsc financia l s tatements. 

Pa •e 3 ol' 135 
This version of the fi nancial state ~-~ the original, which was prepnrcd in Romanian. All possible 

care has been taken to ensure that the · e representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views ur opinions, the original lt111gw.1gc \'ersion of our repor1 take~ precedence over tJ1is Lranslalion. 



CECBANKSA 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in thousand RON unless otherwise stated) 

Share 
Note canital 

Balance as at 1 January 2020 2,499,746 
Comprehensive income: 
Net Profit for the year -
Other comprehensive income: 
Gain from change in the fair value of financial assets 
measured through other comprehensive income, net -
of deferred tax 
Increase in revaluation reserve, net of deferred tax 34 -
Retained earnings from corrections ---
Total comprehensive income 
Other contributions and distributions: 
Revaluation reserve representing realised surplus, 
net of deferred tax /' 34 

Legal ,·eserve ~'~ 
Total oth:Ji;~buti ~ distributions 
Balance 31 . . ber o fu499,:.Z4D. 

OJ 
)>. 

~ 

The accompanyi1 

Pa_gc 4 of 135 
:s Trorn pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of lhcsc financial statements. 

Revaluation 
reserve_for 

property 
and 

c~uipment 

460,845 

-

87 
---

87 

(2,378) 

(2,3:,z8) 

--458,554 

Revaluation reserve 
for financial assets at 

fair value measured 
through other Other Retained 

com,nrehensivc income reserves earnings Total 
48,660 227,739 721,889 3,958,879 

- 337,700 337,700 

170,908 - 16,616 187,524 

87 
- - ---1..8.19. ---1..8.19. -- --

170,908 356,195 527,190 

- 2,378 

(22) - (22) 

20,836 (20,836) 

- 20,814 (18,458) (22) 

219,568 24S,5s3 1 059..626 

~tefan Silviu Fota 

This version of the financial statement'> is a free translation (rom Lhc original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate 
representation of lbc original. However, in all matters of intcrprclalion of information, \iews or opinions, lbc original language version of our report takes precedence over this translation. 



CECBANKSA 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in thousand RON unless otherwis e stated) 

Revaluation 
reserve for 

property 
Share and 

Revaluation reserve 
for financial assets at 

fair value measured 
through other Other Retained 

Note ~apital 

1,559,746 

equipment comprehensive income reserves earnings Total 

2,581,070 Balance as at 1 January 2019 

Comprehensive income: 
Net Profit for the year 
Other comprehensive income: 
Gain from change in the fair value of financial assets 

measured through other comprehensive income, net 
of deferred tax 
lncrease in revaluation rcscrYe, net of deferred tax 
Retained eainings from corrections 
Total comprehensive income 
Other contributions and distributions: 
Revaluation reserve representing realised surplus, 
net of deferred tax 

Decrease i11 other reserves - sale ofland 
Legal reserve 
Sh: -----.-:::--

T i 1~ ons and distributions 

J 
Ga 

,er2019 

4Committec 

34 

34 

33 940,000 

.94D-,OO.O 

2.499,746 

Thcai 

Page: 
µ:if~ page.~ 9 to 135 fonn an integrol part of these finoncial statements. 

462,335 

7 

7 

(1,497) 

M9Z.) 

A60.i.EL45 

(9,307) 

57,967 

57,967 

48,660 

203,791 364,505 

(1) 

379,585 

----251 
379,836 

1,497 

23,949 (23,949) 

23,948 

227,739 

(22.452) 

12.1.c.~ 8s1 

379,585 

57,967 

7 
251 

437,810 

(1) 

940,000 

939,999 
3....958.,8-29 

1?tefan Silviu Fata 

Director, Ac1 

This version otthe- financial statements is o free translation from lhe original, which was prepared in Romanion. All possible care has been taken to ensure that the translatiot is-an accurate 
rcprcscntaticm of the original. Howe,·er, in all mutters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the m;ginal language Yersion of our report takes precedence m·er this ans lation. 



CECBANKSA 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES lN CASH FLOW 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in thousand RON unless otherwise stated) 

Profit before tax 
Adjustments for non-monetary items: 
Expected losses on financial instruments 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Net loss from financial derivates 

Gain on disposal of fixed assets 

Income from other operations 

Net gain on financial assets measured at fair value 

measured through other comprehensive income 

Net loss fro m financial assets mandatorily 

measured al fair value through profil or loss 

Gain from foreign exchange differences 

Income/ (Expense) from adjustments for expected 

losses regarding other assets 

Dividends income 

Interest expense 

Interest income 

Other adjustments 

(Incrcase)/decrease in operating assets: 
Increase in loans and advances to customers 

Decrease in other assets 

Increasc/(decrease) in operating liabilities: 
Jncreasc/(dccrease) in deposits from banks 

Increase in deposits from customers 

Decrease/{increase) in other liabilities 

Net cash used in operating activities before 
interest and tax 

Interest received from loans and advances 

to customers 

Interest paid for deposits from customers 

and banks 

Payments for leases of low-value assets 

Recoveries from assigned credits and from 

previously written-off loans 

Income tax paid 

11 

LO 

19, 20, 21,22 

9 
7 

5 

5 

10 

2020 

291,361 

71,751 

93 
{3,980) 

(1,072) 

(63,498) 

7,996 
(22,522) 

(335) 

(10,263) 

429,366 

(1,533,270) 

(4,572) 

(449,421] 

(2,453,798) 

15,763 

809,231 

6,799,509 

6,979 

4,728,263 

1,181,744 

(352,094) 

{2,724) 

117,446 

(46,919) 

The accomp,mying note.~ from page:-; 9 to 135 form an inteiroJ part ofU1esc financial statements. 

Pa 'l' 6 of 135 

2019 

451,988 

158,487 
67,166 

212 

(1,420) 

(1,699) 

(363) 

l,397 

(2,789) 

243,163 

(1,367,749) 

.4A9A 

(2,015,731) 

4,256 

(502,897) 

2,625,934 

31,164 

{376,265) 

1,185,601 

(169,021) 

(2,653) 

129,436 

.L!23,355) 

This version of the financial statements is a free tn:mslation from the <>riginal, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representnllon of the original. However, in :ill manors of 
interpretation of infom1alion, vkws ur opinions, lhc origimtl language vcrsi<Hl of our rcp(Ht takes precedence over I his 
lran~lntion. 



CEC BANI<SA 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CASH FLOW 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(AIJ amounts are in thousand RON unless otherwise s tated) 

Net cash used in o perating activities 

Investment activities: 
Proceeds from financial assets measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income 
Payments for the acquisition of financial assets 
measured at fair vaJue through other 
comprehens ive income 

Proceeds from investments in debt instruments 
measured at amortized cost 
Payments for investments in debt instrmuerrts 

measured at amortized cost 
Interest received from investing activities 
Cash payments for the acquisition of tangible and 
intangible assets and real estate investments 
Proceeds from the sale of tangible and intangible 

assets and real estate investments 
Dividends proceeds 
Net cash in investing activities 

Financing activities 
Share capital increase from cash contributions 
Payment of lease liability 
Repayment of loans from banks and other 
financial institutions 
Loan withdrawals from banks and other 
financial institutions 
Interest paid for loans from banks 
and other fi na ncia 1 institutions 
Net cash from financing activities 

Netincrease in and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents 
at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivale nts 
at the end of the year (i) 

15 

15 

16 

16 

27 

27 

2020 
5,625,716 

8,007,258 

(13,158,286) 

931,172 

(1,073,398) 

337,00 1 

(77,842) 

6,521 

~ 

(5.QJZ,319) 

(23,011) 

(106,762) 

243,470 

.(Qro} 

113,034 

721,440 

4:,,416,529 

The accompan)ing notes from page:, 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Pai!e 7 of 135 

2019 

643,743 

(188,222) 

244,501 

285,958 

(34,962) 

3,201 

i,1--8.9 

313.,26.5 

940,000 

(20,9,50) 

(118,140) 

5,333 

(1,032) 

805,211 

1,762.219 

Z..654-~ 10 

This \·ersion of the finandal ~tatcments is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the lr-.m5-lation i:- an accurate representation of the original. However, in .ill matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, Lhc origimil language version of our report takes 1>rcccdcncc over this 
Lranslation. 



CEC BANKSA 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CASH FLOW 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in thousand RON unless otherwise stated) 

(i) Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise: 
Cash on hand (Note 12) 

Cash in ATM's (Note 12) 

Cu1Tent accounts held at the National Bank of 

Romania (Note 12) 

Current accounts held at other banks (Note 14) 

Cash on hand and al banks 

Loans and advances to banks- maturity less than 

3 mo nths (Note 14) 

Cash and cash equivalents 

The :financial state 

Bogdan 
General •. H ..... ,H"--·•• 

572,896 472,032 

254,172 236,528 

3,930,328 3,333,093 

61,2]7 M..3ill 
4,8.18,61.3 4.J, 0,5,95,4 

319,356 310.575 

5,!.3Z,969 ~9 

~tefan Silviu Fota 
Director, Accounting Division 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these finandal statements. 

Pa e 8 of 135 
This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care bas been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurnte reprc~enlation of the oriR,imil. Ho,"cvcr, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 



CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

1 REPORTING ENTITY 

CEC Bank SA ("the Bank~) was established as a savings institution in. Romania in 1864. On 
1 October 1996 the Parliament of Romania approved Law no. 66 for the reorganisation of "Casa de 
Economii !;,i Consemnatiuni'' of Romania as a joint stock bank authorised by the NationaJ Bank of 

Romania to conduct banking activities, under the supervision of the National Bank of Romania. 

On 8 July 2005, the Ministry of Public Finance approved, by Order 979, the Statute of CEC Bank SA 
tnrough which the primary activity of the Bank is "other monetaty activities" and the primary field 
"monetary intermediation". The Bank also pe1forms other activities within the limits established by 

the licence issued by the NationaJ Bank of Romania such as: attracting deposits and other repayable 
funds, credit contracts, monetary transfer services, issuing and managing means of payment, issuing 

guarantees and credit commitments, transactions on its own account or on its customers account, 
intermediation on the interbank maxket, etc. 

Currently, CEC Bank S.A. provides services based on The Government Emergency Ordinance no. 99 

issued on 6 December 2006, regarding credit institutions and capital adequacy and the CEC Bank 
SA Statute, approved through the Order of the Ministry of Economy and Finance no. 425 from 14 

February 2008, witJ, the following amendments (Order of the Ministry of Economy and Finance no. 
1312/2008, Order of the Ministry of Economy and l~inance no. 2083/2008, Order of the Ministry of 

Economy and Finance no. 3264/2008). 

The Bank is a joint stock company owned 100% by the Romanian State, represented by the Min is try 
of Finance. 

The Bank operates through its Read Office located in Bucharest and through its network of 48 

cow1ty branches and simiJar units from Bucharest, 109 first rank urban agencies, 387 second rank 
urban agencies and 466 second rank rural agencies. 

Overall, as at 31 December 2020 there are: 962 agencies and 48 branches (31 December 2019: 974 
agencies, of which: w9 fist rank urban agencies, 387 second rank urban agencies, 478 second rank 
rural agencies and 48 county branches). 

CEC Bank SA has 5,616 employees as at 31 December 2020, 390 less than as at 31 December 2019. 

CEC Bank SA current registered office is located at 13, Calea Victoriei, Bucharest 3rd district, 
Romania. 

The accompanying notes from pascs 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Page 9 0£135 
This version of Lhe financial statements is a free translation from t.hc original, which was prcpnrecl in Romanian. All possihle 
care has been taken to ensure thal the translation is an accurate reprcsenlalion of Lhe origtnal. Howc\'er, in all matters of 
interpretation of infonnotion, \~ews or opinions, tho original langua)\c version of our report tukes precedence over this 
Lranslation. 



CEC BANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 1 DECEMBER 2020 

(AJl amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

1 REPORTING ENTITY (CONTINUED) 

Ac; at 31 Decem ber 2020, the Bank's Board of Directors includes the following people: 

1) Mirela Calugareanu - President; 

2) Valentin Mavrodin- Member; 

3) Bogdan Constantin Neac-5u - Member ; 

4 ) Mibaela Lucica Popa - Member ; 

5) Ciprian Badea - Member ; 

6) Mirela Sitoiu - Member: 

7) Mihai Gogancea Vata~oiu - Member. 

As at 31 December 2020, the Bank"s Executive Commjttce includes the following people: 

1) Bogdan Consta ntin Neac~u - General Manager - President of the Executive Committee; 

2) Mihaela Lucica Popa - Director - Firs t Vice President o f the Executive Committee; 

3) Mirela l ovu - Director- Vice President of the Executive Committee. 

The accompan)ing notes from page.s 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Page 10 of 135 
This ver:;ion of the financial statement:; is a free translation from the original,,, hich was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpret.it ion of information, views or opinions, lhe original language ,·crsion of our report takes prcccdcm•c m·cr this 
translation. 



CEC BANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(Al l amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

2 SUMMARY OF SlGNIFl CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with International FinanciaJ 

Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European Union ("JFRS"), transposed also by the Order of 

the National Bank of Romania 27 /2010. 

Accounting records are maintained in RON in accordance with Romanian accounting legislation and 

banking regulat ions issued by the National Bank of Roman ia ("NBR"). 

The Bank's financial statements have been prepared based on the going concern principle. 

a) Basis of m easurement 

The Bank's financial statements have been prepared on a fair value basis for derivative instruments, 

financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profi1 or loss and financial assets measured at fair 

value through other items of comprehensive income, except those for which fair value cannot be 
determined reliably. 

Other financial assets and liabilities and non-financiaJ assets and liabilities are carried at am01tised 
cost or revaluated amount (for land and buildings). 

b) Functional and presenta tion currency 

The financial statements ai:c prepared and presented in "RON", which is the Bank's functional and 

presentation cun-ency, rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated. 

c) Use of estimates andjudgments 

The preparation of financial statements in accoi-dance with IFRS requires management to make 

j udgments, estimates and assumptions that affect amounts recognized in the financial statements 

and repo1ted a mounts of assets and liabilities, in the next financial year. The estimates and related 

assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments about 

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual 
results may differ from estimated values. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions of 

accounting estimates are recognised in the pe1iod in which the estimate is revised, if the revision 

affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both 

current and future periods. 

The accompanying notes from pugl's 9 to 1:15 form an intc1;ral part of these finandul statements. 
Page u of 135 
This version of the financial stntcmcnts is a fret.' translt1tion from Lhc original. which wa~ prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation i~ an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of informt1lion, \'lCWli or opinions, th<.' original tangu.:igc \'Crsion of our report takes precedence O\·cr tl1is 
translation. 



CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

2 SUMMARY OF SlGNlFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Information related to the estimates used in the enforcement of accounting policies that have 
matei-ial effect on the financial statements, as well as estimates that involve a significan1 degree of 
uncertainty, are disclosed in Note 4. 

The significant accounting methods and policies sel out below have been applied consistently to all 

periods presented in these financial statements. 

The following new Standards, amendments to Standards and [nterpretations are not yet 
mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020, and have not been 
applied in preparing these financial statements. The Bank plans to adopt these pronouncements 
when they become effective. 

d) Standm·ds adopted by the European Union, which arc in force and have not 
been applied to the preparation of this set of financial statements 

Amendments to lFRS 16 Leases COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020. Early application is permitted, 
inc1uding in financial statements that were not authorized to he issued on 28 May 
2020) 

The amendments introduce an optional practical expedient thal simplifies how a lessee accounts for 
rent concessions that are a direct consequence of COVID-19. A lessee applying the practical solution 
is not required to assess whether the eligible lease concessions are lease modifications, and accounts 
them in accordance ·with other applicable guidelines. The resulting accounting will depend on the 
details of the rent concession. For example, if the concession takes the form of a one-off Lease 
discount, it will be accounted for as a variable lease payment and recognized in profit or loss. 

The practical expedient applies only if all of the following conditions arc met: 

• the revised consideration for the lease is substantially the same as, or less than, the 
consideration for tJ,e lease immediately preceding the change; 

• any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 
2021; and 

• there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease. 

The Bank does not expect the Amendments to have a material impact on its financial statements 
when initially applied. 

Tbe accompanyini notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these finuncial statements. 

Page 12 of 135 
This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original. which was prepared in Romanian. Al I possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translution is on accurate rcprescntution of the. orip;inal. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of informution, views or opinions, the original langua~e version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 



CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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2 SUMMARY OF SlGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

c) Amendments to existing standards issued by the IASB and adopted by the 
European Union but not yet in force on 31 December 2020 

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9 , IAS 39, IFRS 7, 
TFRS 4 and lFRS 16) 

The amendments address issues that migbt affect financial reporting as a result of the reform of an 
interest rate benchmark, including tbe effects of cbanges to contractual cash Oows or hedging 
relationships arising from the replacement of an interest rate benchmark witb an alternative 
benchmark rate. The amendments provide practical relief from certain requirements in IFRS 9, !AS 
39, lFRS 7, JFRS 4 and IFRS 16 relating to changes in the basis for determining contractual cash 
llows of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities and hedge accounting. 

The amendments will require an entity to account for a change in Lhe basis for determining the 
contractual cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability that is required by interest rate 
benchmark reform by updating the effective interest rate of Lhe financial asset or financial liability. 

The amendments will require the Bank to disclose additional information to enable users to 
understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on a company's financial instruments, 
including information about the entity's exposure to risks arising from interest rate benchmark 
reform and related risk management activities. 

The Bank plans to apply the amendments from 1 January 2021. Their application "vill not impact 
the amounts reported for 2020 or for prior periods. 

0 New Standards not yet adopted by the Ew·opean Union 

Amendments to IAS L Presentation of Financial Statements Classification of Liabilities 
as Current or Non-cm.Tent (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2023. Early application is permitted) 

The amendments clarify that the classification ofliabilities as cu rrent or non-current shaJl be based 

solely on the Entity's right to defer settlement at the end of the reporting period. The company's 

right to defer settlement for at least 12 months from the reporting date need not be unconditional 

but must have substance. The classification is not affected by management's intentions or 

expectations about whether and when the Entity will exercise its right. The amendments also clarify 
tbe situations that are considered to represent the settlement of a liability 

The Bank does not expect the Amendments to have a material impact on its financial statements 
when applied for the first time. 

The ac\:ompanying notes from pages 9 lo 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Ame ndment to IAS 16 Prope rty , Plant and Equipment Property, Plant and Equipment 
- Proceeds before Inte nded Use (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2022. Early application is permitted) 

The amendments to lAS 16 require that proceeds from selling items of property, plant and 

equipment that are brought lo the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of 

operating in the manner intended should be recognised in pro fit or loss account, together with the 

costs of producing those items and the entity should assess the cosl of those items which apply the 
measurement requireme nts in lAS 2. 

The Bank does not expect the Amend ments to have a material impact on its financial statements 

when applied fo r the firs t time. 

Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions , Contingent Lia bilities a nd Contingent Assets 
Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Effective for annual pe l'iods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2 0 22. Eru.-ly application is permitted) 

The amendments clarify that an entity must include all the costs that relate directly to the contract 

as the cost of fulfilling a contract when assessing whether a co11tract is onerous. Paragraph 68A 
clarifies costs of fulfilling a contract comprise both: incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and 

an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfiJJing contracts. 

The Bank does not expecl the Amendmen ts to have a material impact on its financial s tatemen ts 

when applied for the first time. 

Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle (Effectiv e for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 022. Early ap plication is permitted) 

Amendments to IFRS 9: Finan ciaJ Instruments 

The amendment clarifies that when assessing whether an exchange of debt instruments between an 
existing borrower and a lender takes place under substantially differe nt conditions, fees to be 
included in conjunct ion with the present value of cash flows according to th e new conditions include 
only fees paid or received between the bor rower and the lender, including fees paid or received by 
either the borrower or lender on the other's behalf. 

Amendment to Illustra tive examples accompan ying lFRS 16 Leases 

The amendment removes from the ilh1st rative example 13 that accompanies IFRS 16 the reference to 
the repayment made by the lessor lo the lessee for asset upgrades and the explanation of the lessee's 
accounting for such a repayment. 

The accompanying notes from page!-! 9 to 135 form an integral part <Jf these finunciul statements. 
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

The Bank does not expect the Amendments to have a material impact on its financial statements 
when applied for the first time. 

2.2 Foreign currency 

The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Bank 
operates. 

The functionaJ currency of the Bank is the national currency of Romania, Romanian LEU ("RON"). 

Foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the 

translation of moneta1.y assets and liabilities into RON at the official exchange rates at the end of the 
year are recognised in profit or loss (as "Net gains/(loss) from foreign exchange differences"). 
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency, including equity investments, are 
trans lated using the exchange rates at the date when tbe fair value was determined. 
Effects of exchange rate changes on non-monetaiy items measured at fair value in a foreign currency 
are recorded as pa.it of the fafr value gain or loss. 
The exchange rate of major foreign currencies was: 

Increase/ 
Currency 31 December 2020 31 December 2019 (decrease) 

(%) 

Euro (EUR) 1: RON 4.8694 1: RON 4.7793 1.89 
US Dollar (USD) 1: RON 3.9660 1: RON 4.2608 (6.92) 

2.3 Interest income and interest expenses 

Interest income and interest expenses for financial instruments arc recognized m the income 
statement using the effective interest rate method on an accrnal basis. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating tbe amortised cost of a financial asset or a 
financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. 

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or 
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a sho1ter period 
to the gross canying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the 
effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the 
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call options and other similar options) but does not 
consider futw-e impairment losses. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an intesiral part of these financial .statements. 
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The calculation includes all commission fees paid or received between parties to the contract that 

are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or 
discounts. 

Commission fees received by the Bank to originate loans at market interest rates are an integral part 

to the effective interest rate if it is probable that Lhe Bank will enter into a specific lending 

arrangement and does not expect to sell the resulting loan sho1tly after origination. 

When loans and other debt instruments become impaired, they are evaluated to the present value of 

expected cash inflows and interest income is thereafter recorded based on a net value following the 

present value reduction of the effective interest rate that was used to evaluate the impairment loss. 

AlJ other fees, commissions and otl1er income and expense items are generally recorded on an 

accrual basis by reference to completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the 
actual service provided as a proportion of the total services to be provided. 

The application of IFRS 9 shall be made in accordance with the model of calculation implemented 

whereby the incomes from commissions that is part of the effective interest rate is recognized 

staggered over the life of the loans and the stagger shall be made on the basis of the effective interest 

rate, except for commissions related to credit lines. or loans thal are not fully utilized (which do not 
have a repayment schedule) for which the Bank applies the su-aigbt-Ifoe depreciation method. 

Interest income and expense presented in the income statement include, but are not limited to: 
fnterest on loans and advances to customers; 

Interest on other financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost; and 

Interest on financial assets measured at fair value through other items of 
comprehensive income. 

2 .4 Commissions income and fees expenses 

Fees and commission income and expenses arise on financial services provided / received by the 

Bank and include: financial guarantees fees, commitment fees, card fees, cash management senrices, 

adviso1y services for investment and financial planning, asset management services, as well as 

insurance expense against credit risk for the loan and receivables po1tfolio. 

2 .5 Dividends 

Dividend in.come is recognized in income statement when the right to receive dividends payment is 
established. 

The accompanying notes from page;. 9 to L35 form an integral p..11'l of I hcsc financiul statements. 
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

For equity instruments for which the Bank has opted for initial recognition to classify them as 

financia l assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, dividends a re 

recognized in the profit or loss account, unless dividends clearly represent a return on part of the 

investment cost. 

Dividends are recognized only when: 

;... as the Bank's right to receive the dividend payment is established; 

,, as the economic benefits associated with the dividend are likely to be generated for the entity; 

and 
► the value ofthe dividend can be reliably assessed. 

2.6 Revenue from commercial contracts 

Ln accordance with IFRS 15 when (or while) an ex:ecution obligation is fulfilled, the Bank recognizes 
to revenue the value of the transaction price that is allocated to that execution obligation. 

2.7 Income tax expense 

r ncomc tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss or in equity if the income is related to the elements of equity. 

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted at 
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior periods. 

Income tax is equal with the value of payable/recoverable income tax considering the taxable profit/ 
fiscal loss over a period of time. 

Deferred tax is determined using the balance sheet method, based on the temporary differences that 

arise between the tax base for calculating the tax on assets and liabilities and their book value. 

Deferred tax is calculated using tax rates expected to be applied to temporary differences in tbe 

accounting carrying value of assets and liabilities, based on the effective legislation at the reporting 
date. 

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will 

be available against which the unused tax losses and credits can be utilised. 

Deferred tax assets are reduced to Lhe extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit 

will be realized. 

Tbc accompan)ing notes Crom pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN G POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

The tax rate used to calculate the current and deferred tax position at 3 1 December 2020 is 16% 

(2019: 16%). 

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all temporary differences between the tax base and the 
carrying amount of assets and liabilities a t the balance sheet date, and for unused tax credits and 
losses carried forward in the period lo the extent that it is probable that a future taxable profit, on 
whkh these temporary differences and unused tax credits and losses can be a ttributed. 

Curren t and deferred tax receivables a11d payables are offset when they a re related to the same tax 
entity, they are related to the same tax authority and when there is a legal right to offset. 

2.8 Financial assets and liabilities 

(i ) Classification 
The Bank classifies the financial assets into one of the foJlowing categori<'s: 
Financial assets measured at amortized cost 

• Deb t instruments including loans 

Hncm cial assets measured al fai1· value through profit or loss 
• Derivative financial instruments 
• Deb t instruments 

Financial assets measur-ed al fa ir ualue th ,·ough other items of comprehensive income 
• Equity instrnments designated to b e measured at fair va lue through other comprehens ive 

income 

• Debt instrnments 

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Bank classifies financial liabilities a l amortized cost, except for 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 
The Bank does not apply hedge accounting. 

Loans and debt ins trume nts 

In accordance with the classification c1iteria ofIFRS 9 to establish a classification ofloans and debt 
instruments, the Bank is considering the following criteria cumulatively: 

a) Analysis of the business model; 
b) Analysis of the contractua l cash flows characteristics ("SPPI test"). 

a) Analysis of the business model 

In accordance with IFRS 9, the business model is determined a l a level that reflects the way in which 
groups of financial assets are managed together. The business model does not depend on the 
management's intentions towards a particular individual instrument. 

The accompanying notes rrnm pages 9 to 135 form un integra l part of these rmanciaJ ~tawmcnts. 
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFlCANf ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

The business model refers to how the Bank manages its financial assets to generate cash flows. 

The types of business models, in accordance with l FRS 9 are: 

(i) Held to collect contractual cash.flows 

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect 
contractual cash flows. These financial assets are managed to obtain cash flows through the 
collection of contractual payments over the life of the instrument. Contractual cash flows represent 
exclusively principal and interest payments related to principal due, meaning they meet the SSPI 
(Solely Payments of Principal and interest) condition. 
A financial asset that is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect 
contractual cash flows is measured at amo1tized cost (if assets also meet the SPPI criterion on 
contractual cash flows). 

ln order to determine whether cash flows will be obtained by collecting the contractual cash flows of 
financial assets, the Bank analyzes the frequency, values and timing of sales in previous periods, the 
reasons for those sales and expel'tations of future sales activity. 

In accordance with IFRS 9, paragraph B4.1.3, a business model whose objective is to hold assets to 
collect contractual cash flows may be to hold financial assets for the collection of contractuaJ cash 
flows even when there ai-e or are expected to have sales of financial assets in the future. 

The following scenarios are considered by the Bank, in accordance with ffRS 9, consistent with a 
business model whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows: 

, The Bank sells financial assets when there is an increase in asset credit risk. In order to 
determine whether there has been an increase in the credit risk of the assets, the Bank shalJ 
analyze reasonable and justifiable information, including foreseeable information. 
Regardless of their frequency and value, sales due to an increase in asset credit risk are 
consistent as a busi11ess model whose objective is to hold financial assets to collect cash 
flows because the credit quality of financial assets is relevant to the Bank's ability to coUect 
contractual cash flows. [according to IFRS 9.B4.1.3A]. 

► Sales are uncommon (even if they have a significant value) or nn insignificant value both 
individuaUy and aggregated (even if they are frequent) LIFRS 9.84. t.3B]. 

► Sales are made on maturity of financial assets and sales receipts approximate the collection of 
remaining contractual cash flows (according to IFRS 9.B4.!. 1 B). 

(ii) Held to collect contractual cash.flows and sale 

In the business model whose objective is achieved by cash-flow collection and by the sale of financial 
assets, the key management s taff of the Bank took the decision that both the collection of contractual 
cash flows and the sale of financial assets are pa1t of the achievement of the business model goal. 

There are various goals that are consistent with this type of business model. For example, tl1e 
business model's objective may be to manage liquidity needs on a daily basis, maintain a certain 
portfolio yield level, or correlntc the duration of financial assets with the d II ration of the debt that 

The accompanying notes from pugeH 9 lo 1:~s form an integr,11 part of these finandal stutements. 
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

those assets fund. To achieve such an objective, the Bank will collect contractual cash flows but will 
also sell financial assets. [IFRS 9.84.1.4,A). 

Compared to a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets to collect contractual cash 
flows, this business model will normally involve a higher frequency and higher sales value. 

This is due to the fact that the sale of financiaJ assets is part of the business model's objective instead 
of being just related to this objective. 

However, there is no limit on the frequency or amount of sales that can occur in this business model. 
[TFRS 9.B4.1.4-B]. Thus, sales activities on a portfolio is a factor to consider, hut it itself does not 
dett>rmine the business model and sbouJd not be considered separ.:1tcly. 
The most important aspect is that the key person concludes that both the collection of contractual 
cash flows and the sale of financial assets are a component of lhc business model objective. 
A financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is met by both the collection of 
contractuaJ treasury flows and the sale of financial assets is measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive inc.ome. 

(iii) Other business models 

IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss if they are not 
held in a business model whose objective is to have assets to collect contractual cash flows or a 
business model whose objective is achieved both by co11ecting contractual cash flows and by selling 
financial assets. 
A business model that results in fair value measurement through the profit or loss account is one in 
which a bank manages its financial assets in order to realize cash tlows through the sale of assets. 
The Bank makes decisions based on the fair values of assets and manages assets to achieve those fair 
values. In this case, the Bank's objective will typically be to active sell and buy. [IFRS 9 B4.1.5]. 

A portfolio of financial assets that is managed and whose performance is measured on a fair value 
basis is neither held to collect contractual cash flows, nor to collect contractual cash flows and to sell 
financial assets. The Bank focuses primarily on fair value information and uses this infonnatim1 to 
assess asset pe1fonnance and make decisions. Additionally, a portfolio of financial assets that meet 
tJ1e definition of being held for trading is not held to collect contractual or held cash flows both to 
collect contractual cash flows and lo sell financial assets. For such portfolios, collecting cash flows is 
only re'lated to the business model objective. Consequently, such portfolios of financial assets should 
be measured at fair value through profit or loss. [IFRS 9.B4. l.5-6]. 

Bank's loan p ortfolio - Loans and cidvances to custom ers 

The Bank's objective for the loan portfolio is to generate 1oans to collect contractuaJ cash flows. 

The Bank's expectations regarding future loans sales are in line with previous practice, respectively 
the sale ofnon-perfonning loa ns on or offbaJance sheet, under favorable price conditions. 

The accompanying notes from pa~c.~ 9 to 135 form an integral part of these filloncial statements. 
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ln accordance with IFRS 9, paragraph B4.1.3, sales due to the increase in credit risk of assets are in 
line with a business model whose objective is to hol.d financial assets to collect contractual cash 
tlows. Considering t he fact that in the previous years, the Bank has made sales to maintain a lower 
level of non perform ing assets in its portfolio, according to the NBR's recommendations; sales are in 
line with the ownership model for collection. 

In adclition, the Bank does not manage the loan portfolio on a fair value basis or other performance 
indicators that may indicate that the business model is not in line with t he objective of balding for 
collection. 

Thus, based on t he above, the Bank's business model for the loan portfolio is "held to collect 
conll:actuaJ cash flows". 

Government securities portfolio of the Bank - Debt· securities measu,.ed atfafr value 
through othe,. comprehensive income and debt instruments measu,.ed at amortized cost. 

The Bank holds debt instruments represented by government securities issued by the Ministry of 
Public Finance of Romania. 
The Bank's governmen t securities portfolios are held for: 

1) collection of contractual cash flows; and 
2) collection of contractual cash flows and sale. 

1) Collection of contractual cash flows 

The cash tlows of a sub-port-folio of government securities are realized through the collection of 
contractual cash flows. 
Between 2014 and 2020, the Ban.k did nol record sales from this sub-portfolio of government 
securities, which were held w1til maturity. 
Thus, the bank's business model for the government securities portfolio is "held to collect 
contractual cash fio-ws". 

2) Collection of contractual cash flows and sale 

The Bank's objectives for a sub-portfolio of government securities are as follows: 
- ensuring the required liquiclity level of the Bank; 

ensuring the profitability of the Bank's investments; 
- improving the yield and maturily of the portfolio of government securities; 
- maintaining/ regaining of Lhe quality of primary dealer on the government securities market 

managed by NBR; 
- maintaining the capacity of market maker on the government securities market managed by 

NBR by the bank. 

The management has assessed that the sale is essential to achieve the objectives of the business 
model, as sales are expected to be perlormed to achieve the objectives mentioned above. 

The c1ccompan) ing notes from page.., 9 lo 135 form an integral part of these financial sLalements 
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Based on previous experience, the Bank has made sales to achieve its objectives, so it can be 
appreciated that sales are an integral part of managing the performance of these instruments; 
however, the Bank acquires the treasury instruments related to this portfolio, both to collect 
contractual cash flows and for sale. 

In addition, the Bank does not manage its treasury instruments in order to achieve cash flow mainly 
through asset sale. 
Tbus, based on the above, the Bank's business model for this treasury instrument portfolio is "held 
for collection and sale". 

b) Analysis of contractual cash flow characteristics ("SPPl test") 

The SPPl test is the analysis of the conb·actuaJ terms of the financial assets in order lo identify 
whether the cash 1lows represent exclusive payments of the principal and the interest on the 
principal due. 

The bank performs the analysis of the contractual clauses for the SPPI test at the level of the contract 
model/contract model and documents the result of the analysis by completing a questionnaire. 

Derivatives 

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Bank's derivative financial instmments are measured at fa.ir value 
through profit or loss. 

Equity instruments 

Equity instruments are normally measured at fair value through profit or loss. However, in 
accordance with IFRS 9.5.7.1 (b), 5.7.5, at initial recognition, the Bank may make an irrevocable 
instrumental choice to present in other comprehensive income the subsequent changes in the fair 
value of an investment in an equity instmment that is neither held for trading nor is it a contingent 
consideration recognized by a buyer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 "Business 
combinations" applies. In this sih1ation, gains and losses are measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income, without being recycled to the profit or loss account. 

Equity instruments from the Bank's portfolio are designated at fajr value through other 
comprehensive income. 

Starting with 2020, tJ1e Bank has corrected tbe classification of securities held in Visa Inc. from 
financial assets measured ,it fair value through other comprehensive income in financial assets 
mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss. 

The gains and losses from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through profit 
or loss arc included in the statement of income under" Net loss from financial assets mandatorily at 
fair value through profit or loss ''. 

The accompanying note:. from pages 9 to 135 form an integral pa1t of these financial statements. 
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(ii ) EvaJuation 

Initial evciluation 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured al initial recogmtJon at fa ir vaJuc plus or 
minus directly attributable trading costs in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities other 
than fair value through profit or loss. 
Trading costs are: 

(i) marginal costs that may be directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a 
financial instrument; 

(ii) an incremental cost is a cost that would not have been incurred if the transaction would 
not have happened; 

(iii) transaction costs include fees and commissions paid to agents (including employees 
acting as sales agents), advisers, brokers and dealers, regulatory agency fees and stock 
exchanges, as well as transfer and attribution fees; 

(iv) does not include debt premiums or discounts, financing costs o r internal administrative 
or holding costs. 

For financial assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs are 
amortized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. 
For accounting for debt instrnmenls, the Bank uses the accounting at the settlement date. 

Further evaluation 

After initial recognition, financial assets and liabilities are evaluated accordingly to the category of 
financial assets/liabilities they have been allocated. 

Fair ualue measurement 

Fair value is the price that would have been received to sell an asset or would have been paid to 
transfer a liability in a regulated transaction between market participants at the valuation date. The 
best evidence of fair value is the price on an active market. An active market is one in which asset or 
liability transactions take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide tariff information 
on a continuous basis. 

The fair value of financial instruments traded on an active market is measured as the product of the 
quoted price for the individual asset or lfability and the amount held by the entity. A portfolio of 
derivative financial instruments or other assets and liabilities that are not traded on a financial 
active market is measured at the fair value of a group of financiaJ assets and financial liabilities 
based on the piice they would have received to sell a long net position (e.g., an asset) for a particular 
exposure lo risk or would have paid to transfer a short net position (e.g., a liability) for a particular 
exposure to risk in an orderly transaction between the market participants at the valuation date. 

This is applicable to assets t11at are accounted for at fair value, in a recurrent manner, if the Bank: 
(a) manages tl1e group of financial assets and financial liabilities based on t11e e ntity's net 

exposure to a particular market risk (or risks) or credil risk of a particular counterparty, 
in accordance with the entity's documented risk management strategy or investment 
strategy; 

The accompanying note~ from pages 9 Lo 135 form an inte,e;raJ part of these financial .statements. 
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(b) provides information on this about the assets and liabilities group to the key management 
personnel of the en tity; and 

(c) market tisks, incl uding the duration of the entity's exposure to a parti.cular market risk (or 
risks) resulting from financial assets and financial liabilities is substantially the same. 
Valuatio n techniques, s uch as discounted cash flow models or models based on recent undervalued 
transactions, or taking into account investors' financial data, are used to measure the fair value of 
certain financial instruments for which_ exte rnal market price information is not available. 
Fair value a ppraisals a re analyzed according lo the level within the fair value hiera rchy as follows: 

(i) level o ne includes valuations at quoted (unadjusted) prices on active markets for 
identical assets or debts, 

(ii) the second level includes evaluation tecnniqu es by using observable info rmation o n 
assets or liabilities, either directly (such as prices) or indirectly (such as price 
derivatives), and 

(i:ii) level three includes assessments that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs). 

Transfers between fair value hierarchy levels a re cons idered to have occurred a t the end of the 
reporting period . 

Evaluation at amortized cost 

The amortized cost of a n asset o r financial liability is the amount at which the asset or financial 
liability is measured at initial recognition, less the principal payments, plus or minus the cumulative 
depreciation using the effective interest method for the differences between the initially recognized 
and the matw-ity date, less expected cred it loss. 

Accrued interest includes the amortization of deferred transaction costs at initial recognitio n and 
any premiums or discounts at the due date using the effective interest method. 

Income from accrued interest and accrned interest expense, including both the accrued coupon and 
the reductio n or a mo1t ization ( including initially deferred commissions, if any), a re not disclosed 
separately but are included in the financia l informa tion in the appropriate financial assets or 
financial liabilities. 

The Bank calculates interest income using the effective interest method as foUows: 

(a) for finan ciaJ assets other tha n fina ncial assets purchased o r originated as impa ired as a 
result of credit risk as well as impaired financial assets as a result of the risk but not 
purchased or ot;ginated as impa ired as a result of credit risk by applying the effective 
interest rate to the gross accounting value of the financial asset; 

(b) for fina ncial assets purchased or issued deprecia ted as a consequence of credit ris k by 
applying the effective interest rate adjusted for credit for the amortized cost of the financial 
asset at the initial recognition; and 

Thi! accomponying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements, 
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(c) for financial assets impaired as a result of risk but not purchased or originated as impaired 
as a result of credit risk, by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the 
financial asset over different reporting periods. 

If the contractuaJ tenns of a financial asset presented at amortized cost are renegotiated or 
amended, the Bank applies the accounting treatment established on the basis of the principles of the 
International Financial Reporting Standard IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments" and by the Order of the 
National Bank of Romania 27/2oto for the approval of the Accounting Regulations in accordance 
with the International Fi1rnncial Repo1ting Standards (IFRS), applicable to credit institutions, wit h 
subsequent modifications and additions. 

(iii) Changes in financiaJ assets and liabilities 

In accordance with IFRS 9, contractual changes to a loan can be: 

(i) contractuaJ changes that do not lead to derecognition of the financial asset; 

(ii) contractual changes leading to the derecognition of the financial asset and to the 
recognition of a new financiaJ instrument. 

The Bank monitors the changes to the contractual clauses in order lo establish those changes that 
result in derecognition of the credit. The criteria set by lhe Bank to assess the contractual changes 
which may lead to a derecognilion have been determined on the basis of their materiality 
(quan titative or qualitative) in such a way as to met the requirements of IFRS 9.3.2.3. From a 
quantitative point of view, these changes exceed the mateiiality threshold of 10% by analogy with 
the threshold specified in IFRS 9 for the derecognition of financial liabilities. From a qualitative 
point of view, the changes relate to contractual clauses that significantly change the natmc of the 
risks associated with the initial contract. 

(iv) InitiaJ recognition 

FinanciaJ assets and financial liabilities arc initially measured at fair value plus directly attributable 
trading costs in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities other than fair value through 
profit or loss. 

The Bank initially recognizes the loans, advances and deposits attracted at the time they are 
initiated. All other financial assets and liabilities (including those dc-signated at fair value through 
profit or loss) are initially recognized at the settlement date. Derivatives are recognized when the 
parties become participants in the transaction. 

Financial assets for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition (Stage 
1), which benefit or may be d irectly associated with an external assessment of Investment Grade 
credit risk and which, at the same lime, meet the following crit eria: 

(i) Loans and advances in respect of non-bank customers granted to bmTo,vers in financial 
pe1fonnance classes A and B that records a zero-day debt service on the last day of the current 
month; 

(ii) Exposures to bank cus1omers who register zero-day debt service; 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 fom1 an integral part of these financial statements. 
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(iii) Debt securities represented by government securities issued by the central administration of 
t he Romanian State are classed as instruments with low credit risk. 

(v) Derccognition 

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from that 
financial asset expire or when the Bank transfers the fuia11cial asset and the transfer meets 
simultaneously the following two conditions: 

(i) trnnsfer the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, or 

(ii) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset but 
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flov11s to one or more recipients through 
a contract that meets the following conditions: 
(a) the Bank has no obligation to pay amounts to prospective heneficiarics, unless the 

Bank collects equivalent amounts from the transferred asset; 
(b) the Bank is forbidden by contractual terms to transfer the asset to sell or to pledge 

the initial asset, for reasons other than guaranteeing the obligation to pay potential 
cash-flow beneficiaries; 

(c) the Bank transfers any cash flows it collects on behalf of the beneficiaries without 
significant delays. 

The Bank fu lly derecognizes its financial assets when it does not have reasonable estimates for 
recovering contrach1al cash flows (IFRS 9, B 3.2.J6, letter r). 
The Bank derecognizes a financial liability when the contractual obligations a re settled or canceled 
or have expired. 

(vi) Reclassification 

The Bank will reclassify all financial assets from a category of financia I assets to another category if 
and only if they modify their business model for managing those assets. 
Reclassification is applied prospectively from the date of reclassification, without modifying 
earnings, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interests previously recognized. 

Types of reclassifications: 
(a) Reclassification of financial assets from financial assets measured at amo1tized cost 

category to fair value measurement through the profit o r loss category. 
Fair value is measured at t he date of reclassification and tbe difference between 

previously a mortized cost and fair value is recognized in profit or loss. 
(b) Reclassification of financial assets from financial assets measured at fair value through 

profit or loss cfftegory to financial assets measured at amortized cost category. 
Fair value is measmed at the date of reclassification and will be considered the gross 

canying amount of the asset. 

The accompanying notes from page:, 9 [() 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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The effective interest rate ,viii be determined on the basis of the fair value as of the 
reclassification date, and for the impairment valuation, the reclassification elate will be 
considered the date of the initial recognition. 

(c) Reclassification of financial assets from financial assets measured at amortized cost 
category to financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income category. 

Fair value is measured at the date of reclassification and the difference between 
previously amortized cost and fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income. 

The actual interest rate and the expected loss on the loan are not adjusted as a result of 
the reclassification. 

(d) Reclassification of financial assets from financial assets measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income category to financial assets measured at amortized cost cat ego1y. 

The financial asset will he measured and reclassified to fair value at the date of 
reclassificatfon. 

Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is 
eliminated from equity and adjusted against the fair value of the financial asset at the date 
of reclassification. 

The adjustment affects other items of the comprehensive income and will not be 
considered a reclassification adjustment in the financial statements in accordance with IAS 
1. 

The actual interest rate and the expected loss on the loan are not adjusted as a result of 
the reclassification. 

(e) Reclassification of financial assets from financial assets measured at fair value through 
profit or loss category to financial assets measured al fair value through other comprehensive 
incom e category. 

The financial asset will continue to be measured at fair value. 
The effective interest rate will be detem1ined on the basis of the fair value as of the 

reclassification date and for the impairment assessment, the reclassification date will be 
considered the date of initial recognition. 

(f) Reclassification of financial assets from financial assets measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income category to financial assets measured at fair value through profit or 
loss category. 

The financial asset will continue lo be measured at fair value. 
Cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is 

reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment at the date of 
reclassification. 

(vii) Compensations 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net result is presented in the statement of financial 
positi.on only when Lhere is a legal right to set off and if there is an intention to settle them on a net 
basis or if the asset is simultaneously meant to be realfaed and the liability to be closed. 
Such an offset right: 

(a) must not b e contingent on a future event; and 
(b) must be legally enforceable in al.I the fol.lowing circumstances: 

The accompanying notes from paµes 9 to 135 fom1 an integral pa1t of these financial stalcmcmts. 
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(i) in the normal course of business, 
(ii) in the non-payment, and 
(iii) insolvency or bankruptcy. 

(viii) Identification of the significant increase in credit risk/ depreciation and 
evaluation of the expected credit loss 

In order to identify exposures with a significant increase in credit or impaired risk, the Bank 
performs a monthly analysis to identify changes in asset quality, i.e. identifying the items that lead 
to a significant increase in credit risk as well as an analysis of the objective existence of impairment 
indicators. 
The Bank assesses a ll exposures on a monthly basis and considers that t here is a significant increase 
in credit risk in relation to the initial recognition in the following s itua tions: 

(a) the debt service exceeded 30 days at the end of the cL1n-enl m onth or exceeded 30 days on 
the last day of any previous two months; 

(b) credit exposure is classified as a restructured performance exposure; 
(c) the exposure is incl uded in the observation list monitored by the Bank in accordance \-\-'ith 

the provisions on supervision and administration of supervised and non-performing loans. The 
identified events that generate a significant increase in credit risk include, for example, difficult 
market conditions or adverse evolution in the financial statements that reflect changes in the credit/ 
customer situation as compared to the situation at the time the credit is granted, without these being 
unlikely payment, which anticipates the non-recovery of the receivables without reconrse to the 
enfo rcement actions over the guarantees. 

(d) the exposure has been classified as impaired exposm es at the close of any previous two 
months. 

Impairment identification 

At each balance sheet date, the Bank examines wheth er there are objective indications that a 
financial asset or group of financial assets that are not held at fair value through profit or loss is 
impaired. A financia l asset or group of financial assets is impaired i.f there a1·e objective ind ications 
tha t a loss event occurred after the asset's initial recognition ("loss event") and the loss event has an 
impact on future cash flows o f the asset that can be reliably estima ted. 

It is not always possible to identify a single isolated event that generated the impairment. Most 
likely, impairment is the result of the combined effect of a group of events. Losses estimated as a 
result of future events, however probable they are, are not recognized. 

According to the Bank's internal valuation methodology, the criteria used to determine the existence 
of objective evidence of impairment refer to events t hat lead to the estimation of an improbability of 
recovering the entire cla im by the Bank without recou rse to enforcement of collateral: 

(a) ove rdue principal or interest with a debt service of mme than 90 days; 
(b) it is unlikely that the exposure is fuJly recovered by the Bank without the collatera l being 

executed, regardless of the existence of overd ue amounts or the number of days past due. 
Improbability ofrecovery is quantified by: 

The uccompan)~ng notes from pages 9 to 135 fotm an intci.:ral part of these financial stutcments. 
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- s ignificant financial difficulties of the debtor (inability to honor payments to suppliers, 
significant debts to the state budget, reporting of significant net losses, etc.); 
- financial results that no longer support the reimbursement of financial obligations in 
conjunction with the lack of alternative sources or projects supporting the repayment of debts. 
(c) the ownership of non-performing loans as a result of having been restructured over the 

past 12 months, and the impairment indicators for restructured loans will be maintained if, after one 
year from the date of the restructuring, debt service for the restructured loan exceeds 30 days, or an 
additional restrncturing is carried out within a 24-month observation period, s tarting with the date 
of the exiting of the restrnctured loan category from the non-performing loans category; 

(d) the debtor's declaration of insolvency at any of its s tages or the initiation of enforcement 
procedures by the Bank; 

(c) it is clear that the debtor will go bankrupt; 
(f) fraud situations; 
(g) the initiation of legal procedures by third creditors (enforcement, insolvency proceedings, 

judicial reorganization, etc.), which, by their nature, anticipates negative effects on the ability to pay 
debts to the Bank, entry into a resolution procedure for financial institutions or default for central 
governments 

(h) the death of the debtor. 

Estimation of expected credit Joss or impairment loss 

Locuts and advances lo customers 

Expected credit loss is the difference between the total contractual cash flows that are owed to the 
Bank in accordance with the contract and all cash flows that the Bank expects to receive on an 
discounted bas is at the original effective interest rate (or the effective in terest rate adjusted by credjt 
for financial assets purchased or originated as impaired as a result of credit risk). 

Cash flows include cash flows from the sale of the actual collateral held or other credit 
enhancements that are an integral part of the contractual terms. Expected creclit losses arc an 
estimate of the losses the Bank expects to derive from an event, such as the debtor's inability to pay. 

Dcpencling on the credit risk, the Bank recognizes the expected credit loss as follows: 

(i) For financial assets purchased or originated as jmpairc,d as a result of credit risk, only 
accumulated changes in loan losses for losses over tl1e full life from the initial recognition are 
recognized; 

(ii) For financial assets, other than financial assets purchased or originated as impaired as a 
result of credit risk for which credit ,;sk has increased significantly since initial recognition or which 
have been impaired, the expected loss is measured a t an amount equal to expected losses over the 
life of the asset; 

(iii) For financial assets, other than financial assets purchased or originated as impaired as a 
result of credit risk for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the 
expected loss is measured at an amount equal to tJ1e expected loss for 12 months. 

Expected credit losses over a 12-montb period represent the portion of the expected credit loss over 
the life of the financial asset from possible default events within 12 months of the reporting date. 
The accompanying notes from ,,ages 9 tu 135 form an integral parl of these financial st.atcincnts. 
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This is not the loss for exposures expected to default in the next 12 months or the expected cash 
outflow over the next 12 months. 

The Bank recognizes the expected credit loss over the life of the financia l asset if there is a significant 
increase in credit risk from the initial recognition, taking into account all reasonable and justifiable 
information, including forecasts. 

For the purpose of calculating the expected loss for non-impaired exposures, the Bank incorporates 
the macroeconomic effect on probability of default(PD) and loss given defau.lt(LGD). The 
methodology for estimating probability of default (PD) implies: 

• using an adjusted Weibull function to estimate cumulative PD curves; 
• using a Vasicek model for incorporating forward looking. 

Forward loob.ing adjustments are based on the correlation between. the macroeconomic indicators 
(GDP evolution) and the companies / individuals default rate observed at the banking system level 
(NBR data, as the Bank does not have enough own data to estimate correlations) and taking into 
account the projections of GDP published by the World Bank. 

The bank uses a total LGD model that involves calculating the cumulative recovery rates observed on 
each segment, based on which the parameters of a logistic function are estimated. The forward 
looking adjustment is made taking into account the correlation between PD and LGD and forward 
looking estimates for PD. 

In order to determine expected losses on an individual or collet.-tive basis, the assets to which the 

impail-ment requirements of lFRS 9 apply are divided into significant and insignificant, at the time 
of the analysis, on the basis of criteria set by the Bank and reviewed annually. 

The significant financial assets to which the impairment provisions apply in accordance with IFRS 9, 
are subject to an individual analysis to identify the associated risk level, and where impairment 
indicators are identified, the expected loss is determined on the basis of an estimation of future cash 
flows, in the two scenarios. 

Insignificant financial assets and significant financial assets for which no indications of in1pairment 
were idelltifiecl, the expected loss is determined based on a collective analysis. 

The methodology and assumptions used to meaStLre impairment are constantly reviewed by the 
Bank. A:t each reporting date, the Bank assesses and recognizes the expected credit loss of a financial 
asset or group of fillanciol assets that are not held at fair value through profit or loss, an asset related 
to a contract, a loan commitment, or financial rollateral contract Lo which the impairment 
provisions apply in accordance with IFRS 9. 

The expected credit loss is assessed by the Bank so as to reflect: 
(i) an impa1tiaJ value, weighted by probabilities, which is determined by evaluating a range of 

possible outcomes; 
(ii) time vaJue of money; 
(ijj) reasonable and justifiable information, available at no cost or without undue effort, of 

past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. 

The acc·omponying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral p:ut of these financial statements. 
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ln order to determine the expected losses o n individual or collective basis, all loans and receivables 
are divided iuto significant and insignificant, at the date when analysis is performed. 

For insignificant loans and receivables, and for significant loans for which no impairment indices 

have been identified , expected loss shall be determined over their lifetime from default events 

occurring within 12 months after the reporting date. 

For loans for wh.ich there is no significant increase in credit risk compared to the time of granting, 

i.e. expected credit loss is estimated over the life of the financial asset if there is a s ignificant 

deterioration in credit quality compa red to th.e date of init ial recognition of the financial asset, on 

the basis of a collective analysis (for loan portfolios with similar credit risk). 

The expectC'd loss amount is the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows 
and the expected cash flows (a cash sho rtfall), which includes both p rincipal and interest cash :flows. 

Expected credit losses are an estimation of the losses the Bank expects to record from a11 event, such 
as the debtor's inability to pay. 

In order to est imate the expected credit losses for credit exposures withou t impairment indicators, 
Joans a re g rouped into similar credit risk portfolios, depend ing on the client category1 t he type of 
credit in the case of indiv iduals, respectively the field of activity (CAEN code) in in the case of legal 
entities. 

Each stage is a separate catego1y and ...,; 11 be assessed for Lhe purpose of estimating expected loss as 
follO\vs: 

, loans in stage 1 - expcctt"d loss estimates for a period of t2 months; 

, loans in stage 2 - the estimated loss throughout their lifetime; and 

, loans in stage 3 (impaired) - the estimated loss throughout their lifetime. 

In the context o f the general evolution of the COVID-19 epidemic, the Bank has taken a number of 
measures to support customers who may have encountered payment difficulties. The moratorium 
applied by the Bank was both legislative, under the provisions of the Government Emergency 
Ordinance no. 37/2020, a nd no n-legislative, in line with the deferral solutions identified by the 
Bank and widely applied at the level of the banking system. 

The deferral measures were ta ken for reta il customers and no n-bank legal entities. In the case of 
performing exposures, and for which the measures taken meet the criteria set out in 
EBA/GL/2020/02, the Bank shall not associate these measures with t>vents of financial difficulty or 
restructuring. or rescale by stage to Lbe classification category associated with them prior to the 
outbrea k. 

In Lhe cnse of exposures restructured prior to the outbreak o f the COVlD-19 epidemic, the non­
performing loa ns and the observa tion period m1til the exit of the restructured loans shall be 
extended by a period equal to t he grace period granted . 

For the pu rposes of identifying further significant credit risk growth/ impairment of exposures, the 
Ba nk will monitor the indicato rs of credit risk growth relative to the modified contractual 
obligatio ns, d istinguishing between borrowers whose repayment capacity will not be affected in the 
long term b) the current situation and borrowers for which recovery of the repayment capacity is 

The acc·ompan}ini notes from pages 9 tu 135 form an integral part of tl1esc financial :.tatements. 
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unlikely to be restored after the state of emergency has been overcome and business is resumed. For 
the latter, credit risk increases/impairment of exposures will be appropriately recognized. 

In order to calculate the expected loss for each portfolio, PDs and LGDs will be applied to the 
exposure amount of the loan portfolio for each of the portfolios. Changes in future cash flow 
projections should reflect and be consistent with changes in observable data from one period to the 
next (eg, GDP change relative to the state of default or other factors that indicate changes in the 
probability of recording losses by the Bank and their size). 

The methodology used to estimate future cash flows is periodically reviewed by the Bank to reduce 
any differences between estimated losses and actual loss experience based on the results of the 
validation process. 

The historical loss experience has to be adjusted on the basis of current observable information to 
reflect the effects of current conditions that have not affected the period on which historical loss 
experiences are based and to remove the effects of historical conditions that are no longer present. 

Tf, in a subsequent pe1iod, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease is related to an 
objective event that occurred after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognfaed 
impairment is reversed directly through the provisioning account. Reversal is recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss. 

Restructured loans 

The restructured loans are related to credit agreements for which restructuring measures have been 
applied. 

Restructuring operations are considered as situations in which the borrower bas been granted 
concessions as a result of, or is faced with, financial difficulties in repaying the committed loans, or 
at least one of the following situations: 

a)the granting of concessions, irrespective of the existence/ absence of outstanding amotLnts, in 
the financial difficulties of the debtor; 

b) the contract was c lassified before the restructuring as non-performing or would have been 
c lassified as non-performing if it had not been modified; 

c) Lhe contractual change implies a Lola! or partial cancellation of the debt; 
d) at the same time as granting the concession or at a date close to granting it, the borrower, 

upon granting a new credit. makes principal or i_nterest payments related to another conLract with the 
Bank, which was c lassified as non-performing or 'vvould have been classified as non-performing in 
absence of refinancing; 

e) at the same ti_me as granting the concession or at a date close to granting tJ1e concession, 
fo llowing the granting ofa new loan, the debtor shall make principal or interest payments related to 
another contract concluded wiLh the Bank, which has recorded overdue ror at least 30 days at least 
once in the last 3 months prior to refinancing; 

I) a change involving the closing of the obligation by taking over the real collateral when the 
modification represents a concession: 

g) !he modified contract had more than JO days past due (witJ,out being non-performing) at least 
once in the last 3 months prior t.o the restructuring, or would have been in the sit.ua1ion if it had not 
been modified. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 Lo 135 form an inlci;ral part of these financia l statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

The financial difficLtlty does not refer to ev<.',nts of a conjunctural nature, it mnst be idenlified based 
on the analysis of the client's activity. 

Loans suhject to restructuring operations are classified as non-perfonning assets starting with the 
date of the restructuring. If, after 12 months, the conditions for exiting the non-pedorming credit 
exposures are met simultaneously, the loan will be classified as performing assets with restructuring 
measures. These loans are monitored within a minimum 24-montb observation period starting ·with 
the dale of exit from the category of non-pedorming loans for classification in the performing/ non­
performing loans category. Any additional restructuring measures applied within the 24-month 
observation period after the restructured credit outflow from the non-performing loans calego1y, as 
well as any overrun of the 30-day debt service over the period, lead to the classification of the 
restructured loan in the category of non-pe1fonning loans. 

Exiting restructured exposmes category occurs when the following conditions are mel cumulatively: 
a) the restructured exposure is considered to be pe1forming, even if it has been reclassified 

from the non-performing exposures category as a result of the debtor's financial statement analysis 
showing that the conditions for the non-performing category are no longer met; 

b) from the date on which the restructured exposure was considered to be performing, a 
minimum of 2 years has passed: 

e) during half of the probation period, payments took place regularly (principal and 
cumulative interest payments) that cannot be considered insignificant; 

d) at the end of the probation period, no exposure to Uie debtor is past due for more than 30 
days. 

Under IFRS 9, if the contractual lerms of a financial asset presented at amortized cost are 
renegotiated or amended, the Bank applies the accounting treatment established on the basis of the 
International Financial Reporting Standard IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments" principles. 

In accordance with IFRS 9, contractual changes to a credit can be: 
(i) contractual changes that do not lead to the dcrecognition of the financial asset; 
(ii) contractual changes that lead to the derecognition of the financial asset and the 

recognition of a new financial instrument. 

The Bank monitms changes to the contractual clauses in order to establish those changes that result 
in derecognition of the credit. Analysis for derecog nition requires a qualitative analysis and, if 
necessary, a quantitative analysis according to IFRS 9 principles. 

Write-off loans 

According lo IFRS 9, if there is no reasonable estimate of the recovery of a full financial asset, the 
gross carryi ng amount oftbat asset will be directly reduced and disposal is a derecognition event. 

For loans that are 100% covered by impairment adjustments / expected loss adjustments, the Bank 
may derecogniw it by directly reducing its gross book value while simultaneously recording the 
respective receivables in off-balance sheet accounts. Subsequently, the Bank records any collection 
of amounts from debtors in "Receivables Recovery Income" accounts ,vith direct effect on the profit 
or loss acc-ount. 

The accompanying notes from pa~es 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements, 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless o th erwise s tated) 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING P OLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Off balance sheet com.mibnents 

The Bank analyzes off-balance-sheet commitments, considering them in the same risk category as 
the balance sheet exposures. The expected losses for off-balance sheet commitments are calculated 
on the basis of a conversion factor that describes how the use of credit linuts will be increased or 
how the guarantees issued in loans will be converted from t he beginning of the observation period to 
the time of default. The PD / LGD corresponding to the homogeneous portfolio in which that 
exposure is assigned shall be applied to the determined balance of the exposure balance. 

Assets valued a l fair value tht·ough o ther comprehensive income 

Expected losses for fina11cial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, 
other than equity instruments designated by the Bank as being measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income, a.re recognized in other comprehensive income and do not reduce the 
carrying amount of the financial asset in financial information. 

Invesbncnts in equity instruments 

Investments in equity instruments classified by the Bank as initial recognition in the category of 
financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject to 
impairment provisions for the recognition and measurement of expected impairment losses. 

2 .9 Lease paym ents 

For leases agreements in which it is a lessee, starting from a nnual reporting periods beginning on 1 

January 2019, the Bank applies the requirements of lFRS 16 using the amended retrospective 
method (simplified method) for transition. 

The t ransition method chosen has been applied consistently to all leases that are within the scope of 

IFRS 16 (lFRS 16 Annex C paragraph C6, as follows: 

- the lease liability recognition is calculated as the amount of remaining lease payments 

d iscounted using the marginal interest rate at which tl1e Bank can borrow at the date of initial 

applicat ion; and 

- recognition of the right of use is calculated asset the amount of the lease liability (adjusted 

by the amount of any lease payments made in advance or accrued in respect of that lease). 

At the date of initial application, the lease Liabilities were equal to the right to use the assets, except 

for contracts where advance payments were made before the transition date (advance payment in 

December 2018 for Janua1y 2019; advance payments in December 2018 for the first quarter of 

2019). For these contracts, the rights to use the assets exceeded the value of the lease Liabilities by 

the amount paid in advance. At the time of the transition, the Bank recorded exchange rate 
differences due lo advance payments made in 2018 and for periods in 2019 in retained earnings. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form .in integral part of these financial statements. 
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CEC BANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 1 DECEMBER 2 020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless othe rwise stated) 

2 SUMMARY OF Sl GNlFlCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Tbe Bank's accounting policy is not to apply the requirements of IFRS 16 to leases of intangible 
assets. 

( j) Ide ntification of a lease 

A contract is or contains a lease if the contract grants the right to control the use of an identifiable 
asset for a specified period of time in return for consideration. 

The Bank will reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease only if the terms and conditions of 
the contract change. In this case, the Bank will treat the change as a modification to the existing 
lease. 

Contracts often combine several types of supplier obligations, and may contain a combination of 
leasing components and non-binding components. In the case of a multi-clement contract, the Bank 
shall identify each lease component and treat it separately for accounting purposes as follows: 

a)Contracts that contain both leasing and non-leasing components 

The Bank does nol apply the practical approach set out in paragraph 15 of JFRS 16 regarding the 
lessee's possibility not to separate non-leasing and leasing components, and therefore has treated 
each lease component and service component of the contract separately. 

In identifying a non-leasing component, the Bank determines whether it transfers a good or service 
to the lessee. 

b) Non-leasing components (services) 

Expenses related to services which are separate components other than leasing (services): 
maintenance of the common area in case of real estate leases, electricity and other utilities, 
marketing services, management fees, the price of which is billed separately from the rent of the 
underlying asset, are recorded in the profit and loss accounl as operating expenses. 

c) Not separable non-lease components 

Property/building tax costs paid on behalf of the lessor being not separable non-lease components, 
a re not separate components of non-leasing because no good or setvice is transferred to the Bank. 

d) VAT treatment 

The VAT component is not part of the lease liability because it does not involve the transfer of a good 
or service. The Bank \\•ill record the VAT when il is invoiced and will become due (wilJ not be 
capitalized over the lease period). 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 lo 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless o therwise stated) 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

(ii) Leas e ter m 

The lease term includes the non-cancellable period for which the Bank bas the right to use an 

underlying asset, together with periods covered by an option to extend the lease, if the Bank is 

reasonably certain to exercise that option and periods covered by an option to term inate the lease, if 

the Bank is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. 

In assessing whether it is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise 

an option to termillate a lease, the Bank considers all relevant factors and circumstances that create 

an economic incentive for the lessee to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the 

option to terminate the lease. 

The Bank will reassess whether it is reasonably certain lo exercise an extension option, or not to 

exercise a termination option, upon the occunence of either a si.gnificant event or a significant 

change in circumstances that is with.in the control of the Bank and affects whether the Bank is 
reasonably certain to exercise an option not previously included in its determination of the lease 

term, or not to exercise an option previously included in its determination of tbe lease. 

In order to determine the lease term for these contracts in the case of contracts concluded for an 

indefinite period or for which the lease term is automatically prolonged for successive specified 

periods or for indefinite period, the Bank considered all relevant facts and circumstances that create 

an economic incentive to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to 
terminate the lease. 

Land concession contracts concluded on which the Bank built on the rented land offices spaces for its 

branches and agencies and for which the contract period is not mentioned at all. The Bank 

considered the lease term as the estimated useful life of the building the .Bank built on the leased 
land. The Bank estimates for building a useful life of 50 yeaTs. 

Land concession contracts concluded fortbe usefoJ life ofthe building. 

In the case of the land concession contracts for which the contract period is lhe useful life of the 

build ing the Bank built on the respective land, the Bank considers the lease term as the estimated 
useful life of lhe buildings, namely 50 years. 

Land concession contracts having a mfamatch between the contract term and the rent payment term 

In the case of the land concession contracts for which the rent is payable over a shorter period than 

the contract term, lhe Bank considered the guidance provided in IFRS 16 para B36, according to 

whicb the lease term begins at the commencement date and includes any rent-free periods provided 

to the lessee by the lessor. Therefore, the lease tenn for these contracts is the full contractual term. 

The accompanying notes Jroru pages 9 Lo 135 form an integrnl part of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise staled) _...;._ ___________ _ 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Rental contracts for office spaces which are automatically extended for successive 12 months 

periods/indefinite period. 

For these contracts, the Bank considers factors tha t create an economic incentive for the exercise of 

the renewal option/termination request for indefinite period contracts, including contract asset and 

market-based factors. 

(iii) Recognition and measurement 

Recognition and measurement e.'t:emptions 

IFRS 16 contains two recognition and measurement exemptions: 

- short-term leases and 

- leases for v11hich the underlying asset is oflow value. 

The Bank did not apply the ushort term leases" exemption, as provided in TFRS 16 Appendix A 

The Bank a pplies the "low value assets" exemption for all those rent contrncts for which the value of 
the underlying assets is below USO 5,000. 

When applying the "low value asset" exemption, the Bank considered the guidance provided in IFRS 
16 Appendix B paragraph B4 stating that the analysis oflow value assets does not require the Bank lo 

determine whether low value assets in aggregate are material; the exemption is still applicable e,·en if 
the aggregate value of low value assets is material. 

Initial measurement - lease liability 

For all the contracts in scope of IFRS 16, the Bank recognizes a right-of-use asset and a 
corresponding lease liabil.ity. 
At the commencement date, the lessee measures tbe lease liability at an nmount equal to the present 

value of the lease payments during the lease term that arc not paid at thal date. 

Based 011 the guidance in IFRS 16 paragraph 27, the Bank considered as lease payments the 

foTiowings: 

a) fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable 

For all of the contracts included in IFRS 16 scope, the Bank pays at least a fixed 

monlhly/quarterly/semiannually/annually rent. Lease incentives consist of costs undertaken by the 

lessor on behalf or for the benefit of the Bank, in order to facilitate the agreement or renewal of the 
lease. 

An example of such incentives arc the rent-free periods that the Bank receives for part of its leases. 

At initial measuremenl, the Bank includes these rent-free periods in the lease liability calculation. 

The accompanying notes fron, l)U)l,CS 9 to 135 fonn an integrnl part ofthC.'>l! financial stalemcnl~. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index 
or rate as at the commencement date; 

c) variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate; 
According to IFRS 16 paragraph 38, such payments are not part of the lease liability, but they are 
recognized in the income statement when the event or condition that trigger those payments occurs. 
The Bank calculates the increase in rent from one year to another due to indexatfon and if these 

amounts are not significant for its operations, the Bank includes these variable lease payments that 
do not depend on an index or a rate in the lease liabilities computation. 

d) other lease liabilities components. 
In the case of conh·acts that include clauses related to the payment of penalties for terminating the 

lease, the Bank did not include such amounts in the lease liabilities computation because, as at 
transition date, it is not reasonably certain that it will exercise the termination option. 

Lease payments denominated in a foreign currency do not constitute variable lease payments based 
on an index or a rate, but are in effect fixed payments. 

For each reporting period, the Ba_nk will calculate the lease liabilities in the original currency of the 
contract and convert them in RON by using the exchange rate/currency from the reporting day. The 
Bank will recognise any exchange rate clifferenccs in Profit or Loss account. 

The right of use asset is not a monetary item and it is recognised in RON, the Bank's functional 
currency. As such, Lhe right of use asset is not subsequently measured to account for any exchange 
rates differences, as it is the case for lease liabilities. 

The discount rate that U,e Bank should use to measure the present value of the lease liabilities i.s the 
interest rate implicit in the lease. Otherwfae, the Bank should use its incremental borrowing rate, 
meaning the rate of interest that it would have to pay to borrow, over a similar term and with a 
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a s imilar value to the right-of-use asset, in 
a similar economic environment. 

In the case of CEC, there are no contracts with an implicit interest rate . Therefore, the Bank 
measures the present value of the lease liabilities deriving from that respective contract using its 
incremental borrowing rate. 

Initial measurement - right-of-use asset 

At the commencement date the Bank measures the right-of-use asset at cost. 
The Bank included in the cost of the right-of-use asset the following: 

a. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability; 
b. lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received; 
c. Initial direct costs. 

The accompanyin)!, notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Page 38 of 135 
This version of Lhc financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken Lo ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, dews or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 



CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 
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2 SUMMARY OF SlGNTFlCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

1n accordance with the guidance from IFRS 16 paragraph 24, the cost of the right-of-use should also 

include the initial direct costs incurred by the Bank in order to obtain the lease contract. 

Initial direct costs a rc defined as " ... incremental costs of obtaining a lease that would n ot have been 

incurred if the lease had not been obtained ... ". Such costs include collllllissions or some payments 

made to the existing lessees to obtain the lease. 

The Bank decided to apply the practical expeclient as provided in IFRS 16 Appenfu C paragraph C10 

and excluded the initial direct costs from the measw-ement of the light-of-use assets at the date of 

initiaJ application. All initial direct costs will be included in the initial measurement of the right-of­

use asset for contracts concluded starting with 1st of Januaiy 2019. 

Subsequent· measurement - lease liability 

a) Subsequent m easurement oflhe lease lia.bility 

After the transition date, the Bank will measure the lease liability by: 

- increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest io the lease liability; 

- reducing the carrying amount to re flect the lease payments made; 

- re-measuring the carryin g a mount to reflect any reassessments or lease modifications or to 

reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. 

b) Reassessment of the lease liability 

After the transition date, the Bank v.rill re-measure the lease liability to reflect changes to lease 

payments . The Bank will recognize the a mount of re-measurement of the lease liability as a n 

adjustment Lo the right-of-use assets. 

The Bank will re-measure the lease liability by discounting the lease payments using a revised 

discount rate if e ither: 

- there are contractual changes which modify the lease payments or the lease term; 

- there is a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset, in the 

context of a purchase option. 

The Bank will re-measme the lease Hability by discounting the revised lease payments using the 

initial cliscount rate if either there is a cha nge in the residual value guarantee and there is a change io 

an index or a rate used to determine those payments. 

The Bank •Nill account for a lease modification as a separate lease if both criteria below are met: 

>-- U1e modification extends the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more 

underlying assets; and 

, the consideration fo r the lease increases by an amount comm ensu rate with the stand-alo ne 

price for the increase in scope and any appropria te adjustments to that stand-a lone price to reflect 

the cfrcumstances of the particular contract. 

The atcompanying nines from pag('S 9 to 135 fom1 an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

For a lease modification that will not be accounted for as a separate lease, at the effective date of the 

lease modification the Bank will allocate the consideration in the modified contract applying the 

price on each lease component, determine the lease term of the modified lease and re-measure the 

lease liability by updating the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate. 

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the Bank will account for the 

re-measurement of the lease liability by decreasing the ca rrying amount of the right-of-use asset to 

reflect the partial or full termination of the lease for lease modifications that decrease the scope of 

the lease and making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asseL for all other lease 
mc>djfications. 

Subsequent measurement - right-of-use asset 

After the commencement date of the contract, the Bank wiU measure the right-of-use asset applying 

the cost model. The r ight-of use asset is decreased by any accumulated depreciation and any 

accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. 

The Bank will calculate depreciation of the right-of-use asset on a straight-line basis in accordance 
with TAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment". 

The Bank •..vill depreciate the 1;ght-of-use asset over the shorter of the lease term and the useful Life of 

the right-of-use asset. Also, the Bank will apply the impairment requirements in lAS 36 to the righl­
of-use assets. 

2 .10 Cash and cash equivalents at Central Bank 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand and nostro accounts with banks, 

including current account with the National Bank of Romania. Cash and cash equivalents are carried 
at amortised cost Ln the balance sheet. 

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term investments which are readily convertible to known 

amolrnts of cash and wl1ieh are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

Funds restricted for a period of more than three months on orig ination are excluded from cash and 
cash equivalents. 

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less 

than three months maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash and non-restricted balances 

with central bank (including the minimum reserve requ..irement), treasury bills and other eligible 

b ills, loans and advances to banks and amounts due from other banks. 

The accompan)ing nott!S from pages 9 to 135 form an integral pan of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

2.11 Derivatives 

Derivatives are held for risk management purposes and are measured at fair value in the statement 
of financial position with the changes in fair value recorded in the statement of profit or loss. 

Derivative financial instruments include currenc..-y swaps and cunency forward and forward on debt 
instruments transactions. The positive fair value of the derivatives is carried as asset and the 
negative fair value is carried as liability. 

Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are included in profit or loss for the year (Net 
gains/losses on financial derivatives). The Bank does not apply hedge accounting. 

2.12 Loans and advances to banks 

Amounts due from other banks are recorded when the Bank borrows money to counterparty banks 
with no intention of trading the resulting unquoted non-derivative receivable due on fixed or 
determinable dates. Amounts due from other banks are carried at amortised cost. 

2.1.3 Investment property 

Investments properlies are properties held by the Bank in order to obtain rental incon1e and arc not 
used by the Bank in the current activity. 

Investment property is initially measured at cost, taking into accow1t any costs directly attributable 

to the acquisition (such as fees for legal services, real estate agent fees and notary fees, transfer fees 
and charges of Lhe property). After the initial recognition, an investment property is measured al 

cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment losses, according to IAS 16. The 
difference between the net proceeds from the sale and the net carrying amount of the asset is 
recognized in profit or loss upon derecognition. 

Investment properties that meet the criteria lo be classified as held for sale in accordance ""ith IFRS 

s shall be assessed in accordance with IFRS 5. 

Rental income is recorded in profit or loss for the year within otl,er operating income. 

If any indication exists that investment properties may be impaired, the Bank estimates the 

recoverable amount as the higher of value in use and fair value less the costs to sell. 

The carrying amount of an investment property is depreciated to its recoverable amount through the 
creation of an impairment to the profit or loss account for the year. An impairment loss recognised 
in prior years is reversed if there has been a subsequent change in the estimates used to determine 
the asset's recoverable amount. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 fonn an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNlFlCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that futme economic benefits 

associated w:ith it will flow to the Bank, and the cost ca n be measured reliab1y. All other repairs and 

maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. 

Bank records as investment property the following tangible assets: 

a) LOO% surplus space; 

b) Mixed-use spaces that cannot be sold separately arc entirely classified as investme nt 

property only if the surplus space is al least 70%; 

c) Mixed-use spaces that can be sold separately and have a gross book value less than 

RON 2,000,000 will be classified as investment prope1ty or tangible assets based on 

which part from that space (surplus or banking) is more significant (equal or more 

than 70%); 

d) For the remaining mixed spaces that can be sold separately, only the surplus is 

classified as investment property; for this is required to establish the gross value 

based on lhe value distribution repo1t. 

Revaluation reserve from the transfer dale of property and equipment in investment property is 

reclassified to retained earnings at the date of investment property derecognition. 

If an investment property is starting to being used in the usual banking activity, it is then reclassified 

to lhe proper1y and equipment account. 

2.14 Tangible assets 

(i) Recognition and measurement 

Land and buildings are presented at recvaluated value amount less accumulated depreciation and 

the provision for impairment losses. The other items from the tangible assets catego1y are 

presented at their historical cost less accumulated depreciation a nd the provision for impairment 

losses. Capital expenditure on property and equipment under construction is capitalized and 

depreciated once the assets enter into use. 

Land and buildings are subject to periodical revaluation to ensure that the carrying amount does not 

differ materially from thal which would be determined using fai r value at the end of the reporting 

period. 

Evaluations are made by certified external and internal evaluators. lf there is no market based 

evidence of fa ir value, fai.r value is estimated using an income approach. Increases in the carrying 

amount arising on revaluation are credited to other comprehensive income and increase the 

revaluation surplus in equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are 

recognised in other comprehensive income and decrease the previously recognised revaluation 

siu·plus in equity to the lim it of the cost; all other decreases are charged to profit o r loss for the year. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an intcgml part of these financial !'.tatcments. 
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED ) 

The revaluation reserve for property and equipment included in equity is transferred directly to 

retained earnings when the revaluation surplus is realise<l on the retirement or d isposal of the asset. 

Upon revaluation of tangible assets, accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is 

eliminated from the gross carrying amount of the asset and the gross carrying amount after the 

recording of revaluation is equal to its revaluated amount; this method is used when it is performed 

a detailed valuation of the land and building portfolio. 

(ii) Subsequent costs 

The Ilank recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of property and equipment the cost of 

replacing part of such an item when tl1at cost is incurred if it is probable that the future economic 

benefits embodied with the item will flow to the Ilank and the cost of the item can be measured 

reliably. All other expenditures are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as an expense as 

incurred. 

(iii) Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided o n a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each item of the 

tangible assets category or of important categories of tangible assets that are recorded separately. 

Land is not subject to depreciation. 

(iv) De recognition 

Gains and/or losses from de-recognition of tangible assets is determined as difference between 

revenues from sales of tangible assets and the expenses with their disposal and /or their retirement 

and are recognized in profit or loss for the year (within other operating income or expenses). 

The estimated useful lives by categories are as follows: 

Categories 

Buildings 

Equipment 

Vehicles 

Furniture 

Other tangible assets 

Years 

50 
3-20 

6 

14 

4-22 

Depreciation methods and useful lives are reassessed at each reporting date. 

The accompanying notes from page., 9 to 135 form an integral pan of the..-.c financial statements. 
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2.15 Intangible assets 

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Bank are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and 

impairment losses. Intangible assets include software and licences. 

Costs associated with developing or maintaining software programs are recognized as an expense 

when incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and unique 

softwa re products controlled by the Bank, and that will pwbably generate economic benefits 

exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognized as intangible assets. 

Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 

the software, from the date that it is available for use. The estimate useful life for software is 4 years. 

2.16 Impairment of non-financial assets 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit 
exceeds its reco,·erable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that 

generates cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and groups. Impairment losses 

are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units 
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use a nd its 

fair value less the costs to sell. ID assessing vah1c in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 

2 .17 Deposits from banks and customers 

Deposits from banks and customers are initially measured at fafr value plus transaction costs, and 

subsequently measured at amo1tised cost using the effective interest method. 

Deposits from banks are recorded when the Bank receives money or other assets from other 

coun terparty banks. 

Customer accounts are non-derivative Liabilities to individuals, state or corporate customers. 

Tbc accomp(lnying notc·s from pages 9 tu 135 fom1 an inlcgral part of these financial statements. 
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2.18 Borrowings from banks and other financial institutions 

Tbe loans obtained from banks and other financial institutions account includes loans from 
international banks and financial institutions and are registered at amortised cost. 

2.19 Sa]e and repurchase agreements and lending of securities. 

Sale and repurchase agreements ("repo agreements"), wbich effectively provide a lender's retu rn to 
the counterparty, are treated as secured financing transactions. Secmitics sold under such sale and 
repurchase agreements are not derecognized. The securities are not reclassified in the statement of 
financial position trnless the transferee has the right by contract or custom to sell or repledge the 
securities, in which case they arc reclassified as repurchase receivables. The corresponding liability 
is presented ·within deposits from banks or borrowings from banks and other financial institutions 
calegory. 

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (''reverse repo agreements"), which effectively 
provide a lender's return to the Bank, are recorded as loans and advances from banks or loans and 
advances to customers, as appropriate. 111e dffference between the sale and repurchase price, 
adjusted by interest and dividend income collected by t he counterparty, is treated as interest income 
and accnted over the life of repo agreements using the effective interest method. 

Securities lent to countcrparty banks for a fixed fee are retained in the financial statements in their 
original category in the statement of fiJ1ancial position unless the counterparty has the right by 
contract or custom to sell or repledge the securities, in which case they ..:ire reclassified and 
presented separately. 

Securities bonowed for a fixed fee are not recorded in Lhc financial statements, unless these are sold 
to third parties, in which case the purchase and sale are recorded in profit or loss for the year within 
gains less losses arising from trading securities. The obligation to return the securities is recorded at 
fair value in other bOl'rowed funds. 

2.20 Provisions 

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Bank has a present legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event to transfer economic benefits in order to settle the obligation 
and the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated. 

2.21 Continge nt assets and liabilities 

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed in notes, 

Th(\ accompanying notes from pa.gcs 9 to 135 form an inlcgrnl part of these financial statements. 
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

unless the possibility of an outflow of economic benefits is remote. 

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of 

economic benefits is probable. 

2.22 Financial guarantees 

The Bank issues financial guarantees and commitments to provide loans. 

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Bank to make s pecified payments to reimburse 

the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in 

accordance ·with the terms of a debt instrument and represents a credit risk. 

Financial guarantee liability is initially recognised at its fair value which is normally highlighted by 

the amount of fees received. This amount is amortised thorughout the life of the commitment, 

except for commitments to originate loans if it is probable that the Bank will enter into a specific 

lending arrangement and does not expect to sell the resulting loan shortly after origination; such 

loan commitment fees are deferred and included in the carrying value of the loan on initial 

recognition. At the end of each reporting period, the commitments are measured at the higher value 

between (i) the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, the cumulative amount of 

revenue recognized in accordance with lFRS 15 and (ii) allowance for losses caused to the end of 

each reporting period. 

Jn cases where the fees are charged periodically in respect of an o utstanding commitment, they arc 
recognised as revenue on a time proportion basis over the respective commitment period. 

2.23 Repossessed assets 

Repossessed assets represent financial and non-financial assets repossessed by the Bank through 

execution or giving in settlement of overdue. FinanciaJ assets (cash and securities) taken over by the 

Bank due to execution arc accounted in treasury accounts, respectively securities, in counterparty 

with related :receivables accounts a.nd "Creditors" account (for any difference to be returned to the 

customer). Net gain or loss from derecognition of the credit is recognized in profit or loss. 

Movable and immovable property other than secuxities and cash, taken over by the Bank through 

execution are initially recognized a l fair value in the "Inventories" categoi:y in the account "Other 

assets held for sale" in cotmtcrparty \\oith related receivables accounts and "Creditors "account (for 

any difference to be returned to the customer). Net gain or loss from dcrecognition of the credit is 

recognized in profit or loss. lmmovable property that has come into the Bank's possession as a result 

of the payment transactions arc initially recognized at fair value in the category " Inventories " 

through the account "Other assets held for sale" in counterparty with the receivables accounts. 

Assets taken into the Bank's assets through execution or giving in payment procedure which 

subsequently change their destination, which fall \o\ri.thin the category of assets, will be transferred 
from "Inventories" category into the assets accounts. 

The ,1ccompanying notes from pages 9 tu 135 fom, an integral part 1,f thr.,;c financhil slatcmcnts. 
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2.24 Employee benefits 

Short te,m benefits 

Short-term employee benefits include wages, salaries, bo nuses and social security contributions. 

Short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense when services are rendered . The Bank 

includes in short- term benefits the accruals for the employees· current year profit sha ring which can 

be paid within twelve months from the end of the period . 

Pension plans/ social and pension contributions 

The Bank, in the normal course of business makes payments lo the Romanian state funds on behalf 

of its employees for pension, unemployment fund and health care. All the employees of the Bank are 

members and arc also legally obliged to make defined cont ributions (included in the social security 
contributions) Lo lhe Romanian state pension plan. All re lated contributions to lhe Romanian state 
pension plan are recogn ized as an expense in the p rofit and loss s tatement fo r the period whe n 

incurred . 

The Bank does not operate any independent pens ion sche me and, consequently, has no other 

obligation in respect of pensions. 

Post'- employment benefits 

Based on the Work Convention that is valid for 12 months starting with 0 1.0 1.2020 , s igned with the 

Trade Union Federation of CEC Ba nk Employees, Bank's employees who ret ire as a result of the age 

limit in 2020 may will receive on t his occasion, taxable material assistance, at the jus tified proposal 

of the managemen t, in consultation with trade union leaders. 

2.25 Depos it Guarantee Fund contribution 

Individuals and some categories of companies deposi ts, including small and medium enterprises, 
are guaranteed until a certain level (EUR 10 0 ,00 0) by the Deposit Guarantee Fu nd in Banking 
System ("Fund") according to effectual law (3n /2015 Law regarding the deposit guarantee schemes 
a nd the Deposit Guarantee Fund). 

The credit institutions from Rom ania a re obliged to pay an annual contribution to BDGF ("Banking 
Deposit Guara ntee Fund") in order to guarantee the deposits of clients in case of the cred it 
ins titution insolvency and an annual subscription to the Resolution Fund. 

The Bank applied IFRlC 2 1 s tipulat ions "Taxes'', according to which the Fund contribution meets 
the defini tion of a tax. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 fonn an integral part of lhesc financial statements. 
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2 .26 Share capital 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. 
Share capital has been restated to reflect the impact of lAS 29 up to 1 J anuary 2004 when Romania 

ceased to be a hyperinflationary economy. 

2.27 Trade and other payables 

Trade payables are accrued when the counterparty has performed its obligations under the coutract 

and are measured at amortized cost. 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

a) Introduction 

The most important types of financial risks to which the Bank is exposed are credit risk, liquidity 
risk, market risk and interest rate risk other than trading p01tfolio. 
Market risk includes currency risk and equity price risk. This note provides informatiou regarding 
Bank's exposure to every ris k mentioned above, the objectives and policies of the Bank and 

evaluation and risk management processes. 

Risk managemenlfmmework 

The Board of Directors of the Bank has the overall responsibility for the establishment and 
mouitoring of the Bank's risk management framework. In this way, the Board of Directors of the 
Bank analyses, reviews and approves, at least annuaUy, the Bank's risk management strategies and 
poHcies to reflect changes in internal and external factors, as well as cbaJ1ges in the economic 
environment in which the Bank operates. The Board of Directors of the Bank shall also reconsiders 
and approves the risk profile, setting acceptable levels for significant risks and ensuring that the 
necessary steps are taken to identify, assess, monitor and control significant risks, including for 
outsom-ccd activities. 

Within the limits of the powers delegated by the Board of Di.rectors of the Bank, shall function 
Executive Committee, tbe Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO), the Risk Managem ent Committee 
and Operational Risk Managemenl Committee, which ase responsible for developing and 
monitoring the Bank's risk management policies in areas specified by them. All committees report 
regularly to the Board of Directors. 

The Bank's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks to which the 
Bank is exposed, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to 
risk 1.imits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in 

market conditions, products and services offered. 

The ucc.:ompanying notes rrom pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial stutemenL<.. 
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The Bank, through its training, management standards and procedures, aims to develop a 
disciplined and constnictive control environment, in which all employees understand their roles and 

obligations. 

The Bank's Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the compliance with the Bank's 1isk 

management procedures. The Audit Committee is assisted in fulfilhng these functions by Internal 
Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoe reviews of risk management controls and 

procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee. 

b) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss of the Bank if a customer or a counterparty of a financial 
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. 

Credit risk associated with trading and investing activities is managed through the Bank's market 
risk management process. The risk is mitigated through selecting counterparties with good credit 
rating standings, monitoring their activities and ratings and through the use of exposure limits and 
when appropriate, the obtaining of collaterals. 

On 13.05.2016 the "Law on debt to asset of real estate tvith the aim of ceasing the obligation 
committed by credits" came into force. 

As at 31.12.2020, the Bank received notifications regarding the law on full settlement of mortgage/ 
home equity loans for 27 loa ns with an on-balance sheet exposure of RON 16,006 thousand, for 
which the Bank made adjustments for expected credit loss of RON 6,695 thousand, respectively real 
estate guarantees of RON 10,593 thousand, so that tbe estimated impact on the portfolio of loans 
and financial position of the bank is tnsignificant. 

Until now, the Bank has taken over the payment as a result of the provisions of Law 77/2016: 7 
buildings and 4 lands. Debt repayments amounting to RON 368.97 thousand were made in 2020, 

representing receivables residuals recorded in off balance sheet accounts. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an inrcgral pait of these finanr.ial !'<tatements. 
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An analysis of the ratio between mortgage loans and related real estate gua rantees (LTV), without 

the ,,First House" product, at the repo1ting date, is presented below: 

Balance sheet exposure Off balance sheet expos me 
L1V 31.12.2020 31.12.2020 

(RON thousand) (RON thousand) 

< 60% 1,036,135 2,557 

61-80% 1,307,540 13,388 

81-100% 223,787 342 

101-120% 16,016 

121-140% 6,978 98 

>140% 2..541 :zaJ 
Total g,S9Z,@3 .1:1,.1Q8 

Balance sheet exposure Off balance sheet exposure 
LTV 31.12.2019 31.12.2019 

(RON thousand) (RON thousand) 

< 60% 850,324 1,968 

61-80% 1,011,942 7,187 

8 1-100% 169,294 455 

101-120% 26,178 144 

121-140% 9,422 10 

>140% 9.,9-6.Q 59.6 

Total 2,077,126 lQ,3,Q_O 

The accompunying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of lhcse financial swtemcnls. 
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

At 31 December 2020, the Bank recorded a portfolio of loans granted to individuals that can benefit 
from the law on full settlement of mortgage with a value of RON 2,597,003 thousand, with collateral 
value of RON 5,314,665 thousand. Adjustments for expected credit loss related to this portfolio have 
a value of RON 24,085 thousand. 

The Bank's primary exposure to credit risk arises from its lending activity and other transactions in 
which the bank recognizes financial assets. The maximum amount of credit exposure in this regard 
is represented by the carrying amow1ts of t he assets recognised in the balance sheet. 

The Bank is exposed lo credit risk from various other financial assets, including derivative 
instruments and debt investments, for which the maximum current credit exposure is equal to tbe 
carrying amount of these assets in the balance sheet. ln addition, the Bank is exposed to off balance 
sheet credit risk through commitments to grant loans for which the maximum exposure is the 
commitment value. 

In order to minimise this risk, the Bank has established exposure limits and procedures in order to 

screen the customers before granting the loans and to monitor thefr ability to repay the principal 

and interest during the lifetime of the loan. 

Credit risk is diminished by the amount of collateral received. The adjustment value for impaired 

loans is based on the management's analysis at the balance sheet date after taking into account the 

potential cash flows from the executfon of the collateral, net of the costs of obtaining and selling 

them. 

On the Romanian market, several types of collateral were seri.ously affected by the recent volatility of 

the financial markets and by the low level of liquidity for certain types of assets. Consequently, the 

realizable vaJue of the assets may d iffer from the amount allocated to the estimate of adjustments 

for expected credit loss. 

Management closely monitors the evolution of the portfolio and the cash flow forecast such to 

ensure it reflects the revised estimates of expected future cash flows in the impairment assessments. 

The accompan)~ng notes from p,1ges 9 lo 135 form an inte);,rral purl of I hese linuncial statement~. 
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Credit risk management 

The Board of Directors of the Bank has delegated, through the Executive Committee, the 

responsibility of monitodng the credit risk to its Credit Commjttee (incluiling Restructuring 

Committee). Separately, The Risk Management Division, reporting to the Executive Committee, is 

responsible for oversight of the Bank's credit risk, including: 

Formulating credit policies in consultation with business units, covering collateraJ 

requirements, credit assessment, risk grading and reporting, documentary and legal procedures and 

compliance with regulatory and statutory requirements. 

Establishing the authorisation structure for the approvaJ and renewal of credit 

facilities, approval of changes in the contract terms (restmcturing). Authorisation limits are 

aJlocated to levels of credit approvers. Greater credit facilities requrre approvaJ by the rughest level 
Credit Committee, the Executive Committee or Lhe Board of Administrators as appropriate. 

Reviewing and assessing credit risk. Credit Committee assesses all credit exposures in 

excess of designated limits, prior to facilities being ap1lroved or recommended for approval by the 

Board of Directors and/or commjtted to customers. Renewals and reviews of facilities aTe subject to 

Lhe same review process. 

Limiting concentration of exposure to counterparties, geographles and industries (for 
loans and advances to customers) and by issuer, credit classification category, market liquidity and 

cou ntty (for investment securities). 
Reviewing compliance of business units with agreed exposure limits, including those 

for selected industries and product types. 
Providing l'egular 1·eports on the creilit quality of portfolios are provided to the Board 

of Directors and appropriate corrective actions are taken. 

Providing advice, guidance and specialist expertise to business units to promote best 

practice thrnughout the Bank for credit risk management. 

Concentration of credit risk that atises from financial instruments exists for groups of 

counterparties or other third parties when they have similar economic characte,istics that would 

cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic or 

other conditions. The major concentration of credit risk in relation Lo the Bank's loans and advances 

is disclosed below. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 tn 135 form an integral part of these financial statemcnls. 
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
The disclosure of exposures and specific adjustments for expected losses are grouped by portfolios, 

having the below characteristics: 

Legal entities Agriculture CAG 

CSA 
Individuals - personal needs loans fully collateraJised with real 

estate collaterals 

CSN 

CTS 

IP 

ow 
CAP 

CCM 
cco 
CIN 

css 

Individuals - personal needs loans without real estate collaterals 

or not fully covered 

Bridge loans for subsides 

Individuals - Mortgage loans 

Cards/Overdraft 

Public local administrations 

Legal entities Commerce 

Legal entities Construction 

Legal entities Industry 

Legal entities Services 

The table below presents the loans commitments and financial guarantees net of provision 
outstanding at 31 December 2020, at depreciation levels: 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCl Total 
Crediting commitments 

Exposure 3,255,351 175,679 31,305 - 3,462,335 
Provision 20,075 1,043 185 21,303 

Net crecliting commitments 3,235,276 174,636 31,120 - 3,441,032 

Guarantee commitments 

Exposure 589,891 94,217 35,331 719,439 
Provision 2,936 469 148 3,553 
Net guarantee commitments 586,955 93,748 35,183 715,886 

The table below presents the loans commitments and financial guaranlees nel of provision 
outstanding at 31 December 2019, at depreciation levels: 

Stage! Stage 2 Stage •3 Total 

Crediting commitments 

Exposure 3,563,753 L93,844 15,447 3,773,044 
Provision u,951 555 65 12,571 
Net crediting commitments 3,551,802 193,289 15,382 3,760,473 
Guarantee commitments 

Exposure 478,510 40,247 9,675 528,432 

Provision 1,692 142 33 1,867 

Net guarantee commitments 476,818 40,105 9,642 526,565 

The accompanying nntes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral pan of these financial statements. 

Page 53 of 135 
This version of the financial statements is a free Lranslalion from Lhe original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken Lo ensure Lhat Lhe Lranslalion is an accurate rcprcscnLaLion of Lhc original. However, in all mallcn, of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original langua~e version of our report takes precedence over this 
lran8laliun. 



CEC BANK SA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The Bank monitors the concentration of credit risk by geographical regions. An analysis of 
concentrations of credit risk exposures at the reporting date is sbo,vn below (amounts net of 
expected losses): 

Adjustments for 
Gross exposure expected credit loss 

31 Dtc~mb~r 2220 31 De!.l~mb~r 2020 

Bucuresti-Ufov 7,334,874 372,943 

Center 1,675,035 102,145 

North-East 2,076,059 138,799 

North-West 3,324,610 202,766 

South-East 2,948,584 107,526 

South-Muntenia 2,460,132 139,135 

South-West Ollenia 2,027,262 83,860 

West 1,305,106 80,416 

Total 23.151,.6.62 l,~ 

.Adjustments for 
Gross exposure expected credit loss 

31 De~emb~r 2019 31 Q~~emb~t 2019 

Bucurcsti-llfov 6,654,877 225,964 

Center 1,472,743 70,462 

No11h-East 2,114,594 126,964 

North-West 2,917,240 157,261 

South-East 2,471,294 76,297 

South-Muntenia 1,961,833 85,378 

South-West Olleuia 1,930,195 49,888 

West 1,236,295 63,571 

Total 20, 7-5.9 &Z!. 855_.785 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 lo 135 fom1 an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Net exposure 
31 Dett mb~t 2020 

6,961,931 

1,572,890 

1,937,260 

3,121,844 

2,841,058 

2,320,997 

1,943,402 

1,224,690 

21..924..op 

Net exposure 

·n Dec~mb~t go19 

6,428,913 

1,402,281 

1,987,630 

2,759,979 

2,394,997 

1,876,455 

1,880,308 

1, 172,723 

19,90~28.6. 

This version of the financial statements is a free lran..<;lation from the oi-iginal, which was prepared in Romani,m. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation uf information, \1CWS or opinions, the original langua~c version of our rcpo1t tu.kcs precc1knce m·cr this 
translatiun. 



CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts arc in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The split of gross loans and advances lo customers by class and catego1y, as at 31 December 2020 

(gross amounts): 

Sta~ S:t~c~ 2. S:tag~ 3 
Individuals - personal needs loans 

fully collateralised with real estate 

collatero ls 247,856 64,503 33,958 

Individuals - personal needs loans 

½'lthout real estate collaterals or not 

fully covered 1,174,670 57,185 84,226 

Individuals - Mortgage loans 5,351,808 150,921 32,466 

Cards/Overdraft 2w...9.75 ..3Q.Q3A .JA..8..Q3 
Total loans for indi,-iduals 6.995.SQ9 303,543 --105,.453 

Legal enti ties Agricultun' 1,366,313 181,000 264,222 

Pub lic local administrations 3,437,740 520,508 2,547 

Legal entities ludust1y 2,230,439 263,750 437,546 

Legal entities Commerce 1,475,853 170,514 146,150 

Lego! entities Construction 594,485 56,999 69,369 

Legal entitie.s Services 3,283,954 607,461 364,387 
Bridge loans fo r subsides 133,180 ~ ~ 

Total corporate loans and advances 12,521r.9M 1,8l7',071 ~..1.,_629 
Total gross loans and advances J9,517,gz3 2,J.Z0__,_6.J.4 J_,._45z.J~_2 

Collaterals at fair value 24,l2.0,_Q.!3 2~788,984 __2___,142..829 

The OCC'otnpanying notes from pages 9 to 13.'i form a11 integral part of tbcsc financial statcmcnti;. 
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POCI Total 

346,317 

1,316,081 

5,53,5,195 

- ~ -

- .7,464,305 

1,811,535 

3,960,795 

56,643 2,988,378 

1,792,517 

720,853 

4,255,802 

- 15Z..4.ZZ -
,Sa._~ J,&68'i',35-7 

.J).6;6-43 _ga,LS.1,6-62 

J.17,ggs 29,169,_~1 

This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possihle 
care has hcen taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the origiOlJI. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information. views or opinions, the original Janguaie ,-ersion of our report t.ike.~ prttcdencc oYer this 
transl.ition. 



CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 t DECEMBER 2020 

(AJJ amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FLNANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The guarantees value, presented in the tables from pages 55 - 66, includes the guarantee value 
accepted to be taken into account as a risk reducing factor in order to determine adjustments for 
expected losses; in case of loan with guarantees issued by guarantee funds/ Eximbank with terms 
regarding the risk sharing in the foreclosure process of the other guarantees related lo the loan, 
guarantees value is the one resulted after pari-passu principle application. 

The split of gross loans and advances to customers by class and category, as at 31 December 2019 

(gross amounts): 

Individuals - personal needs loans 

fully collateralised with real estate 

collaterals 

lnd1viduals - personal needs loans 

withm1t real estate collaterals or not 

fully covered 

lndivi.duaJs - Mortgage loans 

Cards/O, erdraft 

Total loans for individuals 

Legal entities Agriculture 

Public local administrations 

Legal entities Industry 

Legal entities Commerce 

Legal entities Construction 

Legal entities St-rvices 

Bridge loans for subsides 

Total corporate loans and advances 

Total gross loans and advances 

Collaterals at fair value 

S tage ,l 

266,150 

1,049,637 

4,664,173 

M1..2l2. 
6,22Z&.Z.§ 

1,284,971 

3,803,943 

1,776,944 

1,291,709 

436,942 

2,831,198 

13§,483 

11,562~0 

17,7~9.,_~q 

20,055~ 

Stage 2 Stage 3 

36,062 

60,869 42,439 

167,266 29,31.7 

~ 9,.g!9. 

3.22,6u 117..&37 

152,924 300-42.3 

137,520 2,080 

283,960 335,135 

88,~{00 92,601 

78,043 66,374 

605,095 357,514 

~ 7,192 

1,368.238 1,16~ 

1~4.9 1, 2,78..35g 

2,633_,20.2 1,999,0;1.9 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 fonn an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Total 

1,152,945 

4,860,756 
229,925 

§_.~2..!t 

1,738,318 

3,943,54:~ 

2,396,039 

1,472,610 

581,359 

3,793,807 

1.§fum 

J.4,PJll..24.7 

:./.Q,15_9,-07 l 

24,(i8,7....83.8 

This version of lhe financial statemcnl~ is a free translation from the original, which was prepurc<l in Romanian. All possihlc 
care has been t.akcn to eru.1.1re that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. Howc,·cr, in all matters ot 
interprctatfon i,f infonnalion, views or opinions, the original language version of our report take$ precedence over this 
translation. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER2020 
(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The expected credit loss related to loans and advances to customers as at 31 December 2020: 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 

Individuals - personal needs loans 
fully collateralised with real estate 
collaterals 1,569 1,257 10,109 
Individuals - personal needs loans 
without real estate collaterals or 
not fully covered 12,115 2,280 53,335 
Individuals - Mortgage loans 6,572 J,193 8,587 
Cards/Overdraft ~ . ..1.522 .1.1..m 
Total adjustments for expected 

credit loss for individuals 23.4J~o 6,302 --83..75.6 

Legal entities Agriculture 21,076 11,956 157,496 
Public local administrations 15,166 3,571 1,743 
Legal entities l adustry 74,203 39,256 259,508 
Legal entities Commer('c 25,748 12,986 57,462 
Legal entities Construction 14,600 4,725 35,199 
Legal entities Services 98,513 87,588 188,074 
Bridge loans for subsides -19.! ~ ..4..923 
TotaJ adjustments for expected 

credit loss for companies 24949_7 160~0 204,'l<IS 
Total adjustments for expected 

credit loss 2~ 166,432 -~,201 

Gross loans and advances to clients l 9',517"67-3 _2.,120.614 J.,4~ 
Net loans and advances to clients 19,244,.31.g !.954.,18.2 Pfill.23.! 

The accompanyinA notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of Lh<'Se financial statements. 
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fQ_cJ Total 

12,935 

67,730 
16,352 

- ..1Q,5Q1 -

- ~18 

190,528 
20,480 

372,967 
96,196 

54,524 
374,175 

- ~ -

,bl.14,{1]2. 

1,222,59,0 

56➔-643 -23,151,662 

56.643 ~72 

This version of lhc financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken lo ensure tha1 the translation is an accurate rcpm;cntation of the original. HowcYcr, in all matters of 
interpretation of informal ion, views or opinions, the oiiginal language version of ow- report lakes precedence over this 
rr.1ns.lation. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FINANCIAL RISK.MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The expected credit loss related to loans and advances provided 

31 December 2019: 

Stage J Stage 2 Stage 3 

Individuals - personal needs loans 
fully collateralised with real estote 862 1,592 17,426 

collaterals 
Individuals - personal needs loans 
without real estate collaterals or uot 6,261 1,828 29,623 
fully covered 

Individuals - Mortgage loans 4,654 1,652 14,675 
Cards/Overdraft ~ ~ 'Z...!.91 
Total adjustments for expected 

14,2.02 5.5..15 6-8,915 
credit loss for individuals 

Legal entities Agriculture 9,158 2,924 167,991 
Public local administrations 16,409 591 1,852 
Legal e ntities Industry 23,257 10,037 198,432 
Legal entities Commerce 12,515 3,356 31,833 
Legal entities Construction 4,324 1,90 L 36,790 

Legal entities Services 29,421 35,283 175,557 
Bridge loans for subsides 24 37 5,461 

Tota.I adjustments for expected 
95,J_Q_8_ 5.4...,lgg ~ 

credit loss for companies 

Total adjustments for expected 
109.3w 59.M.4 686,831 

credit loss 

Gross lo11ns and advances to clients lJ-,7~,Bp~ !t-~J8!1..9 J,2.7.8.,356 
Net loans and advances to clients 17,6&).5.56 :l,,23!,205 59l,52S 

The f1ccompanying notes from pages 9 \CJ 135 form an integral part of these financial stalcmcnt~. 
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to customers as at 

Total 

19,880 

37,712 

20,981 

lQ.Q59 

88.63~ 

180,073 
18,852 

231,726 

47,704 
43,015 

240,261 

5,522 

'.222.!53 

asszss 

~QZ! 

L2~2-0.3,286 

This version of the financial statements i,, a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. A1J possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the transl:lli(.la is an accurate representation ur the original. However, in all malter~ of 
interpretation of information, views or opinion:-, the original language ,·crsi<>n of nur report take.~ precedence over this 
translation. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FlNANCIAL RISK MAN AG EM ENT (CONTINUED) 

Loans and advances to customers for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial 
recognition (Stage 1): 

Lnternal rating 

31 Decembet· 2020 Vervgood Good Doubtful 

Cndividuals - personal needs lo1rns fully 
201,811 34,886 ll,159 

collateralised with real estate collnternls 
Individuals - personal needs loans without 

593,323 356,576 224,771 
real estate collaterals or not fully covered 

individuals - Mortgage loans 3,226,598 1,663,843 461,367 

Cards/Overdraft 101,234 llQ,Z~a ..a.99.3 
Total gross loans to individuals 4,122,966 2,166,053 706,290 

~ 1.524 --3.&8.s 
Adjustment for expected credit 

individuals 

loss for 201,811 34,886 u ,159 

Total net loans to individuals 4 ,110,1.55 2,158 ,489 70 3,205 

Legal entities Agriculture 27l,830 971,346 1.1,3, 137 

Public local administrations 3,255,073 177,842 4,825 

Legal entities Industry 1,198,133 545,532 486,774 

Legal entities Commerce 361,700 991,884 122,269 

Legal entities Construction 130,992 360,294 103,199 

Legal entities Services 862,976 1,666,592 754,386 

Bridge loans for subsides Ja8.6.2 ..34..29.Q ..1.4..563 

Total loans to corporate 6,164,571 4,748,280 1,609,113 

Adjustment for expected crrclit loss for 
9.3...1£3 .!J..L!34 4.4.&&Q. 

companies 

TotaJ net loans to corporate 6,070,848 4 ,637, 146 1,564,473 

Total gross 10,287,537 6,9L4,333 2,315,403 

Total adjustment s for expected credit loss lQQ,534 _.u.8...69.8 ...42.n5 

Tota] net loans 10,181,003 6 ,795,635 2,:.e67,678 

Collaterals at fair value U,Q93,201 9.559,.199 ~.4~ 

The accompanyin!l, notes from pages 9 to 13.5 form an intcl\ral part of these financial statements. 
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Total 

247,856 

1,174,670 

5,351,808 
22Q,925 

6,995,309 

~ 

247,856 

6,971,849 

i,366,3.1.3 
3,437,740 
2,230,439 

1,475,853 

594,485 
3,283,954 

!33,!aQ 

12,521,964 

249,49z 

12,272,467 

19,517,273 

~2'1,952 

19,244,316 

24,120,0!,3 

This version of the financial statements i;s a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care ha11 been taken to en.,urc that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information. vit'"'" nr opinions. the original .language \'e~ion of c)u1· report takes precedence over thb 
translation. 



CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amotmts are in RON thousands unless otherwise s tated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

inte rna l rating 

31 D~cember 2019 

Individuals - persomtl needs loans fulJy 
collateralised with real estate collaterals 

Individuals - personal needs loans without 

real estate collaterals or not fully covered 

Individuals - Mortgage loans 

Cards/Overdraft 

Total gross loans to individuals 

Adjustment for expected credit loss for 

individuals 

Total net loans to individuals 

Legal entities Agriculture 

Public local administrations 

Legal entities Industry 

Legal entities Commerce 

Legal entities Construction 

Legal entities Services 

Bridge loans for subsides 

Total loans to corporate 

Adjustment for expected credit loss for 

corporate 

Total ne t loans to corporate 

Total gross 

Total adjustments for expected credit loss 

Total net loans 

Collaterals at fair value 

Very good 

217,536 

520,739 

2,937,571 
109,983 

3,785,829 

330,447 
3,099,321 

903,367 

324,375 

137,919 
1,267,793 

fuL.Q3.Q 

6,132,858 

45..3.'.ZQ 

6,0 87,479 

9,918,687 

53..!9.4 

9,865,4 93 

10.,3..9,5,].J..Q 

Good 

37,625 

334,839 

l,331,799 
125,947 

1,830,210 

~ 

1,825,537 

752,336 
704,622 
612,046 

783,891 

278.481 
966,662 

.4-.4..4.85 
4,142,523 

4,105,856 

5,972,733 
41.34.Q 

5,931,393 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Doubtful 

10,989 

194,059 

394,803 
11,786 

611,637 

.!.214 

Total 

266,150 

1,049,637 

4,664,173 
~ 

6,227,676 

609,923 6,213,4 74 

202,188 1,284,971 

3,803,943 
261,531 1,776,944 

183,443 1,291,709 

20,542 436,942 
596,743 2,83t,198 

22,362 136,483 

1,286,809 11,562,190 

13,062 ~ 

1,273,747 11,467,082 

1,898,446 17,789,866 
!4...ZZQ 109,310 

1,883,670 17,680,556 

2,7~ 2Q,Q.55..6.9-7 

This \'Crsion of the financial statemenls is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that lhe transJaLion is an ,1ccuratc representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
intcrprclalion of informalion, views or opinions, Lhc original language vcrsicm of our report takes precedence O\'Cr thi~ 
translation. 



CEC BANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise sta ted) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

During the analysis process, both qualitative factors (the quality of the shareholders, the assessment 
of the level of qualification and continuity vt'ithin the company of the management, the 
concentration of the clients, the debtor's experience in managing the borrowed funds) and 
qualitative factors (current liquidity, solvency, return on turnover, general indebtedness, hedging 
rate) are considered. 

Thus, taking into account the quali:tative and qualitative factors of the bank, a client can obtain 
between o and 34 points. 

For the "very good" rating, the bank allocates from 27 to 34 points corresponding to the 
financial performance class A; 

For the "good" rating, the ban.k allocates from 20 to 26 points corresponding to the financial 
pcdormancc class B; 

For the "doubtfuJ'' rating, the bank allocates from o Lo 19 points corresponding to the 
following petformance classes: 

• Financial performance class C, if allocated from 14-19 points; 
• Financial performance class D, if assigned from 7-13 points; 
• Financial performance class E, if assigned from o-6 points. 

For individuals, the financial perlormance is determined on the basis of the client's rating obtained 
when the loan is granted, and can be changed according to the fluctuations of the income. 

For the "very good" rating, the bank allocates over 86 points, corresponding to the "minimum 
risk" rating and risk class A; 

For the "good" rating, the bank allocates 70-85 points corresponding lo the "low risk" rating 
and risk class B; 

For the "doubtful" rating, the bank allocates from 0-70 points d ifferently: 
• correspondi ng to the "average risk" rating, the risk category C, if they were allocated from 50-
69 points; 
• correspondi ng to the "h igh risk" rating, the risk category D, if they were allocated from 45-49 
points; 
• correspondi ng to the "very high risk" rating, risk class E, if assigned from o to 44 points. 

(ii) Loans and advances for which credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition 

but which are not impaired (Stage 2) 

Based on past experience, outstanding loans with a debt service of more than 30 days at the end of 
the cunent or any of the previous two months, loans included in the observation list, restructured 
performing loans, loans that have been classified as impaired loans at the end of any of the previous 
two months, the exposure of a client for which changes in the credit/client situation have been 
identified as compared to the situation at the credit granting date without these constituting a 
default event or predicting the non-recovery of the claim in full without recourse to collaleral 
enforcement, are classified as loans for which credit risk has increased significantly since initial 
recognition if 110 impairment indicators have been identified leading to their classification as 
impaired loans. 

The accompanying notes fn>m pages 9 lo 135 form an integral part oflhci;c financial statements. 

Page 61 of 135 
This version of the financial statements is a free Lranslalinn from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been lakcn lo ensure Lhal the Lranslation is an accurate rcprcsenlaliun of Lhe original. However, in all maLLers of 
inlerprclalion of information, views or opinions, I.he original language version of our report Lakes prccc<lcncc over this 
translation. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR 1HE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FlNANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Based on the internal collective assessment methodology, the Bank determines adjustments for 
expected loss over the life of the loans for which credit risk has increased significantly since initial 
recognhion. 

Th.e gross amounts of loans and advances classified in Stage 2 based on debt service are as follows: 

31..= 
31 December 2020 o days 1-·:w days 60 days 

Individuals - personal needs loans fully 
collateralised v.rith real estate collaterals 27,324 17,130 12,132 
Individuals - personal needs loans without real 
estate collaterals or not fully covered 9,192 13,219 22,687 
Individuals - Mortgage loa11S 62,085 49,319 29,982 
Cards/Overdraft -11.&91_ ~ ~ 
Total loans to individuals J.16,292 ~ -6.8..723 
Expected credit loss to individuals 2,581 ~ -1,33.Q 

Total net loans for individuals 113,711 85,733 67,387 

Legal entities Agriculture 114,579 24,077 39,393 

Public loca I administrations 481,856 37,464 

Legal entities Industry 250,549 5,907 6,253 

Legal entities Commerce 119,907 20,327 2,691 

Legal entities Construction 50,949 4,408 1,267 

Legal entities Services 493,509 102,955 8,894 

Bridge loans for subsides ~ ..Ll39 lMs 
Total corporate loans 1,5,22,.19.6 J,96,.2;27 _5.-9,343 

Expected credit loss to corporate !32,Q44 ~ ~ 
Total ne t loans for corporate 1,394,152 175,974 54,084 

Total gross ~4~ -28:l,.7.68 ...12.8..o.6.6 
Total expected credit loss 134,625 22,061 M.95 
Total net loans 1,507,863 261,707 121,471 
Collaterals at fair value 2,05~892 -4-4..l.,ill3 ~ 

The accompanying notes Erom -pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these f1nancial s tatements. 
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61-

90 days Total 

7,917 64,503 

12,087 57,185 

9,535 150,921 

~ ..3.Q...Q3..4 

-3M?31 ~ 
__6_g_z 6,302 

30,410 297,241 

2,951 181,000 

1,188 520,508 

1,041 263,750 

27,589 170,514 

375 56,999 

2,103 607,461 

Ji -1M3.9 
~.5 1,812,Qi'.l 

2,524 .l.QQ..1:.ill 

32,731 1,656,94J 

66,292 2,120,614 

-3,151 166,432 

63,141 1,954,182 

112,015 2,;288 9813 

This version of the financial statements is a free Lranslalion from the original, which wus prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that lhc translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interprctatit>n of information, 1·icws or opinions, Lhe original language version of our report takes precedence u,·cr this 
translation. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

3.!..: 

31 De cember 2019 odays 1-30 days 6o days 

Individuals - personal needs loans fully 
25,291 23,753 17,844 

collateralised with real estate collaterals 

Individuals - perso11al needs loans without real 
9,708 14,206 24,741 

estate collaterals or not fully covered 
lndividuals - Mortgage loans 55,529 57,061 40,131 
Cards/Overdraft 3,152 ~ 4..3.!Q 

Total loans to individuals 93.-6.8-0 ~ -3 B.1_,.02.6 

Expected credit loss to individuals .L53Q 1,672 L535 

Total net loans for individuals 9 2,150 96,6 21 85,491 

Legal entities Agriculture 129,679 10,656 8,887 

Public local administrations 4,844 91,650 41,025 

Legal entities Industry 219,937 49,902 10,809 

Legal entities Commerce 60,644 12,290 13,681 

Legal enti'ties Construction 70,634 4,045 1,451 

Legal entities Services 519,107 50,177 16,909 

Bridge loans for subsides 19.&37 2,075 s_gg_ 

Total corporate loans 1,024.---4.82 220,795 93~.1 

Expected credit loss to corporate 4.1&!Q MZ5 M91. 
Total net loans for corpo rate 9 80,872 2 l4,320 90,79 4 

Total gross ;J,,U8,l6.2 :ll9,qa8 18oc>317 

Total expected credit loss ~ .8...!A1 4.,.Q3_g_ 

Total net loans 1,0 73,022 310,941 l76,28 5 

Collaterals at fair value 1,88:z.~65 38.4.323 225,._4& 

The accompan~fog notes from pages 9 to 1:35 form an integral pan of these fin:mcial statements. 
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6 1-
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1,913 78,043 

18,902 605,095 

155 22,396 

~ ... 67-0 1,368,238 

l.5il ~ 

2 8 ,123 1,314,109 

~ J,,6.90,84.9. 

2,325 5.9..,.QM 

70 ,957 l ,631,205 

~3 2,633,2.02 
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translation. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

(iii) Depreciated loans and advances (Stage 3 and POCI), loans and advances to customers that 
present objective impairment indicators according to accounting policy 2.7 (vi): 

1-30 31-60 61-90 91-180 
31 December 2020 o day days days days ~ 

Individuals - personal needs 
loans fully collateralised with 4,429 5,688 4,453 2,663 7,246 

real estat e collaterals 
Individuals - personal needs 
loans \\~tbout real estate 2,483 1,900 90:3 571 20,553 

collaterals or not fully covered 
Individuals - Mortgage loans 7,934 2,571 3,270 1,037 5,935 

Cards/Overdraft 2,110 .153 ..32 ...45 2,523 

Total gross loans to individuals --1..~2 ~ ~ ~ ~ 

Expected credit loss to 
..4..13Q ..3..695 .bQQQ 1,205 11,061 

individuals 
Total net loans for 
i.nclividuals 

12,226 7,017 6,063 3 ,111 25,196 

Legal et1tities Agricttlture 59,757 17,841 1,110 19,630 583 
Public local administrations 602 81 

Legal entities lndustry 238,949 
28,481 295 1,516 

Legal entities Commerce 15,984 1,431 324 42,250 6,750 

Legal entities Construction 8 ,114 2,857 10,347 2,307 

Legal entities Services 123,915 24,075 80 672 22,988 

Bridge loans for subsides 3,686 -1351 - ...9.43 -3.89 -
Total gross loans to corporate 

451.0oz -7A.a.2-4 ~6 ~425 ~ entities 
Expected credit loss to corporate 159,822 ..3Q..92! --5.,.W_ --9..A.M .12,817 
Total net loans for corp01·ate 291,135 43,853 6,945 54,091 21,797 

Total gross .®1.9h3 J3s,J.3p J?.0,8.1-9 6.7,811 70,87.l 

Total expected credit loss 164,602 ~ .:z..au .1.Q..Q.Q9 ~ 

Total net loans 303,361 50,870 13,008 57,202 46,993 

Collaterals at fair value -299.,331 _14~ ~ 127,74;3 ,,9,Q,.3_.frl 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Page 64 of 135 

181-360 
days 

4,716 

24,611 

3,021 

..3.QZQ 

.35,_418. 

~ 

21,252 

9,044 
1,864 

1,478 

36,167 

3,347 
12,062 

.4 

.=2_3,,966 

~ 

30,546 

s.9,38...4 

A.2..5.8.§ 

51,798 

..!3U53 

Over 
·360 days 

4,763 

33,205 

8,698 

6.865 

53.,531 

-4.Milll 

6,832 

156,257 

223,470 

43,244 

42,397 
.180,595 

__g_,_gg_z 

~4~ 

452,250 
195,510 

,.1P.l,79_d 

499,449 

202,342 

_,918,240 

This vct-sion of the financial statements is a free tnmslation from lhe original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation or the original. J lowcvcr, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language ,·crsion of our report takes precedence m·er t his 
tr.inslation. 
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~ 
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~ 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(AJJ amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

1-30 31-60 61-90 91-180 181-360 Over 
31 December 2019 oday days days days days days 360 davs 

Individuals - personal needs 
loans fully collateralised with 5,907 7,187 4,454 5,60:3 6,978 2,315 3,618 
real estate collaterals 
Individuals - personal needs 
loans without real estate 2,874 1,826 591 1,746 14,815 14,405 6,182 

collaterals or not fully covered 
individuals - Mortgage loans 6,038 2,145 l,994 4,827 6,064 2,055 6,194 
Cards/Overdraft 2,381 .il4 sg fili 2,711 6&12 9.47. 
Total gross loans to individuals ~ g,gzg ~ 12,244 30,56.8 2l,Z2l ~ 

Expected credit loss to 
9,202 ~ .4AQ.9 8,400 1Q.25Q 1.8.,gQs ll.25.! individuals 

Total net loans for 
7,998 2,682 3,844 19,818 3,516 individuals 4,974 5,290 

Legal entities Agriculture 45,951 6,970 3,723 48,479 5,903 22,616 166,781 
Public local administrations 2,080 
Legal entities lndustry 58,153 30,020 79 15,154 34,493 21,963 175,273 
Legal entities Commerce 1,899 42,281 102 2,366 4,086 10,676 31,191 
Legal entities Construction 2,844 6,153 1,301 833 5,177 7,955 42,111 
Legal entities Services 30,181 43,345 35,518 25,787 58,745 i9,964 143,974 
Bridge loans for subsides 1,JJ7 3Q - .6.411 127 2.287 1M -
Total gross loans lo corporate 

~45 ~ ~ M.Q3Q 110.66.J. ,as,£tfil 559,,,494 entities 
Expected credit loss to corporate s&.8m ~ lQA.Q! ~ 51:380 5Q1m 32LlM5 
Total net loans for corporate 87,338 96,485 30,322 46,734 59,281 34,794 188,449 

Total gross ~45 14_0,,JW 42,.8.14 10.6,.280 141,229 J...0-7.J..8.2 5]6._435 

Total expected credil loss fubQQg_ 38,612 14,810 ~ 26.13.Q ~ 382,696 

Total net loans 95,336 101,459 33,004 50,578 79,099 38,310 193,739 

Collaterals at fair value ~ 3n.§fil 101.742 ~41,6. ~ ~ 8.o,9,,6J.9 

Upon initia l recognition of loans and advances, the fair value of collateral is based on valuation 
techniques commonly used for the corresponding assets. In subsequent periods, the fair value is 
updated by reference to market price or indexes of similar assets. 

Fair value of the real estate and other type (inventory or equipment) collatera ls at the end of the 
reporting period was estimated through haircuts applied to the value established by internal 
Valuation Department of the Bank. Applied haircuts depend on type of collateral, date of latest 
collateral valuation report, cli.ent's legal procedures (if any), collateral location, selling costs and 
time to sell. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial s tatements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The types of collaterals accepted by the Bank as for 31 December 2020 are presented in the table 
below: 

Type of collateral (%) Collaterals Collaterals for 
Collateral for balance off balance 

value sheet sheet 
exposures exposures 

Guarantees received from 

public administration and 2,698,188 8.37 2,585,790 1t2,398 

related entities 

Guarantees received from other 
234,267 1,682 

financial lnstitutions 
235,949 0.73 

Real estate guarantees 22,927,577 71.15 21,006,696 1,920,881 

Mortgages guarantees 
(movable assets, i_nventocy, 3,940,4 19 12.23 3,587,372 353,047 
cash collateral) 

Other (assignment of 
2,424.037 2,s.g 1.754,925 669.112 

receivables) 

Total 32,226,170 100 29,169,0,50 3,052,120 

The types of collaterals accepted by the Bank as for 31 December 2019 are presented in the table 
below: 

T:yJ2e of collateral (%) Collaterals Collaterals for 
ColJateral for balance 

value sheet 
exposures 

Guarantees received from 
public administration and 1,991,104 6.79 1,976,754 
related entities 

Guarantees received from other 
200,136 o.68 199,674 

financial lnstitutions 

Real estate guaranlees 20,477,108 69.78 18,996,244 
Mortgages guarantees 
(movable assets, mventory. 3,949,291 13.46 3,515,168 
cash collateral) 

Other (assignment of 
2.726,273 9.29 2,089,349 

receivables) 

Total 29..,.143,912 .l.QQ ~ 

The accompanyi11g note~ fr<11n pages 9 to 135 form an integral pa.it of these financial statements. 
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This version of the financial statements is ;i free tTanslation from the c,riginal, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that' the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over Lhis 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Anulysis 011 the impact of tl1e COVID-19 pandemic 011 lhe loan portfolio 

In the context of the pandemic COVID_ 19, in line with the measures adopted in European states, 
the Bank used both public and ptivate moratoriums to support customers who have eXJ)erienced 
ce1tain difficulties related to the liquidity sho1tfall generated by the state of emergency/state of alert 
and the restrictions imposed by the authorities. The moratoriums applied by the Bank comply with 
the provisions of the EBA Guidelines GL 2020/02 on legislative and non-legislative moratoriums 
applied to the payment of loans in the context of the COVID_19 crisis, as amended by EBA GL 
2020/15. Deferrals to payment on the basis of legislative moratoriums granted to clients in 2020 

were carried out in accordance with Government Emergency Ordinance no. 37/2020 on the 
granting of facilities for loans granted by credit h1stitutions and non-bank financial institutions to 
certajn categories of borrowers. 

The Bank has been implementing defenal arrangements in accordance with the legislative 
requirements and regulatmy framework since April 2020. The hank applied the public moratorium 
0egislative) introduced by the government decree for individuals and companies, as well as the 
private (non-legislative) morato1ium carried oul at the level of the R.BA, only for comparues. 

The Financial Stability Committee recommended that regulators use the ilexibility of international 
standards in applying the criteria for significant credit risk increase ("SICR"), i.e. the stage 
classification of exposures for which deferral measures have been approved. The Basel Committee 
on Banking Supervision (BCBS) announced a delay in the implementation of the Basel Ill package 
until 1 ,January 2023, and the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has issued a 

guidance 011 the application ofIFRS 9 in the context of the COVTD-19 crisis. 

Thus, the Bank has not automatically reclassified to stage 2, that is, stage 3 exposures for which 
defenal measures were approved, but the assignment by stage was carried out on the basis of an 
analysis which considered the differentiation between borrowers affected by a short-term liquidity 
cdsis and those for which the effects of the pandemic represent a significant increase in credit risk 
for the life of the crerut, with a view to the appropriate classification in stage 2 or stage 3 of these 
borrowers. 

The Bank's analysis was focused on the economic sectors most affected by the COVID-19 pandemic 
(restaurants, hotels, tourism, events, but also other services, industry, construction), in order to 
identify and reclassify the corresponding stage 2 and slage 3 respectively. 

At 3u2.2020 the balance sheet exposures of loans to customers that have applied for suspension of 
payments in the context of the COVID_ 19 pandemic during the year 2020 shall be as follows: 

Customer type Stage 1 Stageg Stage3 

Individuals 260,524 30,334 3,087 
Legal entities Agriculture /Public local 

83,269 155,870 81 
administrations 

Corporate entities 30,394 149,866 64,092 

Small and Medium-sized Euterprises 1,288,152 328,512 226,68.5 

Total J.,662.339 .o.64,sB.2. ~.3,9.A.2 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 fonn an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(AU amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The b reakdown was made taking into account the financial s ituation of the clients, before the 
COVID_ 19 crisis, but also the situation after the events arising from the crisis, and objectively 
estimating the prospect of prolonging liquictity deficits in the medium and long term and turning 
them into financial difficulties, fo r the purposes of assessing the significant increase in credit risk or 
the occurrence of improbability of payment. 

With regard to the type of credit granted to inctividuaJs: 

Exposure type Stage .1 S:tagt 2 Stagt 3 Total 

Guaranteed consumer loalls 14,590 4,318 582 19,490 

Unsecured consumer loan 2,5,672 3,560 872 30,104 

Mortgage loan 220,263 22,455 1,633 244,351 

Total :J.fi.o .525 ~3 3~ gg~ 

The structure of the loan portfolio which benefited from the moratoriums during 2020 in terms of 
debt service shall be as follows at 31.12.2020: 

Customer ty pe 

lndividuals 

Legal entities Agriculture 

Corporate entities 
Small and Medium-sized 

Enterprises 

Total 

odays 

241,354 

239,138 

244,352 

J,716,729 

2,44.!,.5ll 

1-30 days 

47,545 

52,505 

l0.Q,,Q5Q 

30-90 days 

3,940 

73,130 

71,SXlJl 

over 90 davs 

1,JOS 

8 1 

Based on the loan portfoLio existing at 31.12.2020, the Bank carried out a st ress scenario on crectit 
risk in the context of the pandemic COVID_ 19. The scenario takes into account the deterioration in 
credit quality for customers who requested the suspension of payments in the context of the 
pandemic COVID_ 19 during 2020, that is, the significant increase in credit risk compared to the 
time of gra nting for 20% of loans classified in Stage J and the depreciation of 50% ofloans classified 
in Stage 2 and .implicitly the reassessment of adjustments for expected losses for those loans. 

The accompanying note.~ from pages 9 lo 135 form an integral part of lhc~e financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The application of the stress factor as described above causes the level of the expected loss 
adjustments to be increased by RON 118,.,6 million, respectively RON 28,84 million for loans that 
have migrated from stage 1 to stage 2 and RON 89,72 million for loans that have migrated from 
stage 2 to stage 3. 

Adjus tments for 
Adjustments for 

ex'Pected credit 
ex-pected credit loss 

Balance sheet loss before 
after scenario 

Migration e..'-'POSUre scenario Impact 

Stage 1-Stage 2 332,630 7.505 36,341 28.836 

Stage 2-Stage 3 329,294 41.553 131 .273 89.719 

Total 661,924 ~ .:!c(;>-7,614 118.,5,55 

The increase in the level of expected credit losses under the scenario leads to a insign ificant decrease 
(below 1 pp) in the tota l own funds ratio, an irrelevan t decrease for the overall capital requirement 
(OCR) minim um of t5,45%. 

Assumptions and techniques used for estimating expected credit loss: 

As at 3 1 December 2020, the average probability of default over 12 mon ths assessed to the loans 

portfolio and used for determining adjustments for expected credit loss is : 

Individuals 

Corporate entities 5. u% 

rn determining the cumulative default probabiHty (CPD) curve to incorporate updated estimates of 
macroeconomic facto rs, the following scenarios were used: 

- t he baseline scenario with a 85% probabiHty of realization, using the latest macroeconm:nic 
forecasts published by the World Bank. Econom.jc growth of -5.0% in 2020, 3.5% in 2021, 4.1% in 
2022 were proj ected for 2020; 

- the pessimistic scenario with a probability of s %, which takes into account the 10 % increase in the 
amplitude of economic growi:h as mentioned in the base case scenario (for 2020 estimates: -5.5 % in 
2020, 3 .85 % in 2021 and 4.51 % in 2022); 

- the optimistic scenario, with a 10% probability, which takes into account the use of more op timistic 
macroeconomic forecasts than those p ublished by the World Bank (e.g. IMF, CNSP, European 
Commission ) or the 15% decrease in the amplitude of economic growth as mentioned in the baseline 
scenario (for 2020 estimates, the macroeconomic forecast published by the IMF, i .e.: -4.80% in 
2020, 4.60% in 2021 and 3.50% in 2022). 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral pu1t of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

In addition to the inherent uncertainty of the estimation, the economic effects of the pandemic have 
caused increased unce1tainties, in particular, in terms of macroeconomic forecasts and their 
likelihood of occurrence, and therefore the actual results may be significantly different from those 
expected. The Bank considers that these forecasts are the best estimate of the possible results. 

Sensitivity analysis of expected loss adjustments due to changes m macroeconomic factors at 
31.12.2020: 

Balance sheet exposures Scenario t Recorded Scenario 2 Scenario 3 
Individuals 7,492,832 7,492,832 7,492,832 7,492,832 

Corporate entities 15,638,223 15,638,223 15,638,223 15,638,223 

Total -23.1.'U,Q55 23,l.'31,055 .63..!3!..Q55 ~WS!) 

Adjustments for expected 
credit loss Scenario t Recorded Scenario 2 Scenario 3 
Individuals 100,956 101,008 101,038 J0l,171 

Corporate entities 1,108,027 1,109,246 1,uo,075 L,ll3,57l 

Total ..1..208.983 1.210,25~ 1,2J.l,11J !:,214,742 

Scenario 1 envisages a 75% probability of the baseline scenario, 5% of the pessimistic scenario and 
20% of the optimistic scenario. 

Scenario 2 envisages a 75% probability oftbe baseline scenario, 15% of the pessimistic scenario and 
10% of the optimistic scenario. 

Scenario 3 envisages a 45% probability of the baseline scenario, 50% of the pessimistic scenario and 
5% of the optimistic scenario. 

In view of the difficult-to-estimate negative effect of the COVID 19 pandemic, the Bank bas made 
some adjustments to the expected credit loss estimation model, namely the application of post­
model expected credit loss adjustment coefficients for loans classified in stage 2 according Lo the risk 
associated with economic sectors, as well as the declassification of customers, which, although not 
falling within the regulated criteria for assessing the significant increase in credit risk, raise some 
concerns about future performance in the context of lhe extension of the Covid_19 pandemic. The 
quantitative effect of the measures mentioned was to increase the expected loss adjustments by 
aboul RON ll 1 million. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 D ECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

As al 31 December 20191 the average probability of default over 12 months assessed to the loans 
portfolio and used for determining adjustments for expected credit loss is : 

Individuals 2.26% 

Corporate entities 3.40% 

The default cumulative curve is estimated by the Bank for the next maximum 420 months, based on 
the defa ult rate of the homogenous loan portfolios in last 60 months and by taking into 
consideration the impact of the gross domestic product (GDP) evolution estimated by World Bank 
for the period 2019 -2021 on the default rate. The computation of the default cumulative curve 
assumes a linear trend of macroeconomic factors for the entire lifetime of the loan, which in fact 
corresponds to a hypothesis according to which throughout this period, the e>..-istence of a single 

economic cycle is expected. In order to complete the calculation regarding in anticipation 
information included in the cumulative defauJt curve in order to capture the existence of several 
economic cycles during its duration, two scenar:ios were used: 
- a scenario with a probability of 70% achievement that takes into account the evolution of GDP 

according to the World Bank estimates for the next 3 years, respectively 4.1% for 2019, 3.6% for 
2020 and 3.3% fo r 2021; 

- an alternative scenario with a 30% probability of achievement that take into consideration a 0% 

growth of GDP for the entire period for which there are estimates. 

Sensitivity analysis of expected loss adjustments due to changes in macroeconomic factors at 
31.12.2019 (excluding expected loss adjustments due to contract related accessoties): 

Balance sheet exposu res Scenario 1 Recorded Scen ario 2 

Individuals 6,651,078 6,651,078 6,651,078 
Corporate entities 14,007,225 14,007,225 14,007,225 
Total ~ 20,6~03 20,k5.8.3Q3 

Adjustments for expected credit loss Scenario 1 Recorded Scenario 2 

Individuals 82,060 82,697 83,740 
Corporate entities 751,962 761,261 770,643 
Total §34,022 843.958 854_.3.83 

For 2019, a scenario with a probability of 70% was used to determine the impact of macroeconomic 
facto rs on the cumulative probability of default (CPD) curve, represented by the evolution of GDP 
over the next 3 years according to World 13ank forecasts and an alternative scenario with a 30% 

probability of achievement, which is projected to see a 0% GDP growth over the entire forecast 
period. 

The accompanying notes from pa)!;es 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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(All amounts are in RON thousands unless o therwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
Scenarios J and 2 envisage a probability of achieving 20% and, respectively, 40% of the alternative 
scenario of GDP growth of 0% over the entire forecast period. 

Reside ntial m o rtgage le nding 

The tables below classify credit cxposmes from mortgage loans and advances to retail customers by 
ranges of loan-to-value (LTV) ratio. LTV is calculated as the ratio of the gross amount of the loan -

or the amount committed for loan commitments - to the value of the collateral. The gross amounts 
exclude any expected credit Joss. The value of the collateral excludes any adjustments for obtaining 

and selling the collateral. The vaJue of the collateraJ for residential mortgage loans is the fair value 
that is determined at least once every three years based on evaluation reports. 

The ratio between loans and related real estate guarantees (loan-to-value-L1V) at 31 December 
2020: 

LTV Balance sheet exposure Off balance sheet expos use 

< 60% 1,293,905 2,558 

61-80% 2,092,206 13,387 

81-100% 2,296,294 3,994 

101-120% 46,636 

121-140% 9,460 98 

> 140% 1Q.!QQ 283 
Total 5,.7-48,667 20.820 

The ratio between loans and related real estate guarantees (loan-to-value-LTV) at 31 December 

2019: 

LTV Balance sheet exposure Off balance sheet exposure 

<60% 1,040.642 1,968 

61-80% 1,611 ,690 7,387 

8l~_l_O0% 2,424,045 1,251 

101-120% 50,721 401 

121-140% 1:~,919 10 

> l40% 12,600 806 

Total 5-.,153, o.l'Z ~ 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral pai·t of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The Bank holds collaterals for loans and advances granted to clients in the form of collateral 
deposits, mortgages over property, guarantees and other pledges over equipment or future 

collections. Fair value estimates take into account the value of the guarantee assessed as at the date 
of the loan and subsequently updated in accordance with the Bank's internal policy. In case of 

collective expected credit loss assessment, the model accounts for recove1y rates which are 
estimated based on historical recovery information. Generally, no guarantees a re used for loans 
and advances granted to banks. 

Loans with renegotiated te rms 

Restrncturing activities include agreements regarding postponed payments and approved external 
management plans . The decision regarding the restructuring of credit facilities is based on the 

economic and financial analysis of corporate clients (based on the latest financial information held), 
and on the analysis of future payments or on the repayment capacity of the individuals (based on 

documents reflecting net realised income). 

Restructw-ing policies and practices are based on ratios or criteria which, in the op1mon of 
management, indicate the probability that payments continue in the future. These policies a1·e 

reviewed continuously. Specialised departments analyse and approve, according to internal 
regulations the restructuring, tJ1e proposals submitted by the Bank units and then send them for 
approval to the Restructuring Committee/Head Quarter Credit Committee depending upon Bank's 

exposm-e to the clienl. Subsequent to restructuring, the Bank regularly monitors the restmctured 
loans on a case by case basis. 

As at 31 December 2020, the gross canying amount (diminished with unwinding value) of 
restructured loans after the disbursement is RON 653, t94 thousand (31 December 2019: RON 
612,365 thousand), out of which RON 76,340 thousand loans neither past due nor impaired (31 

December 2019: RON 93,933 thousand). 

Repossessed collatera Is 

The Bank has recognised as inventory as at 31 December 2020 in amount of RON 2,919 thousand 
(31 December 2019: RON 2,767 thousand) assets taken into patrimony or from the execution of 
collaterals from loans granted to clients. During 2020, the Bank took over property in the amount of 

RON 152 thousand (2019: RON 743 thousand) on the basis of the Law no. 77/2016 on the payment 
of some buildings in order to settle the obligations assumed by credits - Note 24. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of tl1ese financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Investment securities 

The Investment securities included in the Bank's portfolio ,ue financial assets at fair value through 

other comprehensive income and financial assets measured at amortized cost (government bonds 

and treasury bills) and have a low credit risk. 

The rating for Romania's long Lerm debt confirmed by Fitch in 2020 in local currency is ''BBB-", 

with a negative o utlook, the F3 qualification w-as confirmed for debts on short term and also the 

count.Iy rating "B8B+" 

Also the rating for Romania's long term debt confirmed by Fitch in 2019 in local currency is "BBB-", 

with stable outlook, the F3 qualification was confirmed for debts on short term and a lso the country 

rating ·'BBB+". 

Each of tl,e rating agencies use different rating scales and the "BBB-" rating with stable outlook is 

assigned only for Fitch and S & P a nd the "Baa3·· rating with negative outlook is assigned for 

Moody's. According to internal procedures, the short te rm ratings provided by the three agencies in 

the repo1t a re utilised in the sense that, based on them, the analysed credit institutions are 

classified according to their risk classes of the Bank. 

Loans and advances to banks 

The exposure related to loans and advances to banks is neither past d ue, nor impafred. 

The Bank is making short term deposits with banks in the day to day activity in order to manage the 

cash surplus. The quality of the counterpa1ties is regularly assessed in order Lo mitigate the credit 

risk and the management of the Bank approves the exposure limits for each counterparty. 

The accompan)fog notes from pages 9 Lo 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The ratings for lhe banks with which the Bank has current accounts, deposits and 'reverse repo' 
operations are used for computing exposure Limits and are included in the internal regulations: 

Loans and advances to banks - neither 3 1 31 Rating Rating 

nast due not imnaired December December 3J December 31 December 

2020 2019 2020 2019 

Total Total Short/ Short/ 

balance balance Long term Long term 
Cw·1·eut account due ING Bank 27,945 29,235 A-1/A+ A-1/A+ 

from other banks Barclays Bank 12,290 4,428 fl/A+ F1/A+ 

Commerzbank 5,546 1,454 P-1/Al P-1/A.J 

Societe Generale, Paris 10,571 17,923 P-1/Al P-1/AJ 

State Treasmy 61 13 A-3/IlBB- A-3/BBB-

PKO Bank Polski, Varsovia 65 P-1/A2 P-1/A:.1. 

OTP Bank Budapesta 1,239 1,157 P-2/BaaJ P-3/Baa1 
Other 3,500 10,091 

Deposits due from ING Bank 49,979 A-1/A+ A-1/A+ 
other banks OTP Bank Romania 49,934 NA/Baa.3 

Barclays Bank 18,963 19,633 Ft/A+ F1/A+ 

SANPAOLO IMI Bank 39,922 

Credit Europe Bank 108,189 121,125 B / B+ bi/ Ba2 

EXIMBANK 10,827 20,001 

BANCA ROMANEASCA 131,456 

Onicredit Bank 49,903 B/BB+ F3/BBB-

TECHVENTURES Bank SA 9,999 
Co11ateral deposits HSBC Bank London 514 550 Fi+/A+ F1+/A+ 
due from other JPMorgan Securities 2,712 2,681 P-1 / Aa3 P-1 / Ail3 

banks 
Loans and advances to 
banks ~3.Z9_2 ~ 

As at 31 December 2020, the amounts presented in the financial position loans and advances to 
banks of accruals amounted of RON 383,799 thousand (31 December 2019: 

thousand). 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral parl of these financial statements. 
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

c) Market risk 

Market risk is the present or future risk of recording losses related to balance and off-balance sheet 
due to adverse movements in maTket price (such as: stock prices) of interest rates and foreign 
exchange rates. 

Market risk has two major components respectively price risk and currency risk. 

Price risk is the risk of significant losses from the sale of the government bond portfolio, and 
currency risk is the risk ofloss from exchange rates. 

The Bank assesses market risk in terms of elements which define it, such as: the share in the total 
government securities investments, the volume of loa □s to non-banks customers. the volume of 
operations in foreign currency, the level and structure of government securities portfolio of the 
Bank, the important position which the Bank holds on the market deposits towards population 
availability in conjunction with the analysis of endogenous and exogenous factors. 

Also, the assessment of market risk is considering that U1e Bank does not cany specific activities of 
portfolio trading (trading book) and does not hold positions with intention of trading, short-term 
resale and/or with the intention of benefiting from differences on sho1t-term, real or expected, 
regarding the buying and selling prices or as a result of other price changes or interest rate. 

The strategy in relation to market risk management policy is to have a portfolio with low sensitivity 
to changes in government securities prices, changes in VaR and exchange rate and achieve the 
objectives set th.rougb the 1isk profile. These are mainly ach.ieved by monitoring the price of 
government securities on lhe ma1·ket as indicato1· of price risk as well as by determination and 
monitoring the VaR indicator and of foreign exchange position of the Bank, as indicators of the 
currency risk. 

The frame of assumed market risk shows the fulfilment of the role and responsibilities of the Bank's 
structures for identifying, quantifying/assessing, monitoring, controlling and mitigating mar"kel 
risk (mainly price and currency risk) and shall be achieved through the risk limits set for key risk 
indicators based on the risk appetite it assumes for business continuity on a prudent and sound 
basis. 

The implementation of the policy and the achievement of the market risk management objectives 
shall be ach.ieved by constanUy monitming: 

• The key indicators underlying the determination of the risk profile, respectively "the level of 
hypothetical loss that wouJd result from the immectiate sale of Ule portfolio of government 
securities classified as financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income" for price risk and "Total net foreign exchange position" for currency risk; 

• Level II indicators, monitored daily, respectively individual net currency position and 
currency portfolio risk measurement incticator - Value at Risk (VaR) methodology. 

The accompanying notes from page..~ 9 to L35 form on integral part of these financial statements . 
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
The level of risk limits accepted by the Bank for the key indkators, as well as the ranges taken into 

account in the assessment of theiT values, have been determined in the Light of the Bank's market 
risk policy, assessed as significant iisk, in conjunction with the limits imposed by the BNR/£U 
regulations, with historical trends in the values of these indicators, the size and structure of the 
assets and liabilities taken into account in their determination, the results of the various forecasts 

made, budgetary provisions, etc. 

By monitoring the price risk, the Bank intends to reduce the loss which would record it in case of 
hypothetical immediate sale of the entire portfolio of government securities classified as "financial 
assets measured a l fa ir value through other items of comprehensive income", so that the impact of 
the loss is mfoimal vis-a-vis honouring other obligations. 
By monitoring foreign exchange risk, the Bank intends to achieve an optimal correlation portfolio 
between the value of foreign exchange-denominated assets and liabilities and the balance of foreign 
exchange trading, and respectively, to maintain a balance between long and short net open 
positions so that both vo]atility impact of the exchange rate, as well as maximum probable loss to 
be recorded, to be minimal. 

Also, for the risk measurement of cmrency portfolio, the Bank uses the methodology for 
determining/measurement VaR (Value-at-Risk), through which the Bank wishes the classification 
in the maximum loss likely to be recorded in total. 

Internal regulations relating to the market risk are presented for approval to the Risk Management 
Committee. 

The financial assets and liabilities held in RON and in foreign currencies at 31 December 2020 can 
be analysed as follows: 

R N EUR Qthers 
Balance sheet financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 

4 ,155,545 549,097 52,754 at Central Bank 
Financial derivatives 16 
Loans and advances Lo banks 113,006 200,617 70,176 
Financial assets mandatorily at fair 

19,430 
value through profit or loss 
Financial assets measured at fair value 

8,149,824 
through other comprehensive income 

2,573,673 352,417 

investments in debt instruments at 
1,547,068 700,528 

amortized cost 
19,982 

Loans and advances to customers 18,726,720 3,149,318 48,034 
Other financial assets 16.841 5,374 __ 1_2 

Total financial assets 3bJ09,020 7,178,60:z 562,805 

The accompanying notes from pnges 9 Lo 135 form an integral pan of Lhe.~e 1i na.ntial 11tntement~. 
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Total 

4,757,396 

16 

383,799 

19,430 

11,075,914 

2,267,578 

21,924,072 
22,227 

40,450,432 

Thi.-; version of the financial statements is a free translation from Lhe original, which was prepared in Romanian. ALI p<>Ssible 
ea.re has heen taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in a ll matters of 
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FINANCIAL RJSK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

RQN t;UR 
Balance sheet financial liabilities 
Financial derivatives 6 
Deposits from banks 939,309 97,394 
Deposits from customers 27,787,919 6,523,263 
Other borrowed funds 106,267 459,113 
Other financial liabilities -35.535 188 

Total financial liabilities 28.869.036 7.079,958 

On balance sheet net financial 
3,839.984 98.649 assets/ (liabilities) 

R N EUR 
Letters of guarantee issued for 

628,113 85,741 
customers 

Undrawn loan commitments 2,928,364 525,382 

Others Total 

6 

35,698 1,072,401 

521,911 34,833,093 
565,380 

606 36.329 

558,215 36,507,209 

4,590 3,943,223 

Qthers Tgtal 

5,585 719,439 

8,589 3,462,335 

The financial assets and liabilities held in RON and in foreign currencies at 31 December 2019 can 

be analysed as follows: 

RON EUR Qthers 
Balance sheet financial assets 
Cash ai1d cash equivalents 

3,420,080 574,873 46,700 
at Central Bank 

Financial derivatives 6 
Loans and advances to banks 229,742 lOL,839 46,526 

F'inancial assets measured at fair value 

through other comprehensive income 
3,945,990 1,288,525 390,667 

Investments in debt instruments at 
906,635 1,190,781 

amortized cost 

Loans and advances to customers 17,015,842 2,884,389 3,055 
Other financial assets ·36,651 7,947 167 

Total financial assets 25,554,946 M..4-8.354 487,115 

The accompan:i,ing notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integrol p:i.rl of these financial statements. 
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4,041,653 

6 

378,107 

5,625,182 

2,097,416 

19,903,286 

44,765 

32,Q90,fil 
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FINANCIAL RJSK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

RQN EUR Otl:lt r~ TotDl 
BaJance s heet financiaJ liabilities 
Financial derivatives 8 8 

Deposits from banks 205,539 14 29,852 235,405 
Deposits from customers 21,876,544 5 ,656,650 451,955 27,985,149 
Other borrowed funds 111,475 317,860 429,335 
Other financial liabilities 31,799 132 6 31,932 

TotaJ financ ia l liabilities 22,225,365 5,974,656 481,813 28.681,834 

On balance shee t net financial 
3,329.581 73,698 3AQ.8.,sfu 

assets/ (liabilities ) -5.322 

RQ~ E UR Qt bgc~ TotaJ 

Letters of guarantee issued for 
461,333 66,737 362 528,432 

customers 
Undrawn loan commitments 3,027,534 745,321 L89 3,773,044 

The main currency held by the Bank is EUR. The open currency positions represent a sow·ce of 

currency risk. 

d) lnte 1·es t ra te risk other lhan trading portfo lio 

Interest rate risk is Lhe current o r future risk that profit a nd equity are negatively affected by 
adverse changes in interest rates. 

The assessment of interest rate risk takes into account that the Bank does not carry out trading 
book activities, respectively does not have positions with the intention to trade, short-term resale 
and/or with the intention o f benefiting from short-te rm, real or expected differences between the 
buying and selling prices, or from other changes in pr ice or interest rate. 

The main source of interest rate risk is the correlation between the structure of the Bank's asset 
portfolio and the flags and the type of interest rate (taking into account the maturity date - in the 
case of fixed interest rates - a nd the <late of price updating - in the case of variable interest rates). 

The interest rate risk managem ent poli<.'y is to optimize the gap between sensitive assets and 
liabilities in regards to interest rate movements, both overall and per various time frames, so that 
the impact of inte rest rate changes on net interest income is minimal. 

The Bank aims to properly manage assets and liabilities beasing interest as well as to promote its 
products, in order to achieve a portfolio with low sensitivity to changes in i11terest rates and achieve 
the targets set through the risk. profile. 

The accompanying not~ from pages 9 Lo 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The risk profile assumed for interest rate risk is managed by the limitations set for the key 

indicators based on the risk appetite that the Bank assumes for business continuity purposes on a 
prudent and sound basis. 

The key indicators determined by the Bank, continuously monitored and underlying the 

determination of the interest rate risk profile are: 

• the potential change in economic value due to changes in interest rate levels based on the 
standardized method; 

• relative G.A.P.; 

• the difference between the average active interest rate in foreign currency loans granted to 
individuals and coq)orate entities and the cost oHun<ls plus the risk margin. 

The level of risk limits accepted by the Bank for the key indicators, as well as the ranges taken into 

account in the assessment of their values, have been determined in the light of the Bank's strategy 

for market risk, assessed as significant risk, in conjunction with the limits imposed by the BNR/EU 
regulations, with historical trends in the values of these indicators, the size and structure of the 

assets and liabilities taken into account in their determination, the results of the various forecasts 

made, budgetary provisions, etc. 

The Bank assesses the compliance with the interest rate risk profile assumed according to the 

appetite for interest rate risk; the level of risk is quantified on the basis of a system of scoring key 

indicators related to interest rate risk according to their levels. 

Also, in order to prevent situations of non-compliance with internal limitations, the Bank monitors 
the dynamic evolution of the Bank's assets and liabilities that are sensitive to interest rate 
movements, performs forecasts, "stress testing" type scenarios. 

As part of the interest rate risk assessment process, the monthly calculation of interest rate risk 
specific indicators is a backward-looking tool, which gives a full picture of their level over a given 
time horizon and forecasts (forward-looking instruments) tuke into account the prevention of 
unforeseen situations. 

Through its risk management policy, in order lo carry out a prudential activity, characterized by 

continuous monitoring and control of the level of key indicators for interest rate risk in relation to 

appetite for risk, the Bank aims to establish a moderate interest rate risk profile as the maximum 

allowed. 

For the management of interest rate risk, in addition to the key indicators determining the interest 

rate risk profile, the Bank shall monitor on a monthly basis the follo-wing level IT indicators, which 

are not pa1t of the risk profile, namely: 

• The b reak-even threshold level in conjunction with the average interest gap; 

• The negative result obtained from the forecasts to tapture the effect of the potential change 

of interest rates over net gains from interests. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral pait of these financial statements. 
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Internal regulations on market risk are presented for approval to the Risk Management Committee. 

The follov,ring table shows the interest rates per annum obtained or offered by the Bank fo r its 
interest-bearing assets and liabilities during financial year 2020: 

RON EUR 
Range Range 

Min Max Min Max 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents at Central Bank 0.10 0.20 O.OJ 

Investments with National Bank of Romarua 1.00 2.50 

[nvestments with other banks LOO 3.20 (0.65) 

Treasury certificates 2.30 3.19 
Loans and ad\,ances to customers( .. ) 3.00 13.33 1.75 10.00 

lnvestmen t securities 1.09 5-45 0.20 1.97 
Liabilities 
Deposits from banks 0.90 3.50 (0.55) 

Deposits from customers 4.85 0.35 
Borrowings from banks and other financial 

3.72 4.70 0-456 
institutions 

( .. ) During the year 2020, in respect to credit cards, the Bank has practiced zero interest rate for 
payments of the interest within 59 days, exclusively for transactions at merchants (transactions non 
rates and/or rates posted on their due account), with the cond ition of the full payment of the credit 
limit used for the specific 1rading cycle. 

The following table shows the inte rest rates per annum obtained or offered by the Bank for its 
interest-bearing assets and liabilities during financial year 2019: 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents at Cenb·al Bank 

Investments with National Bank of Romania 

Investments with other banks 

Loans and advances to customers 

Investment securities 

Liabilities 
Deposits from Banks 

Deposits from customers 

Borrowings from banks and other financial 
institutions 

RON 
Range 

Min 

0.14 

1.50 

1.50 

3.78 

3.39 

1.40 

4.50 

Max 

0.22 

2 .50 

3.60 

13.38 

3.95 

3.50 
6.12 

4.82 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form arJ integral pan of these financial statements. 
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EUR 
Range 

Min Max 

0.0.1 0.01 

2.84 9.88 

0.10 1.12 

(0.25) (0-40) 

0.35 

0.069 0-456 

This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romaniru1. AJI possible 
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interpretation of information, Yicws or opinions, the ori~nal langual!,e version of our rcpo1t takes precedence o,·cr this 
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(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The following table shows the Bank's interest re-pricing analysis as at 31 December 2020 with 
financial assets and liabilities categorised by the earlier of the re-pricing or contractual maturity 
date. 

Non 
1 month 3 months 1year- interest 

< 1month 3 months - 1 year 5years > 5 vears bearing 

Financial assets 
Cash and balances with 

4,757,396 Central Bank 

Financial derivatives 16 

Loans and advances to banks 364,442 18,970 387(*) 

Loans and advances 
146 14,716,957 1,536 167,244(**) 

to customers 
4,133,949 2,904,240 

Financial assets mandatorily at 
19,430 foir value through profit or loss 

Financial assets at fair value 
through other comprehensive 627,844 595,582 8,658,066 1,181,374 13,048 
income 

Investments in debt 

instn1ments at amortized cost 
76,975 640,471 787,504 762,628 

Other financial assets 22,227 

TotaJ financial assets g_,.gs.5.28.z 704,965 15,953.010 12.368.780 1,945,538 222,352 

Financial liabilities 

Financia l de1ivatives 6 

Deposits from banks 1,072,382 19 

Deposits from customers 8,493,620 5,382,100 L0.057,266 563,014 - 10,337,093(*-) 
Borrowings from banks and 

38,223 124,501 379,326 8,358 other financial instih1tio11s 14,972 

Lease liabilities 1,931 3,835 15,726 53,465 u,917 

Other financial liabilities 36,329 

TotaJ financial liabilities 9.606.156 5,400,907 10.197,493 995.805 20.275 l0,37'3,447 

Lnterest rate gap (350,369) (4,695,942) 5,255,517 ll,372,925 1,925,263 (10,151.095) 

,•Jthe amount comprises currenl accounts al other banks. 

,••1 the amounl tC'Jmprises exposures for corporate clients who entered irumlvcn~y or bankruptcy for which oc(•ording to law 

nominal inter~'t cannot be charged any longer. 

1 (""I the amount comprises current ;iccounts, deposits and other chscontinued savin~ products for which nominal mteresl 1s 

not applied. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form :111 integral port of these financial statements. 
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Total 

4,757,396 

16 

383,799 

21,924,072 

19,430 

11,,075,914 

2,267,578 

22,227 

.4.Q..45.~ 

6 

1,072,401 

34,833,093 

565,380 

86,874 

36,329 

36.594,083 

3,856,341 
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTlNUED) 

The following table shows the Bank's interest re-pricing analysis as at 31 December 2019 v,::ith 

financial assets and Liab:i]jt:ies categorised by the earlier of the re-pricing or contractual maturity 

date. 
Non 

1 month 3m.onths 1yeru·- interest 
< 1 month 3months -1, yea1· 5 years > 5years bearing 

Financial assets 
Cash and balances with 
Central Bank 4,041,653 

Financial derivatives 6 

Loans and advances to banks 199,598 39,632 1..18,877(+-) 

Loans and advances 
3,367,934 38,485 13,770,289 182,930(**) 

to customers 
2,543,309 340 

Financial assets al fair value 
through other comprehe11sive 889,515 864,726 3,618,071 222,456 30,414 
income 

Investments in debt 

instruments at amortized cost 
271,069 62,197 91,785 1,672,365 

Other financial assets 44,765 

Total financial assets 7,880,254 1,029,829 14,726,800 ~33..,74.5 222,796 ·396,992 

Financial liabilities 

Financial derivatives 8 

Deposits from banks 235,388 17 

Deposits from customers 8,681,564 4,413,366 7,010,214 366,797 - 7,513,208("*") 

Borrowings from banks and 
109.325 1.5,186 78,295 210,709 15,820 

other financial institulions 

Lease liabiljties 1,829 3,666 13,717 40,642 14,359 

Other financial liabilities 31,937 

Total financial liabilities _9,028.106 4,432,218 7,102.226 618,148 3Q.1Z9 7,545,170 

Interest rate gap (1,147,852) (3,i1Q'> ,389) z,624,524 7,215,597 ~ (7,1g8,178} 

1'\ the amount comprises current accounts al other banks. 

c·•1 the amount comprises exposures for corporate clients who entered insolvency or bankruptcy for which according Lo law 

nominal interest cannot be chargctl any longer. 

, ... , Lhe amount comprises current accounts, deposiL~ u□d other disconLinucd ~.:ivings products for whicb nominal interest is 

not applied. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 folTll an integral part of Lhese financial statements. 

Page 83 of 135 
This \'ersion of the financial statements is a free translution from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been t:1kcn to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all mutters of 
interpretation of information, \'iews w opinions, the original language vcrsic,n of our report lakes precedence over this 
translation. 

Total 

4,041,653 

6 

378,107 

19,903,286 

5,625,182 

2,097,416 

44,765 

32,090,4L5 

8 

235,405 

27,985,149 

429,335 

74,213 

31,937 

28,256,047 

3,334.3(21 
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CEC BANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(AH amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Sensitiv ity analysis 
Lnterest Rate Sensitivity: the table below summarises the impact on the Bank's income statement 

and other comprehensh·e income resulting from a reasonably possible shift of the yield curve 

calculated using an interest rate gap model. Based on the-fluctuation oftbe interest rate in the prior 

year and of other analysis made by the Bank, the potentially reasonable change is shown below. 

Foreign Exchange rates Sensitivity: The table below summarises the impact of a potentially 

reasonable change in the value of RON against foreign currencies on the Bank's income statement 

and other comprehensfre income caJculated by applying the change to monetary financial 

instmments denominated in foreign cttrrcncies held by the Bank as al 31 December 2020 and 31 

December 2019. 

31 December 2020 

lnterest rate +/-1% 

Foreign exchange 

5% appreciation/ 
depreciation 

of functio1rnl CCY 

Sensitivity of 
Total sensitivity profit for the year 

Sensitivity of 

Sensitivity of other 

Sensitivity of other 

31 December 2019 Total sensitivity profit for the year comprehensive income 

lnterest rate + /- 1 % 

Foreign exchange 

5% appreciation / 
Depreciation 

of functional CCY 

-98,866/ +93,937 

-/+2,361 

+/-19,495 -118,361/ + 113,431 

-/+2,361 

At 31 December 2020, if market interest rates had been 100 ba1,is points higher/ lower for RON and 

100 basis points higher/ lower for EUR and 100 basis points higher/ lower for USO, with all other 

variables held constant, profit for the year would have been RON 304,694 thousand (2019: RON 

98,866 thousand) lower and RON 289,172 thousand higher (2019: RON 93,937 thousand). The 
impact was calculated on the basis of monthly average balances with variable interest. 

At 31 December 2020, if RON had strengthened/weakened by 500 basis points against relevant 
foreign cunencies (all other variables held constant), profit for the year would hove been RON 
3,425 thousand higher/ 1o .... ·er (2019: RON 2,361 thousand higher/lower). Impact was calculated by 
applying a +/- 5% higher/ lower exchange rate against the EUR and USD closing rate. 

The accompanying notes rrom pages 9 lo 135 form an integral par1 of these financial statements. 

Page 84 of 135 
This ,·crsion of the financial statement, is a free translation from lhc original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care bas heen taken to ensure that the translation is an accur-Jtc representation of the original. However, in nil matters of 
intcrprclalion of iafonnation, views or opinions, Lhc original langLiage versi()n of our report takes precedence over thi~ 
translation. 
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CEC BANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

e ) Liquidity risk 

Liquiclity risk is an important part, along wilh other signific.ant risks, to financial risk management 
system in tern1s as far as tbe Bank oper ates in developed financial markets. 

Liquidity risk is the current or future risk that profit and equity are negatively affected by the 
inability of the Bank to meet its obligations at maturity, given potential causes: insufficient liquid 
asset, the Ba nk's inability to liquidate assets, inability to obtain adequate funding. 

The Bank has adequate liquidity potential when it is able to obta in the necessary funds (by 
attracting additional resources, sale of assets, participation in REPO auctions organized by the 
central bank, etc.) immediately a nd at a reasonable cost, that will not affect the Bank's profitability. 

The liquidity risk management policy is the tra nsposition into internal regulation of the internal 
liquiclity assessment requirements (ll.AAP) and takes into account all internal liquidity adequacy 
assessment processes as a EBA requirement. The policy a nd profile are a n integraJ part of the 
regulations relating to the management of liquidjty risk, being developed in o rder to demonstrate 
the soundness, effectiveness and comprehensiveness of lLAAP (respectively the treatment of 
liquidity risk according to the scale and complexity of the Bank's activities). 

The strategy related to liquidity risk management and contingency plans includes having a 
structure of decisions needed for managing risk, a model for approaching financing and insurance 
opera tions, risk profile for exposme to liquidity risk and procedures for planning alternative 
scenarios for obtaining liquidity, including in unpredictable conditions. 

Through liquid ity risk ma nagement policy, part of a robust and specific framework for liquidity risk 
management, inclucling the process of identification, assessment/ quantification, monitoring, 
mitigation and control, the Bank shal l pursue to have a balanced portfolio of assets and liabilities of 
the Bank, to ensure optimum liquidity, an adequate management of assets and liabilities, necessaty 
for the maintenance of an adequate liquidity, as well , including an optimal liquidity reserve and 
ensw-ing the risk profile accepted by the Bank. 

The monthly liquidity position is monitored as per regulations in force issued by NBR Regulation 
25/20-11 r elated to liquidity of credit inst itutions. 

Internal regulations on liquidity risk are presented for approval by the Risk Management 
Committee. 

The table below presents the financial liabilities as at 3 1 December 2020 according to their 
remaining contractual maturities. The amounts included in the table are contraC"tual cash flows 
which are not discounted, gross accruals for loans and financial guarantees. Future cash flows 
which are not discounted are different to the amounts from the balance sheet because the a mount 
from the later represents d iscounted cash flows. The de riva tives arc included in contractuaJ value to 
be paid or received, except the situations when the Bank is expected to close the exchange position 
before its maturity and in this case the instruments arc presented according to estjmated futme 
cash flows. 

The accompan} ing notes from pages 9 lo 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Page 85 of 135 
This version of the financial statements is a frc<' translation from the c,riginaJ, which was prepared in Romimi:in. All possible 
care has been taken lo ensure 1 hat the translation is an accura te rcprc~cutalion of Lhe original. However, in all matter~ ~1r 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, Lhc original l,mgu:igc ,·ersion of our report takes precedence over this 
t rans)ation. 
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CEC BANK SA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2 020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

The table below presents an analysis of non-derivative financial assets at their book value and 
according to their contractual mah1rities. These financial assets a1·e included in the maturity 
analysis according to the future expected sale day. The impaired loans are presented at their book 
value net of provision and according to the expected timing of collection. Derivatives are presented 
according to their contractual maturity. When the amounl to be paid is not fix, the amount 
disclosed is determined based on the existing conditions at the reporting period. The payments in 
foreign cu1Tency are revaluated using the exchange rate at the reporting period end. 

l - 3 m on ths 1year- No fixed 
3 1 December 2020 < 1 month 3 mQnth§ - 1 )_'.ear s~ar~ > 5 yeru:s m aturi!;y 
Assets 
Casb and balances witb 

Central Bank 4,757,396 

Loans and advances to banks 230,128 131,474 18,970 3,227 
Loans and advru1ces 

to customers 614,742 644,933 3,635,638 8,097,243 8,931,51.6 -
Financial assets rnandatorily at fair 

value through profit or loss 19,430 
Financial assets at fair value through 

other 

comprehensive income 627,844 595,582 8,658,066 1,181,374 13,048 
[nvestments in debt instruments at 

amortized cost 76,975 640,471 787,504 762.,628 

Financial derivatives, 

out of which 

- receivable 16 

- payable 

Other financial assets 22.227 - - - - -- - - - -
Total fmaociaJ assets 5,624,509 1.481,226 4.890,661 17,542,813 10,875,518 35.,2Q5 

Liabilities 

Deposits from banks 1,072,577 

Deposits from customers 20,012,t85 4,684,729 9,689,216 646,067 ll,130 
Borrowings from banks and other 

financial institutions 36,584 l 125,312 196,321 208,89[ 

Financial derivatives, 

out of which 

- receivable 

- payable 6 

Lease liabilities 1,931 3,835 15,726 53,465 11,917 

Other financial liabilities ~ - - - - -- - - - - - -

Total 

4,757,396 

383,799 

21,924,072 

19,430 

11,075,914 

2,267,578 

16 

22.227 

40,450,432 

1,072,577 

35,043,327 

567,109 

6 

86,874 

~ 

Total financial liabilities 21.159.612 4,6!;!!;!.565 g,!;!30,254 as>.s..§.53 220.!;!Q!;! u.130 36.806,222 

Net liquidity gap l!S..535..!Q3l (3,202,339) w.39..,59.3.l &2..4.MlQQ 10.654,710 ~515 3.644.210 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an inle)(ral part of these financial statements. 

Page 86 of 135 
Th.is version of the finn.ncial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of lhe original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, U,e original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
1 - 3 months 1year-

·31 December 2020 < J month 3months - 1 v~ar 5 vcars 

Loan commibnents 81.6.53 1).!,5_5~ 541,6oz 980,852 
Guarantee letters issued by the Bank 2...~ ~Q.Zl9 -3~ :ro.4,.32.Z 

J- 3months 1 year-

·31 Decem ber 201.9 < Jmonth 3months - J. vear 5 years 

Assets 
Cash and balances with 

Central Bank 4,041,653 

Loans and advances to banks 335,243 39,632 
Loans and advances 

to customers 586,995 678,270 3,298,045 6,816,156 
Finnncial assets nt fair vaJue through 

other 

comprehensive income 889,SLS 864,726 3,618,071 
Investments in debt instruments at 

amortized cost 271,069 62,197 91,785 1,672,365 
Financial derivatives, 

out of which 

- receivable 6 

- payable 

Other financial assets M..ZQ5 - - -- - -
Total financial assets 5,2:Z9,'.2'3l 1,269,614 4,254,552 12,1Q6,592 
Li.abilities 

Deposits from banks 235,873 

Deposits from customers 16,088,517 4,449,929 7,123.586 471,820 
Borrowings from banks and other 

financial institutions 109,:325 15,186 78,295 2u,839 
Financial derivatives, 

out of which 

• receivable 

- payable 8 

Lease liabilities 1,829 3,666 13,717 40,642 

Other financial liabilities 3.Lll32 - - --- -- -
Total financial liabilities 1fi,4(2:z,489 4,4,68,281 2,215,598 :Z24,3QJ 

Net Liquidity gap C1u8:z,25B) (2,299,16:z) (2,961,042) 11,382,291 

Loan commitments 1.8.2..~ 8.6,297 M..~ ~ 
Guarantee letters issued by the Bank 16.892 3MZ3 2.63,2-07 2lil,2.98 

> 5vears 

.l..~~6..66 

~ 

> 5 , ,ears 

8,523,820 

222,456 

--
8,'.242,2'.ZQ 

16,373 

14,359 

--
3.Q....'Z3g 

8,:Zl5,544 

bS,O~ 

k,Q,6.2 

The nccompan}ing notes from pages 9 lo 135 form an integral part of lhcse financial statements. 
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No th.ecl 
maturi!)'. 

-

No fixed 
maturitv 

3,232 

30,414 

--
13..MQ 

ll,204 

--
11,204 

~ 

-= 
. -

This l"ersion of the financial ;.1aternents is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
ea.re has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views ur opinions. the original language versinn of our report Lukes precedence oYer this 
translation. 

Total 

~g,s3_5 

J.d9A39 

Total 

4,041,653 

378,107 

19,903,286 

5,6:.,i5,182 

2,097,4.1.6 

6 

M..ZQ5 
32,090,415 

235,873 

28,145,056 

431,018 

8 

74,213 

31.9.3.Z 

28,918,105 

3,122.310 

3..XZ.3~4 

528..432 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Credit commitments are presented on the basis of their contractual maturity but may be used at 

any time. 

The management believes that although a substantial propo1tion of deposits have their maturity in 
less than three months, diversification of these deposits as the number and types of deposits as weU 
as previous experience oftbe Bank indicates that these deposits provide a stable source of financing 
long-term. 
To manage liquidity risk, the Bank holds liquid assets comprising cash and cash equivalents and 
financial assets for which there is an active and liquid market. These assets can he sold in a short 
time to meet Uquidity requirements. 

The implementation of the policy and the achievement of liquidity risk targets is achieved, 

primarily and without limitation, by monitoring and continuous follow-up of risk lin1itations of key 

indicators and level U indicators- early waming indicators. 

The Bank's classification in the liquidity risk profile is managed by assessing key risk indicators 

based on the risk appetite that the Bank assumes for business continuity on prudential and sound 

principles, i.e. the LCR liquidity coverage ratio; NSFR - Net stable funding Ratio (for both 

indicators on all reporting cmrencies); liquidity indicator in lei, euro and lei equivalent (as 

determined under Regulation 25/2011); immediate liquic:Lity indjcator and the share of the po1tfolio 
of free secmities in total on-balance sheet obligations not adjusted. 

Through its risk management policy and risk profile, in order to conduct a prudential activity that is 

characterized by continuous monitoring and control of the level of risk limitations for key liquic:Lity 
risk indicators in relation t o appetite for risk, the Bank aims to achieve a moderate liquidity risk 

profile as the maximLLrn allowed. 

The level of risk limits accepted by the Bank for the key indicators, as well as the intervals taken 

into account in the valuation of their values, have been determined in the light of tl1e Bank's 

Liquidity risk management, assessed as significant risk, in conjUDction ·with limits imposed by the 

NBR/EBA regulations, witl1 historical trends in the values of these indicators, the size and structure 

of the assets and liabilities taken into account in their determination, the results of the various 
forecasts made, budgetary provisions, etc. 

Taking into account the Bank's strategy and based on the size of the Bank's assets and liabilities, 
their maturity and strnctures etc., the main level Il indicators, early warning indicators. which are 
quantifiable, assessed, monitored and analysed are presented as follows: 

• Monthly compilation of the GAP analysis and current short term liquidity- by monitoring 

this indicator it is observed lhe degree to which ¼iithdrawals could be covered from 

collection of assets fa !Hng due within the next 30 days; 

The accompanying notes from page.,;; 9 Lo 135 form an integral part of these financial slalcments. 

Page 88 of 135 
This ni.rsion of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken Lo ensure Lhat the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, "in all matters of 
interpretation ()f information, \icws or oplnions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

• The weight of the transactions pe1formed in EURO cunency (in RON equivalents) in total 
transactions (in RON equivalent) - monthly monitoring of this indicator represent a 
method for assessing currency mismatch; 

• Liquid assets - by monitoring liquid assets (split between most liquid, less liquid and the 
least liquid based on their relative Hquidity level) it is observed, on different levels, the 
assets' gradual ability to generate liq1tidHy; 

• Treasury/Total Asset Balance Unadjusted indicator - for the purpose of monitoring the 
portfolio of government securities held by the Bank, the component ofliquid assets; 

• Indicators: loans to non-bank customers/deposits received from non-bank customers; 
liquid spot assets/total deposits attracted on demand; the rate of monthly decrease of 
sources drawn from non-bank customers by monitoring them with a view to identifying as 
a matter of uTgency the increased vulnerability in terms of liquidity position or funding 
needs, etc.; 

• Forecasts hypothetical evolution of the liquidity indicator - liquidity in the d:ynarnk sense 
on different time horizons in order to prevent cases of crisis; 

• The daily liquidity indicator on maturity bands - a static indicator, determined in order to 

prevent the monthly liqu·idity indicator from being not met o□ the maturity bands between 
one month and Lhree months, between 3 and 6 months, bet\veen 6 and 12 months, 
according to NBR's requirements in force; 

• Large liquidity risk in order to minimize debt to a person or group of connected clients; 

• The weight of government bonds pledgcd/unpledged in total government bonds p01tfolio 
and its evolution, as well as the weight of the main lines / balance sheets and off-balance 

sheet positions of the Bank in total assets and lial)ilities for the purpose of determining the 
vulnerability and concentration of liquidity aris ing from their structure which may 
represent a l"isk of over-estinrntion of the Ii quidity buffer and of the counterbalancing 
capacity. 

The table below provides a reconciliation of financial assets and liabilities m the statement of 
financial position by categories of financial instruments: 

The accompan)~ng notes from pages 9 tc, 135 form un integrul part of these financial statements. 

Page 89 of 135 
This version of Lhr financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that Lhc trnnslation i~ an accurate representation of the original. However, in a ll matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Mundatorily Designated FVOCJ - FVOCl -
3-1 De~~mb~r 2Q22 at tbrougb debt equity 

Note FVfPL l<VTPL instrum~n~ ins1!:1Jm ~11ts 
Cash and cash equivalents at central 

12 banks 
Derivative financial assets 13 16 
Loans and advances to banks 14 
Loans and advances to customers: 17 

- at amortised cost 
Debt instruments: 19,430 11,062,866 

- mandatorilv at fair value 
18 through profit or loss 19,430 

- at fair value through other 
15 comprehensive income 11.062,866 

- at amortised cost 16 
Equity instnunents 15 13,048 
Other financial assets 23 
Total f1 nancial assets _ll).,_43g _ll) 11,062 866 ~ 
Derivative liabilities held for risk 

13 management 6 
Deposits from banks 25 
Deposits from customers 26 
Borrov.'ings from banks and other 

27 financial institutions 

Lease I iabilities 30 
Other liabilities 32 
Total financial liabilities -- _b -- - -

Designate FVOCI - FVOCI -
3 1 December 20 19 Note dthl'Ough debt equity 

FVl'PL in.c,trun11:1Jt.'i instrume nts 
Cash and cash equivalents at central banks 12 
Derivative financial assets 13 6 
Loans and advances to banks l4 
Loans and advances to customers: 17 
- at amortised cost 
Debt instruments: 5,594,768 
- at fair value tbrougb other comprehensive income 15 5,594,768 
- at amortised cost 16 
Equity instruments 15 30,414 
Other financial assets 23 
Total financial assets __6 s,594:zo..a ~ 
Derivative liabilities beld for risk management 13 8 
Deposits from banks 25 
Deposits from customers 26 
Borrowings from banks and other financial 

27 institutions 
Lease liabilities 30 
Other liabi Ii ties 32 
Total financial liabilities ____a --

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral pan of these financial statements. 
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At 
amortised 

CO!i."t 

4,757,396 

383,799 
21,924,072 
21,924,072 

2,267,578 

2,267,578 

22,227 
gg_,3~ 

1,072,40·1 
34,833,093 

565,380 

86,874 
36,329 

3M9.4-,.o.;n 

At 
am ortised 
~ 

4,041,653 

378,107 
19,903,286 
19,903,286 

2,097,416 

2,097,4J6 

44,765 
2.6_.__4-65,.2.2.l 

235,405 
27,985,149 

429,335 
74,213 
31,937 

2.8.:ZS!i,Q39 

This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the originnl, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure thot l11c translation is an accurate representation oft he original. However, in all matters of 
inlcrprctalion of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our repontakes precedence over lhis 
translation. 

To tal 
carrying 
amount 

4,757,396 
16 

383,799 
21,924,072 
21,924,072 
13,349,874 

19,430 

11,062,866 
2,267,578 

13,048 
22,22i 

4-0-,4,5.g,_.432 

6 
1,072,401 

34,833,093 

565,380 

86,874 
36,329 

Jg~ 

TotaJ 
ClU'rying 
amount 

4,041,653 
6 

378,107 
19,903,286 
19,903,286 

7,692,184 

5,594,768 
2,097,416 

30,414 
44,765 

32.,090,415 
8 

235,405 
27,985,149 

429,335 
74,213 
31,937 

28,756R11 
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
Capital management 

The Bank's objectives regarding capital management represent a broader concept than the term 
"equity" that is found in the statement of financial position and are represented by: 

capital of the Bank must comply to requirements provided by national regulations and to 
those provided by EBA (European Banking Authority); 

capita] of the Bank must ensure the continuation of the Bank's activity in the following 

period, to ensure the revenues of the shareholder and benefits to other related parties of the 
Bank; 

capital of the Bank must ensure a powerful basis to aJJow the development of the bLLsiness. 

Starting 1 January 2014, the Bank computes own funds and own funds requirements according to 
Regulation No. 575/2013 of European Parliament and of the Council from 26 June 2013 on 
prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms and NBR Regulation No. 
5/20.12.2013 related to pmdential requirements for credit institutions. 

Starting I January 2018, tbe Bank exercised the option of applying for a transitional period of 5 

years of the transitory measures regarding the inclusion of a portion of the adjustments for tbe 
increased expected credit loss in the Bank's basic level 1 own funds. 

ln the internal process of capitaJ adequacy to risks for 2020, the Bank envisaged maintaining a total 

own funds rate above a materiality threshold of 16,45%, aiming to meet the following requirements 
cumulatively: 
a) maintaining a global capital requirement (OCR) of 15,45%, consisting of: 

the target rates of own funds due to the pillar ll adjustments (Basel ill), representing SREP 
capital requirements (TSCRs) to be met permanently: 

• rate of own fm1ds tier 1 basis: 6.16%; 

• rate of own funds tier 1: 8.21%; 

• total own funds rate: 10.95 %. 
- combined capital buffer requirement equivalent to 4 .5% of total risk exposure amount, as a 

result of the aggregation of the requirement for t he capital conservation buffer and the 
maximum between O-SII buffer requirement and systemic risk buffer in accordance with 
the provisions of NBR Regttlation no. 5/2013 on pnidential requirements for credit 
institutions, amended and supplemented thereafter, that where a credit institution, at 

individual or sub-consolidated level, is subject to an O-Sll buffer and a systemic risk capital 
buffer, the buffer witJ1 tbe higher of the two shall be applied: 

• the capital conservation buffer requirement equivalent to 2.5 % of the total risk 
exposure amount; 

• the O-Sll buffer requirement of 2% of the total exposure amotrnt; 
• the systemic risk buffer requirement of 2% of the total risk exposme amount. 

b) maintaining an additional capital buffer representing 1% of tbe total exposure vaJue to support 
possible future capital requirements adjustments (additional own funds requirements, capital 
buffers). 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral pan of these financial statements. 

Page 91 of 135 
This version of the financial statements is u free trilnslation from Lhe original, which was prepilrcd in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters or 
interpretation of infonm1tion, views or opinions, Lhe original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
At the same time, the BanJ< seeks to ensure that the internal capital requirement level determined 

in the internal capital adequacy assessment process during 2020 (regulated and unregulated capital 

requirements) does not exceed 80% of the internal capital. 

Jn regard of the capital management the Bank assesses capital adequacy in accordance with the 

"Policy for the internal assessment of capital adequacy", NBR regulations and respectively CRD IV 

regulations package. 

The Bank intends that the internal capital to be covering both the risks for which capital 

requirements are regulated (credit risk , operational risk and currency risk ) as well as risks that 

regulatory capital requfrements are not fully covering (risk of underestimation credit risk in the 

context of using the standard approach, the residual risk associated with the techniques of credit 

risk mitigation, risk arising from foreign currency lending to borrowers exposed to currency risk, 

credit risk of credit exposures with a risk of payment, credit concentration risk, time-concentration 

risk, concentration risk on the Cll counterparty, geographical concentration risk, concentration risk 

oo business sectors, residual risk of uncollateralized guarantees issued by guarantee fuods and 
residual risk associated with collateral on non-performing legal entity loans (other than those with 

guarantee structure guarantees issued by guarantee funds), foreign exchange risk, price risk arising 

from price decreases of government securities - financial assets measured at fair vahle through 

other comprehensive income, price risk represented by the recording of losses on the sa le of 

financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), non-trading 

book interest rate risk, operational risk underestimation in co11texl using basic approach, 

reputation risk, strategic risk, risk associated with outsourced activities, compliance risk). 

From a strategic point of view the exposures are undertaken towards cou11terparties with a good 

rating and under conditions of a good collateral coverage so as the capital required by the 

respective exposures be as low as possible. Capital adequacy ratio is monitored on a monthly basis 

any substantial deterioration triggering Lhe need to review the portfolio of exposures and to claim if 
necessary a capital increase. The National Bank of Romania ("NBR"), as the supervisory and 

regulatory authority at national banking system, monitors own funds requirements for the Bank as 
a whole within the limits imposed by EU Regulation no. 575/2013. 

Throughout 2020, the Bank has been within the regulated indicators in regards to capital adequacy. 

The total equity ratio was above the total capital requirements imposed by the National Bank of 

Romania in the SREP (Superviso1y, Review and Evaluation Process) and over the global capital 

requirement-OCR, capital. AJ1 adequate level of capital and general financial indicators have been 

maintained, in line with the principles of banking prudence. 

Capital Management takes into account the evolution of the medium and long term capita] and 

underlies the grounding rationale of the strategy of Business and Bank policy. Bank's targets 

regarding own funds level are set in the context of some internal factors (e.g. risk and estimated 

profit) and some external factors (e.g. market expectations and macroeconomic environment, the 

crisis cnused by coronavirus infection and the change in the macroeconomic context) and are 

focused towards an annual positive financial result and its capitalization. Internal capital 

The accompan)ing notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial s lalements. 
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

requirement is internal capital necessary to cover banking risks in order to ensure the sustainability 

of the Bank. 

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS 

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the repo1ted amount of assets and liabilities 
in the next financial year. Estimales and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on past 
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are considered reasonable 
under the circumstances. In addition to historical experience and information, the Bank considered 
in the assessment of these estimates , the effects of the current conditions in the financial industry. 

Impafrment losses on loans, advances and credit commitments 

The Bank reviews the loan p01tfoHo on a monthly basis to assess the depreciation of these assets in 
accordance with IFRS 9. 

ln determining whether an expected credit loss should be recorded in the income statement, the 

Bank considers the reasonable and justifiable information that affects credit risk for a financial 

instrument. This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been an 

unfavourable change in the group debtors' situation or in the economic conditions at national or 

local level related to non-payment of assets in the group. 

When planning futUTe cash flows, the Bank uses estimates based on historical loss experience for 

assets with credit risk characteristics and on the objective evidence of impairment similar to those 

in the portfolio, in the current conditions as well as in provisional data. 

The methodology and assumptions used in the impairment assessment are constantly reviewed (at 

least once a year) to reduce the difference between the expected losses and the actual losses over a 

certain period of time, making comparisons and analyses (back -testing type) of the differences 

between the adjustments already recorded for a certain period of time and the actual loss incurred 

al the end of Lhat period. 

l n addition, the Bank makes estimates in respect of the probability that the cun-ent undrawu 

facilities will be drawn in the foreseeable future, i.e. how will convert letters / guarantee ceilings 

into credits. For commitments that are likely to become credit exposures, the Bank makes estimates 

for future expected credit losses. 

Fair Values of Financial Asset's and Liabilities 

Hierarchy ana lysis of the fail· value of financial instruments measured at fair value: 

Level 1: includes instmments quoted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

l'hc accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Level 2: includes instruments whose fair value is determined using inputs that are observable for 

the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and 
Level. 3: includes instruments for which the fair value is determined using inputs that are not based 
on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

Real estate evaluation - applied evaluation methods 

• Given the characteristics and location of the Assets under Evaluation, all tliree evaluation 
approaches were applied depend_i_ng on the type of asset being valued and the specific 
market information available. 

• The main approach used in the evaluation was the income approach, i.e. tl1e Income 
Capitalization Method (MCV), which is appJied to most of tl1e assets subject to valuation. 
Values earned tluough the income approach have been verified with information on offers 
of similar property sales on the specific market. 

• The Cost Approach (CIN) was applied for: The CEC Palace (the value of the land was 
estimated by the Market Approach - Direct Comparison Method (MCD), and the value of 
the Building by Net Replacement Cost (CIN), the Sla11ic TraiJ1ing Center and 
Accommodation Moldova (its land is not owned by CEC Bank, being licensed) garages and 
wooden cottages located in Tuzla. The share held by the assets valued by the cost approach 
in total assets, except t he CEC Palace, is very low 1%). 

• The Market Approach and the Direct Comparison Method (MCD) were applied for the 
estimation of the market value of the CEC Palace land, for the valuation of the surplus / 
independent land ownec.l by the Bank and of the non-operating residential properties 
(Ceahlau - Neamt, Ocna Mures - Alba, And.rid - Satu Mare, Lisa - Brasov and Sarmasel -
Mures), as well as for checking Lhe values obtained for the residential properties 
(apartments and houses located in t11e rural area) by applying the income approach and the 
unit values for commercial properties. 

IFRS 13 identifies three widely used evaluation techniques: 
a) Market approach 
b) Income approach 
c) Cost approach 

IFRS 13 does not require the use of a particular valua Lion technique but sets out principles for 
choosing an appropriate valuation technique for which sufficient, obse1vable and relevant data is 
available. 

a) Market approach 

The market approach provides an indication of the value by comparing the subject asset with 
identical or similar assets for which price information is available. 

h) Income approach 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED) 

The income approach provides an indicatio n of the value by converting fu ture cash flows into a 
single current value of the capital. This approach takes into account the revenue Lhat a n asset will 
generate over its useful life a nd indicates the value through a capitalization process. Capitalization 
involves the conversion of income into a capital vaJue by applying an appropriate cap italization / 
discount rate. 

c) Cost approach 

Cost approach provides an indication o f value by using the economic principle according to which a 
buyer will not pay m ore for an assel lhan the cost required Lo obtain an asset with the same ut ility, 
either by buying o r build ing. Often , the asset under evaluation will be less atlractive than Lbe 
equivalent that could be bough t or b uilt because of age or depreciation. In this case, it may be 
necessary to apply adjustments to the cost of tl1e equivalent asset , depending on the type of value 
requested. 

The tables below analyses the financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value at the end of the 

reporting period , o n hiera rchical levels: 

Financial asse ts and liabilities at fair va lue at 31 Decembe r 2020: 

Level l Level2 Level 3 Total 

Financia l assets 
Other flmmcia/ assets 
Fina ncial derivatives - Swap on 

16 exchange rate 
Fi11t111cia/ assets measured at/air v(l/ue 
throu,:ft other comprehe ftsive income, ll ,062,866 ll.M1l 
out of which: 
- Securities 11,062,866 
- Equity lnvestments 13,048 
Fitumcial m,·sets mmulatori/y at f air 
value tit rough profll or lass, out of - - !.9.A-.3.Q - -
wlticlt: 
- Debt securities l9,430 
N on-financiaJ assets 

- Land and buildings 477,245 
TotaJ assets ca1·ried at fair value 11.g62,866 16 5Q51.72_3 

Financial liabilities 
Other ji,umcia/ liabilities 
Fina ncial derivatives - Swap on 
exchange rate 
To tal liabilities carried at fair 
value 

6 

'The accompanying noles from pages 9 lo 135 form an integral part of these financial s lalcments. 
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTlMATES AND JUDGMENTS (CONTlNUED) 

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value at 31 December 20J9: 

Level l Level2 Level3 Total 
FinanciaJ assets 
Other jimmcial assets 
Financial derivatives - Swap on 
exchange rate 6 6 

Filla11cia/ 11ssets measured al fair value 
through other comprehensive income, 
out of wltich: 

S.59.4.2fill 3.Q...414 5,625,182 

- Secur ities 5,594,768 5,594,768 
- Equity Investments 30,414 30,414 
Non-financial assets 

- Land and buildings 521,664 521,664 
Total assets carried at fair value s,SM¼zu8 _6 SSW78 6,146,8,")2 

FinanciaJ liabilities 
Other financial liabilities 
Financial derivatives - Swap on 
exchange rate 
Total liabilities carried al fair 
value 

8 

Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value in the balance sheet 

The following table summarizes the carry ing amounts and fair values of those financial assets and 

liabilities that a re not recogn ized at fa ir value in the ba la nce sheet of the bank. Purchase prices are 

used to estimate the fair values of assets a nd sales prices arc applied for liabilities. 

The accompanying note;. from pa1-1es 9 to 135 form an integral part of tliese financial stntenll'nts 
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is disclosed as at 31 December 2020: 

!,it;velt Level 2 Level3 
Financial assets 
Cash and cash 
equivalents at Central 827,068 3,930,328 
Bank 
Loans and advances to 

383,799 banks 
Loans a nd advances to 

21,996,322 customers 
Investments in debt 
instruments at 2,357,474 
amo1tizcd cost 

Other financial assets 22,227 

Total financial 
3,:1_84,5-4Z assets 4,314,l.2.'Z 22,.0J.8 ,5-42 

Financial liabilities 
Deposits from banks 1,072,401 
Deposits from 

35,042,276 customers 
Borwwings from banks 
and other financial 
institutions 

565,380 

Other financial 
36,329 liabilities 

Total financial 
36,6~:z 36,:329 liabilities --

The accompanying notes from pages 9 lo t35 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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value 

4,757,396 

383,799 

21,996,322 

2,357,474 

22,227 

~~2.18 

1,072,401 

35,042,276 

565,380 

36,329 

36,7J.6.,3-86 

TQli!l 
gccounling 

value 

4,757,396 

383,799 

21,924,072 

2,267,578 

22,227 

~ss,on 

1,072,401 

34,833,093 

565,380 

36,329 

1-2,507,2<13 
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is disclosed as at 31 December 2019: 

Total 
TotaJ fair accounting 

Levell Level2 Level3 value value 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash 
equivalents at Central 708,560 3,333,093 4,041,653 4,041,653 
BanJ.: 
Loans and advances to 

378,107 378,107 378,107 banks 
Loans and advances to 

19,902,843 19,902,843 19,903,286 customers 
Investments in debt 
instruments at 2,180,177 2,180,177 2,097,416 
amortized cost 

Other financial assets 44,765 44,765 44,765 

Total financial 
assets ~13-1 3,7-11,200 l9,947&Q8 ~42.5_45 2..6.,_4,65,22:z 

Financial liabilities 
Deposits from banks 235,405 235,405 235,405 
Deposits from 

28,146,588 28,146,588 27,985,149 customers 
Borrowings from banks 
and other financial 429,335 429,335 429,335 
institutions 
Other financial 
liabilities 3l,937 31,937 31,937 

Total financial 
28,811,32.8 28,8-4~ 28,681.826 liabilities - 3-!.937 = 

a) Loans and advances to banks and cash at Central Bank 

Loans and advances to banks include inter-bank placements and items in the comse of coUection. 
Cash at central banks includes the minimum reserve and current accounts held at the NBR. The fair 
value of 'floating rate placements and overnight deposits is equal to their carrying amount. 

b) Loans and advances to customers 

Loans and advances are net of provisions for impairment. The estimated fair value of loans and 
advances represents the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows expected to be received. 
Expected cash flows are discounted at current market rates to determine fair value. 'n1e estimated 
fair value of fixed interest bearing loans is based on discounted cash tlows using prevailing money­
market interest rates for debts •,vith similar credit risk and remaining maturity. 

The accompanying note!, from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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4 S IGNJFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTJMATES AND JU DGMENTS (CONTINUED) 

The following table provides the description of unobservable data and the valuation techniques 
used for level 3 in accordance w:ith IFRS 13. 

Group Fair Evaluation Significant Average 
value techniques unobservable inputs interest rate 

PD and LGD as items Future 
reflecting credit risk in 3.62% for EUR 

Legal entities Agriculture 1,368,976 discounted cash the discount rate of 5.37% for RON flows 
future flows. 

PD and LGD as items 
future reflecting credit risk in 

3.14% for EUR Legal entities Commerce 1,457,882 djscounted cash the discount rate of 
flows future flows. 5.13% for RON 

PD and LGD as items 
Future reflecting credit risk in 

3-49% for EUR Legal entities Construction 579,147 discounted cash the discount rate of 
5.1%for RON flows future flows. 

PD and LGD as items 
Future reflecting credit risk in 3.01% for EUR 

Legal entities industry 2,149,960 discounted cash the discount rate of 4.77%forRON 
tlows future flows. 3.37% for USD 

PD and LGD as items 

Individuals - personal Futw·e reflecting credit risk in 4.49 % for 

needs loans 1,375,592 ruscounted cash the discount rate of EUR 
flows future flows. 7.36% for RON 

PD and LGD as items 
Future reflecting crerut risk in 

2.92 %for EUR Legal entities Ser.ices 3,160,252 discounted cash the discount rate of 
5.07%for RON flows future flows. 

PD and LGD as items 
Future reflecting credit risk in 

Bridge loans for subsides 130,431 discounted cash the discount rate of 4.17%forRON 
flows future flows. 

PD and LGD as items 

Individuals - Mortgage Future reflecting credit risk in 3.58% for EUR 

loans 5,433,578 discounted cash the d iscount rate of 4.27%for RON 
flows future flows. 4.10% forUSD 

PD and LGD as items 
Future reflecting credit risk in 

.11.91% for Cards/Overdraft 215,400 discounted cash the discount rate of 
flows future flows. RON 

The accompanying notes from page.~ 9 to 135 form an integral part of lhesc fmancial statements. 
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The sensitivity of the 
valuation of the 
market value to 

unobservable inputs 

The individual growth of 
any unobservable inputs 
(PD, LGD, d iscount rate) 
would generat e a lower 
market value. 

The individual growth of 
any unobsenrable inputs 
(PD, LGD, discount rate) 
would generate a lower 
market value. 
The individual growth of 
any unobservable inputs 
(PD, LGD, discount rate) 
would generate a lower 
market value. 
The individual growth of 
any unobservable inputs 
(PD, LGD, discount rate) 
would generate a lower 
market value. 
The individual growth of 
a ny unobservable inputs 
(PD, LGD, discount rate) 
would generate a lower 
market value. 
The individual growth of 
any unobservable inputs 
(PD, LGD, discount rate) 
would generate a lower 
market value. 
The individual growth of 
any unobservable inputs 
(PD, LGD, discount rate) 
would generate a lower 
market value. 
The individual growth of 
any unobservable inputs 
(PD, LGD, discount rate) 
would generate a lower 
market value. 
The individual growth of 
any unobservable inputs 
(PD, LGD, discount rate) 
would generate a lower 
market value. 
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED) 
c) Deposits from banks, deposits from customers and borrowings from banks and other 

financial institutions 

The estimated fair value of deposits witb no stated matmity, which includes non-interest-bearing 
deposits, as presented in Lhe interest gap analysis, is the amount repayable on demand. The 
estimated fair value of fixed interest-beaiing deposits, borrowings from banks and other financial 
institutions without a quoted market price is based on discounted cash flows using interest rates for 
new debts with similar remaining maturity. 

d) Financial assets measured at fair value tlu-ough other items of comprehensive income -
Government securities 

The fair value of government bills available for sale is determined using BID quotations (expressed 
as yield) in Bloomberg, source BGN. 

e) Financial assets measured at fair value through other items of comprehensive income -
Shares 

Equity securities available for sa le include shares that are not traded in on an active market (FRGC 
S.A. - Fondul Roman de Garantare a Creditelor pe.ntru Intreprinzatori Privati , Transfond S.A. -
Societatea de Transfer de Fonduri si Decontari, BirouJ de Credit S.A, Casa de Compensare Bucuresti 
S.A.) and shares quoted in active markets (VISA Inc.). As for the shares which are not listed on the 
market it is not possible to obtaLn their market value and, consequently, there are no recent prices 
accessible to the public. Management does not intend to sell these shares in the near fuh1re. The 
Bank determined the fair value using the fair value of the net assets based on published financial 
statements. 

In the case of Visa lnc.s, hares for which there is an active market, these are assessed on a monthly 
basis using the price quoted at NYSE. 

f) Financial assets mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss - Debt securities 

The Bank's debt instruments include shal'es that are traded on an active market (VISA Inc.) and are 
assessed on a monthly basis using the price quoted at NYSE. 

g) Investments in debt instruments at amortized cost - Government securities 

The fair value of investments in debt instruments is derived using BID quotations (expressed as 
yield) in Bloomberg, BGN source. 

h) Derivative financial assets and liabilities 

As of 31 December 2020, the value of financial derivative instruments (FX swap/forward) is 
assessed using interest rates ROBID/ROBOR/EURIBOR/USD DEPO/G.BP DEPO/CHF DEPO 
displayed by Thomson Reuters, as well as official exchange rates published by NBR in order to 
compute forward rates for remaining period of outstanding contracts. 

The accompan}ing notes from pag~ 9 to 135 form an integral part of these linanc.ial statement..~. 
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED) 

i) Financial assets and liabilities 

The management considered that the fair value is equal to the accounting value considering that 
these financial assets and liabilities are expected to be settJed within one month or with no fixed 
maturity, they are short-term and their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair 
value. 

j) Property 

As a result of the analysis conducted by the Bank's management of the market value of real estate 
market products, it resulted that it did not fluctuate significantly during 2020 and there were no 
external asset depreciation ratios as compared to the analysis as at 31 December 2019. The 
management considered that the net book value of land and buildings at 31 December 2020 
represents a fair estimate of fair values at the reporting date. 

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no change~ to the fair valuation at fair value 
in J .evel 3 rating techniques (2019 - did not exist). 

Tbe following table shows the situation of the evaluation results on each applied valuation method. 

Real Estate Valuation - input data analysis according to IFRS J3 

Evaluation results for each evaluation method used 

Crt. Evaluation Property Concession DevcJoped Usable Fair value 
Pieces (RON No. method (sm) (sm) area (sm) area (sm) thousands) 

1 MCV 1,000 108,448 69,131 279,505 220,593 479,136 
2 CTN 30 6,223 2,045 12,818 9,461 123,850 

3 MCD 19 16,033 - 1,403 L,OOL 1,823 -
Total 1.049 130,704 71,176 293,726 231,055 604,809 

Considering the valuation methodology used, it can be concluded that the input data used in 

estimating the fair value fall within the level 3 data category. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of lht'SC financial statements. 
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NET INTEREST INCOME 

2020 

Interest income calculated using the effective 
interest method arising from: 
Current accounts and deposits to banks 18,852 

Treasury bills, bonds and other Investment securities 374,361 
Loans and advances to customers, out of which: 1,140,057 
Interest income on impaired loans 62,242 

The provision/or income from interest on loans changes 
undetermined cash flows of credit risk 
l mpairmenl provisions on interest for impaired loans (18_,5361 

Total interest income l,53'.1,220 

Interest expense related to financial liabilities 
measured at amortized cost arising from: 
Savings instruments from customers 53 
Current accounts and term deposits from customers 400,384 
Loans and deposits from banks 27,765 
Interest expense on lease liabilities 496 
Other borrowed funds 668 
Total interest expense ~ 

Net interest income .l..l..Q,.'3,904 

NET COMMISSION INCOME 
2020 

Commission income 
Commissions from operations ¥.rith cards 81,019 
Com.missions from cash transactions 59,198 
Commissions from guarantees issued 6,548 
Commissions from current accounts opening 119,217 
Other commissions 34,098 
Total commissions inrome 3o_o..o.So 

Commission expense 
Commissions for inter-bank transactions 25,452 
Commissions for financial risk insurance 469 
Commissions for financial services U42 
Total commission expense 33..o.63 
Net commission income 2U7--.fil7 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 fonn an integral part of these finru1cial statements. 
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8,868 

203,667 
1,155,214 

57,855 

{.1.1,28.61 

1,367,749. 

84 
227,984 

13,686 

464 

945 
_243423 

1,.124,.586 

2019 

76,158 
62,902 

5,040 
112,009 
25,729 

281.838 

26,857 

573 
~ 

~~ 
25J.,,9__82 

Tbis version of Lhc financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romnnian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure thal Lhc Lranslation is an accurate representation of the original. Hnwever, in a ll matters nf 
interpretation of information, vic\VS or opinions, the orii,•inal lan~uagc ,·crsion of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 



CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise s tated) 

7 OTHER OPERATING INCOME 

Income from other operations 

Income from div idends 

Rental income 
Total 

2020 

10,464 

10,263 

..5.Jl5! 
25,z_7__a 

2019 

7,761 

2,789 

.5..291 
~ 

8 STAFF COSTS 

9 

Wages and salaries 

Social security contributions 

Other social security conti·ibutions 

Other s taff costs 

Provisions for other employee benefits 
Prov ision for employee benefits upon the termination 
of the employmen1 contract (i) 

2020 

425,457 

9,569 
31,066 

(10,291) 

1.3.9QQ 

2019 

415,631 
11 

9,350 

Total 469.,7_fn 46.4,~ 
(i) At 31.12.2020 Lhe Bank set up provisions for funds to support the early retirement programme 
applicable in 2021 in the amount of RON 12,316 thousand and for compensation paymen ts to be 
granted in 2021 in case of individual redundancies for reasons not attr ibutable to employees, 
following Executive Committee / Board of Directors decisions from 2020 to reorganize the activity 
of units of the Bunk in the amount of RON L,644 thousand. 

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 
2020 

Visa and Mastereard expenses 21,022 
Third parties expenses (i) 44,313 
Advertising and publicity 10,128 
Materials and inventories 14,154 
Other truces (ii) 42,207 
Provisions for loans corn.mitments and financial guarantees 10,356 
Provisions for litigations and for internal or external fraud 

(784) 
(Note 28) 
Other operating expenses 4,513 
Rent expenses 2,770 
Travel and ti-anspmtation expenses 13,283 
Expenses with deposits' guarantee fund 23,468 
Repairs and m aintena nce of property and equipment 65,633 
Expenses with post and telecommunications 16,613 
(Gafa)/ Loss on sale of fixed assets and investment property (3,980) 
Net charge for impairment of equity instruments (Note 24) (335) 
Net cha rge for impairment of investment property ---
Total ~.61 

The accompanying nores from pages 9 lo 135 form an integral part of these financial slatements. 
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2 Q19 

18,526 

4 1,369 

19,916 
11,623 

49,400 

5,746 

(935) 

3,021 

2,702 

13,127 

55,500 
51,611 

17,281 
(1,420) 

1,397 

2.81Lll64 

This version of the financial slatcrnents is a free tronslation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been La ken LO ensure I hat the translation is an accurate repre.~entntion of the original. I lowever, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, d ews or opinions, the original language version of our report lakes precedence over this 
translation. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 1 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 

(i) At 31 December 2020, the amount also includes the total fees for the financial year 
charged by the statutory auditor for the statutory audit of the annual financial 
statements in the amount of RON 491 thousand as well as the total fees cha1·ged by the 
statutory auditor for services other than audit, in the amount of RON 426 thousand 
perceived in the year 2020. 
Also there are included the costs of administrative services related to buildings in 
amount of RON 19,906 thousand (2019: RON 18,029 thousand) as well as other 
expenses of se1vices provided by third parties (notarial expenses, copier rent, fire risk 
assessment, equipment check, etc.) in amount of RON 13,959 thousand (2ot9: RON 
15,825 thousand). 

(ii) At 31 December 2020, the amount includes the expense with the financiaJ assets tax of 
the Bank of RON o (2019: RON 9,921 thousand) as well as the expense with the pro 
VAT rate of RON 28,257 thousand (2019: RON 25,733 thousand). 

(iii) The decrease of the costs of the contribution to the Deposit Guarantee Fund and the 
Bank Resolution Fund by RON 32,032 thousand in 2020 is mainly due to the reduction 
of the risk associated with the Bank by the Deposit Guarantee Fund (from 117.6% in 
2019 to 112.3% in 2020) generating an annual contribution to be paid for 2020 in 
amount of RON 13,700 thousand (1rn19: RON 42,411 thousand) as well as the reduction 
of the contribution to be paid to the resolution fund for 2020 in amount of RON 9,768 
thousand (2ot9: RON 13,089 thousand). 

10 NET IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 

Net charge with adjustments for expected credit loss 

related to loans and advances to customers and for 

expected credit loss adjustments due to current customer 

account fees 

Net charge with adjustments for expected loss on current 

account and deposits with NBR 

Net charge with adjustments for expected losses on 

correspondent accounts with credit institutions 

Losses from non-recoverable receivables not covered by 

adjustments for expected loss of credit 

Recoveries from loans sold 

Recoveries from loans previously written off 

Total net charge ·with adjustments for expected credit losses 

2020 

81 

(171) 

1,865 

(3,012) 
(116,ggg) 

2.91,361 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 fonn an integral part of lbcse financial ~talements. 
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2019 

234 

86 

2,036 

(29,078) 

(1Q2,394) 

158,48z 

This version of the financial statements is a free trans lation from Lhe original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken Lo ensure that the translation is an accurate rcpresenlalion of Lhc original. However, in all matters or 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original langl 1age version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts arc in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

Current tax expense at 16 % (2019: 16%) of taxable 

profits determined in accordance with Romanjan law 

Deferred expense tax (see Note 29) 

Income tax expense/ (credit) 

2020 

55,605 
.wfu) 

~ 

2019 

76,111 

(3,708) 

72A.Q3 

Reconciliation of profit before tax to income tax expense in the income statement 

Profit before tax 

Expenses and income related to the accommodation activity 
for which specific tax is payable 

Profit to be taxed 

Theoretical tax charge at statutory rate of 16% (2019: 16%) 
The tax effect of non-deductible expenses and items similar 
to income, plus deferred tax expense 
Tax effect of non-taxable income and tax deductions, plus 
deferred tax revenues and sponsorship tax credit 

Income tax expense for the year 

Effective tax rate 

2020 

389,524 

825 

390,349 
62,456 

43,7L4 

(54,346) 

~51,824 

13.30% 

2019 

451,988 

949 

452,937 
72,470 

42,628 

(42,695) 

.;z~Q-3 
16.02% 

Non-deductible expenses include negative fair value adjustme nts of financial assets, losses from the 

revaluatio n of fixed assets, fuel expenses and various other non-deductible operating expenses. 

No n-taxable income includes the reversal of provisions for financial assets which were previously 

non-deductible expenses and jncome coming from dividends and other sundry non-taxable income. 

12 CASH AND CASH EQUJV ALENTS AT CENTRAL BANK 

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 

Cash on band 

Cash in ATM's 

Mandatory minimum reserve (i) 

Other currenl accounts held "vjth 
the National Bank of Rom a nia 

Cash and cash equivalents at Central Bank 

572,896 472,032 

254,172 236,528 

3,927,865 3,329,883 

-2...463 ...3.,_gJQ 

4-,~3-9c2. 4.04~~ 

(i) The mandatory minimum reserve is maintained in accordance with Regulation no. 6/2002 
issued by the NationaJ Bank of Romania and the subsequent changes and amendments. 
According lo this regulation, the Bank is required to maintain a minimum average balance 
of mandatory reserve throughout the reporting period (monthly basis). The a mo unts fro m 
tJ1e mandatory reserve accounts are readily available for the use of the Bank according to 

'l'he accompanying noles from pages 9 to 135 fonn an integral part of lhcse financiaJ :,iatemenls. 

Page 105 of 135 
This vC!J'sion of lhe financial statements is a free Lr:mslation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure tl1ol tl1e translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation or infonnation, views or opinions, the original language version uf our report takes precedence over this 
L rans lation. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTESTOTHEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT CENTRAL BANK (CONTINUED) 
the liquidity needs and strategy, subject to achieving the minimum reserve as an average 

for the reporting period. 

At 31 December 2020 the mandatory minimum reserve was set at 8% (31 December 2019: 

8%) for funds attracted from customers in RON and 5% (31 December 2019: 8%) for 

foreign currency denominated funds attracted. The interest rate granted by the National 

Bank of Romania for the current accounts in RON during 2020 ranged behveen 0.10 % and 

0.20 % p.a. (2019 between 0.14 % and 0.22 % p.a.). For the current account in EUR, the 

National Bank of Romania granted during 2020 an interest of 0 .01% p.a. (2019: 0.01% 

p.a.). For the cu1Tent account in USO, the National Bank of Romania granted during 2020 

an interest between 0.01 % and 0.10 % p.a. (2019 between 0.10 % and 0.17 % p.a.). 

As at 3 1 December 2020 the amounts presented in the statement of financial position of cash and 

cash equivalents at Cent-ra1 Bank are cutTent and not impaired. 

13 DERIV ATTVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

31 December 2020 

Asset Liability 

Financial derivatives _lQ 

31 December 2019 

Ai,set Liability 

The table above sets out fair values, at the end of the reporting period, of cmrencies receivable or 

payable under foreign excha nge forward and swap contracts entered into by the Bank. The table 

reflects gross positions before the netling of any counterparty positions (and payments) and covers 

the contracts with settlement dates after the end of the respective reporting period. 

Derivative instruments concluded by the Bank are, generally, traded on an over-the-counter market 
with professional counterparties in standard contractual tern,s and conditions. Derivative 

instruments have favourable potential (assets) or unfavourable potential (liability) depending on 

nuctuations in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates or other variables related to their terms. 
Aggregate fair value of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate significantly from 

time to time. 

Certain monetary items denominated in a foreign currency are economically safeguarded using FX 
swaps contracts as set out in the table above. The Bank does not use hedge accounting for its 

currency derivative contracts. 

Fair value of deriva.tjve financial iJ1struments is determined using the market quotations or 
dic;counted cash flow models, as appropriate. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Page 106 of 135 
This version of the financial statements is a free trunslution from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the lranslution is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of informolion, views <>r opinions, the original langungc version of our report takes precedem.-e over this 
translntion. 



CEC BANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO BANKS 

3 1 December 2020 3 1 December 2019 

Current accounts held with other banks 
Term deposits with other banks 
Sight deposits with other banks 
Collateral deposits ·with other banks 

Total 

61,217 

161,251 

158,105 

3,226 

383.299 

64,301 

111,002 

199,573 

3,231 

3.z8.,1,Q:Z 

As at 31 December 2020 the Bank has a collateral deposit concluded for VISA through the financial 
institution J P Morgan Collateral Custodian Services of RON 2,712 thousand (2019: RON 2,681 

thousand) and a collateral deposit for MasterCard through HSBC Bank London of RON 514 

thousand (2019: RON 550 thousand). The obligation for holding such collateral deposits is 
necessary to cover the amounts ca rried / settled periodically by the organization. Value of collateral 
deposits is established depending on the transactional volume of each organization. Organizations 
can regularly request the update of tbe value of deposits maintained in their favoUl'. Contracts are 
valid during tl1e period in vvhich they are members of organizations licensed by VISA and 
MasterCard. 

Current accounts and sight and term deposits with other banks are at the disposal of the Bank and 
are not restricted. Credit ratings of banks are presented in Note 3. 

As at 31 December 2020, the Bank did not hold reverse repo operations and amounts due from 
other banks are not collateralised. 

15 FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

a) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehe nsive income 

31 Dece mber 2020 31 December 2019 

Government bonds 
Available for sale - equity investments (Note 15 b) 

Total 

11,062,866 

13,048 

As at 31 December 2020, there are no REPO and REVERSE REPO transactions. 

The accompanying notes from page.~ 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Page 107 of 135 

5,594,768 

30.414 

This version of the financial statements is a free translation from Lhe origin.al, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that Lhc translation is an aet:uratc representation of the orii,•inal. However, in al l matters of 
interpretation of infonnntion. Yiews or opinions, the original language vcrsi,m of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 
FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED) 

Ratings for investment securities classified as financia l assets measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income portfolio are detailed in Note 3, page 74. 

b) The Bank held the following financial assets measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income at 31 December 2020: 

Name Nature of business Country 
Percentage C:arrving 

held Amount 
Biroul de credit SA Credit risk monitoring Romania 4.74 770 

FRGCSA 
Fond for Guaranteeing 

Romarua 3.10 667 
Loans for Private Investors 

CCBSA 
Settlemenl and clearing 

Romania 0.61 
OTC market 

TransFonD SA Interbank transfers Romania 2.69 1,301 

SWlFT Transfer of funds Belgium <0.01 335 

MasterCard Interna tional 
Processing banking cards 

Belgium <0.01 
lransactions 

VISA Inc. Processing card transactions 
Unjted 

States 
<0.01 91975 

Total ~ 

The Bank held the following available for sale equity investments al 31 December 2019: 

~ Nature of business Country 
Percentage Carrying 

held Amount 
Biroul de credit SA Credit risk monitoring Romania 4.74 

FRGCSA 
Fond for Guarnrrteeing 

Romania 3.10 
Loans for Private Investors 

CCBSA 
Settlement and clearing 

Romania 0.61 
OTC market 

TransFonD SA Interbank transfers Romania 2.69 

SWIFr Transfer of funds Belgium <0.0J 

MasterCard International 
Processing ban.king cards 

Belgium <0.01 
transactions 

VISA Inc. Processing card transactions 
United 
States 

<0.01 

Total 

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the eqwty investments held by CEC Bank were not 
pledged. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 13.5 form an integral part of these fimmcial statements. 

Page 108 of 135 
This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original. which was prcpan,-d in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken Lo ensure lbal the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, view~ or opinions, the original language versiun of our reporl takes precedence O\'Cr this 
translation. 

808 

670 

1,209 

301 

27,425 

3Q.AM 



CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

L6 FINANCIAL ASSESTSAT AMORTIZED COST - DEBT INSTRUMENTS 

~cember 2020 31 December 2019 

Government bonds 2,267,578 2,097,416 

Total 

Investments' classification as debt instruments at amortized cost depends both on the conditions 

and characteristics of the financial assets and on the ability and effective intention of the Bank to 

hold these instruments until maturity. 

As at 31 December 2020, investments in debt instru ments at amortized cost include bonds which 

are pledged securities of RON 37,000 thousand (31 December 2019: RON 32,250 thousand) for the 

operations with Visa, MasterCard and Sent (electronic settlement system for small local currency 
payments). The counterpart)' cannot subsequently seU or pledge these assets. 

Additionally, at 31 December 2020, investments in debt instruments at amortized cost also include 

pledged treasury bills for the borrowing with the EJB with a fair value of RON 298,842 thousand 

(31 December 20 t9: RON 422,n3 thousand). The counterparty cannot sell or pledge these 

invest1nents. 

During 2020, the Bank did not sell investment securities classified as investments in debt 

instruments at amortized cost. 

Ratings for investment securities classified as Held to maturity portfolio are detailed in Note 3, 

page 74. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to L35 form an inte!,rral purl of these financial stlltemcnts. 

Page 109 of 135 
This \'Crsion of the financial statement~ is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate repre..~cntalion of the original. 1 lowe,er, in all matter:. or 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence 01·er thb 
transltltion. 



CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 

The Bank's loans and advances to customers are for legal entrtles and individuals living in 

Romania. The focus of the portfolio of loans granted to customers by category of clients, type of 

credit for individuals, respectively the field of activity for legal entities on 31 December 2020 and 31 

December 2019 is: 

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 

Individuals - personal needs loans fully collateralised 

with real estate collaterals 

Individuals - personal needs loans without real 

estate collaterals or not fully covered 

Individuals - Mortgage loans 

Cards/Overdraft 

Total loans fo1· inclividuals 

Legal entities Agiiculture 

Public local administrations 

Legal entities Industry 

Legal e ntities Commerce 

Legal entities Construction 
Legal entities Services 

Bridge loans for subsides 

Total corporate loans and advances 

Total loans advances to customers (gross) 

Adjustments for expected credit loss 

Total loans and advances to customers (net) 

346,317 

1,316,081 

5,535,195 
266.712 

.'l.-4-64 ,30.5 

1,811.535 

3,960,795 

2,988,378 
1,792,517 

720,853 
4,255,802 

157.477 

IS..@_.351 

~,15.4662 

(1,227,590) 

2J,.924a,O'Z2 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral pan of these financial slatements. 
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383,698 

1,152,945 

4,860,756 

269.925 

.6, 667,32.4 

1,738,318 

3,943,543 

2,396,039 
1,472,610 

581,359 

3,793,807 
166,071 

14..09.lt2.47 

gg;z~ 

(855,785) 

!9,£!03,286 

This version of the tlnanciaJ statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that Lhc translation is an accurate representation of the original. 1 lowever, in ail mallcrs of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, Lhe original language version of our report takes precedence over Lhis 
translation. 



CEC BANKSA 

NOTES TO TH E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

17 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED) 

The effect of changing expected loss for loans and advances to customers can be analysed on 31 

December 2020 as follows: 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

Initial balance at I January 109,310 59,644 686,831 855,785 

Transfer to Stage 1 74,596 (73,273) (1,323) 

Transfer to Stage 2 (24,202) 91,625 (67,423) 

Transfer to Stage 3 (469) (23,383) 23,852 

Increase due to new loans granted in the year 28,593 3,220 10,968 42,780 

Decreases due to closed loans in year (9,587) (9,373) (18,171) (37,L31) 

Net resizing during the year 95,248 118,152 148,676 362,077 

Write-off (3,806) (3,806) 

lnterest adjustments 9,248 9,248 

Other adjustments (sw_ Wm)_ .(Q5ll (1,363) 

Final balance at 31- December gzg.,_952 166._432 ::z88,20...l 1.,22:Z,590 

During 2020 the Bank has not written off loans and advances to customers. 

In 2020, the Bank has concluded 4 loan sale agreements with third party entities. Assignments 
were made by selling individual receivables. Thrnugb these contncts, there were sold receivables 
from non-pe1forming loans, individuals and legal entities, guaranteed and tLnsecured in gross vaJue 
of RON 4,544 thousand at the date of derecognition (out of which the extra-balance sheet 
receivable RON 1,192 thousand). Adjustments for expected credit loss were in the amount of RON 
2,414 Lhousand. The amount of the receivables was collected RON 2,947 thousand. This amount is 
follDd on the credit position of "Net impairment loss on loans and advances to customers" in the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The sale agreement is without 
recourse. 

As of 3 L December 2020, the breakdown of expected credit loss for cLient receivables is detailed by 
customer groups according to tbe field of activity in Note 3, page 57. 

The accompanying notes from page.c; 9 to 135 form an integral part of these flnancial statements. 

Page 111 of 135 
This vC'.rsion of the financial statements is a free translati<m from Lhe original, which was prepared in Romanian. All posbiblc 
care has been taken lo ensure L11al the translation is an ac1:urate representation of the original. J lowe\'Cr, in all matters of 
inlcrprclalion of information, views or opinion~, the original language \'crsiun of our report takes precedence over Lhi:, 
translation. 



CECB.ANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

17 LOANS AND .ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTlNUED) 

The effect of changing expected loss for loans and advances to customers can be analysed on 3 1 

December 2019 as follows: 

Stage 1 Stage 2 St~ge 3 Total 
ln.itial balance at J January 104,237 46,285 584,062 734,584 

Transfer to Stage 1 16,721 (14,806) (1,915) 

Transfer to Stage 2 (5,959) 24,649 (18,690) 

Transfer to Stage 3 (1,160) (6,610) 7,770 

Increase due to new loans granted in the year 22,851 2,386 28,309 53,546 

Decreases due to closed loans in year (5,093) (680) (21,520) (27,293) 

Net resizing during the year (21,601) 8,578 264,643 251,620 

Write-off (154,954) (154,954) 

Interest adjustments 385 385 

Other adjustments .(Q_8_fil_ usfil_ (1,259) (2,.!.Q3) 

FinaJ balance at 31 December l.Q9,.3ill. 59,644 §§§_,~ .855.~ 

During 2019 the l3ank has written off loans and advances to customers amounting to nominal value 
of RON 154,954 thousand through the direct redL1ction of the unrecoverable loans fully covered 
with expected loss adjustments. 

In 2019, the Bank has concluded 8 loan sale agreements with third party entities. Assignments were 
made by selling both portfolios and individual receivables. Through these contracts, there were sold 
receivables from non-perfonuing loans, individuals and legal entities (including cards), guaranteed 
and unsecured in gross vaJue of RON 74,880 thousand at the date of derecognition (oul of which 
the extra-balanc:e sheet receivable RON 59,392 thousand, from which amounted to RON 20,657 
thousand from collective transfers). Adjustments for expected credit loss were in the amount of 
RON 5,351 thousand. The amount of the receivables was collected RON 29,040 thousand (of which 
RON 2,745 thousand from collective transfers). This amount is found on the credit position of "Net 
impairment loss on loans and advances to customers" in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. The sale agreement is without recourse. 

As of 31 December 2019, the breakdown of expected credit loss for client receivables is detailed by 
customer groups according to the field of activity in Note 3, page 58. 

The accompan)ing notes from pages 9 to 13.5 form an integral pai1 of these financial statements. 

Page 112 of 135 
This version of the financial statements is a free trans lation from lhe nriginal, which was prepared in Romanian. AU possible 
care has been taken to ensure that lhc translation is an accurate representation of the original However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, lhe original language "ersion of our report take:, precedence over this 
tnmslation. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

FINANCIAL ASSETS MANDATO RILY AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 

The structure of financial assets which are required lo be measured at fair value thl'Ough profit or 
loss is presented in the table below: 

Debt instruments 
Total 

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 

19A.3Q 

J,9.A3-Q 

Starting with 2020, the Bank has corrected the classification of securities held in Visa Inc. from 
financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income in fina11cial assets 
mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss. 

As a result of the correction of the classification of visa lnc.'s shares from -financial assets measured 
at fair value through other cornprehe11sive income in financial assets mandatorily at fair value 
through profit or loss, the Bank transfened the amounts net of tax representing revaluation and 
exchange rate differences recorded between January 1, 2018 and December 2019, amounting to 
RON 16,616 thousand. 

The uccompanjing notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of lhesr financial statements. 

Page 113 of 135 
This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

19 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
Technical 

installations Assets 
Land and and in course of 
buildings m11chiD!:a:l'. ~2D~ta!~lion 

Gross cost at l January 2ot9 565,754 256,899 1,694 

Additions 426 11,387 6,830 

Transfers 4,264 15 (4,292) 

Disposals (86) (8,923) (2) 

Reclassifications from Property, Plan I and Equipment to 

investment property -1&Ql -- -- -
Gross cost at 31 December 2019 520..,.118 259>3'78 ~ 

Gross cost al 1 January 2020 570,318 259,378 4,230 
Additions (*) 388 48,987 7,412 

Advances for tangible assets 1,588 

Transfers 2,356 15 (2,371) 

Disposals (1,635) (12,049) 

Reclassifications from Property, Plant and Equipment to 
(28,659) (79) 

investment property 

Net amount of reclassifications from Property, Plant 

and Equipment to investment property (adjustments ..!ful.3l -- ---
and accumulated depreciation) 

Gross cost at 31 December 2020 54.!.1175 .297~_!2 9+19..2 

Technical 
installations Assets 

Land and and in course of 
buildings mas.hin!:a ~nstructiQn 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 January 2019 29,750 206.399 

Depreciation charge for the year 18,939 16,032 

Disposals (19) (8,844) 
Reclassifications from Property, Plant and Equipment to 

investment property ufil --- ---
Accwnulated depreciation at 31 December 2019 ~ .2.13,5~ - -
Accumulated depreciation at 1 January 2020 48,654 213,587 
Depreciation charge for the year 18,725 18,075 
Disposals (949) lu,975) 
Accumulated depreciation from Property, Plant and (1,800) 

Equipment to investment property 

Reversal of accumulated depreciation ---
AccumuJated depreciation at 31 December 2020 ~ .2J.9_.687 --
Net book value at 31 December 2019 521,664 45,7-2! 4 ¼2_39 

Net book value at 31 December 2020 4'.Z'Z.M!i 78,232 ~ 

The accompan}1ng notes from pages 9 lo 135 form an integral part of thCl>e financial statements. 
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Other 
installations, 

equipment 
and 

furniturg 
41,866 

2,801 

13 
(444) 

---
44,236 
44,236 

3,271 

(778) 

--
46_,729 

Other 
installations, 

equipment 
and 

furniturg 

37,320 

1,199 

(435) 

----
38., 084 
38 ,084 

1,~{46 
(712) 

---
38~18 

6,-152 
8-,-01.l 

This version of the fmaadal statements i~ a free translation from the 01iginal, whic-h was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation L~ an accurate rcprc$Cntation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions. the original language version of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 

'1'2tal 
866,213 

21,444 

(9,455) 

.(.4Q)_ 

878 J.6-2 

878,162 
60,058 

1,588 

(14,462) 

(28,738) 

...ili93l 

895,715 

· 'otal 

273,469 

36,170 

(9,298) 

ufil 
300,3~ 
300,325 

38,146 
(13,636) 

(1,800) 

323,_035 
517,837 
SB,680 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amount,; are in RON thousands a:nless otherwise stated) 

19 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 

2 0 

(*)During 2020 the Bank purchased computers, laptops, it equipment, ATMs, multifunctional cars, 
transport equipment, furniture and surveillance and anti-intrusion systems in amount of RON 
52,646 thousand. Moreover, renovations were carried for the Bank's premises which were valued at 
RON 7,412 thousand. 

At 31 December 2020 (and at 31 December 2019), the committee established at Bank level 

performed impairment tests of assets and applying professional judgment estimated that during 

2020 (and 2019) there were no internal s igns for depreciation in any group of assets, consequently, 

no depreciation allowance calculation and no accounting recording of impairment for assets 

depreciation was required. 

Also, because the market value of real estate assets did not fluctuated significantly during 2020 and 

there were no external indicators for assets depreciation compared with the analysis at 31 

December 2019, the management considered that the carrying amount of land and buildings at 31 

December 2020 represents a reliable estimate offair values at the reporting date. 

At 31 December 2018 the Bank revaluated tbe land and b u.ilding based on a service contract 

concluded with an external evaluator, independent, Veridio SRL (Veridio Trusted Business 

Advisory), authorized by the National Union of Authorised Evaluators from Romania. 

During 2020, the Bank has sold two buildings and a land and recorded RON 661 thousands net 

income of. 

At 31 December 2020 CEC Bank owns 640 land properties and 903 buildings (at 31 December 

2019, CEC Bank owned 649 land and 916 buildings). 

INTANGIBLE ASS ETS 
2020 

Gross cost as at I January 184,680 

Purchases 16,240 

Transfers 831 

Disposals (5,104) 

Gross cost as at 31 December 196.6...47 

Accumulated depreciation as at 1 January 164,355 

Depreciation charge 8,596 

Transfers 831 

Disposals (5,104) 

Adjustments for previous year 

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 Decembe r 168.._678 

Net book value ~9P-9 

The accomponying notes from pages 9 to 135 fonn an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2 0 1 9 

171,038 

13,689 

__(42} 

.184,680 

156,819 

7,460 

(47) 
____u_.w 

J,M.355 

20.,325 

This version of the financial s tatements is a free trans lation from the original, which was prepared in Rom,1nian. All poSl>-ihle 
care has been taken to en~ure that I he translation is :m accurate representation of Lhc original. I lowcYcr, in all mutters of 
interpretation of informulicm, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takci; precedence over this 
t.r.mslation. 



CECBANKSA 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts arc in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

21 LNVESTMENT PROPERTY 

Gross cost as at 1 January 

Purchases 

Reclassifications from property and equipment 

Disposals 

2020 2019 

88,129 90,439 

28,738 40 
{2,558) (2,35Q) 

Gross cost as at 31 December ll---4..1Q9 ~ 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment as at 1 January 
Accumulated depreciation 
lmpairment adjustments usage 
Accumulated depreciation for reclassifications from property and 
equipment 
Disposals 
Accumulated depreciation and impairment as at 31 
December 

Net book value 

21,997 

2,816 
(386) 

1,800 

li..3.'Z!.l 
~ 

~-453 

20,044 
(2,621) 

(192) 

16 

~ 

6b.9!l.7 

M.l:12 

At 31 December 2020 (and at 31 December 2019), the committee established at Bank level 
peiformed impairmen1 tests of assets and applying professional judgment estimated that during 
2020 (and 2019) there were no internal signs for depreciation in any group of assets, consequently, 
no depreciation allowance calculation and no accounting recording of impairment for assets 
depreciation was required. 

During 2020, the rent income from investment propetty bas been in the amount of RON 3,983 
thousand (2019: RON 4,010 thousand). Direct operating expenses (building tax, repairs, 
maintenance) arising from investment property that did not generate rental income during 2020 
was in U1e amount of RON 1,293 thousand (2019: RON 1,302 thousand). Direct operating expenses 
of investment properties tha t generated rental income during 2020 was in the amount of RON 520 
thousand (2019: RON 52J thousand). 

During 2020, the Bank had 20 investment propelty sales (12 buildings and 8 land) plus 3 partial 
sales of buildings (excess space only) and a partial sale of land (only the excess part) as a result of 
which recorded RON 3,412 thousand net income of (2019: RON 1,286 thousand). 

The Bank did not acquire invesbnent property under finance leases. 

The future amounts receivable for rental income from rented premises contmcts (without right of 
cancellation) with third parties real estate investment destination are as follows: 

Not later than 1 year 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 ye.u· 
Later than 5 years 

Total 

31 December 2020 

3,730 

5,053 

---1.M 

The accompanying notes from puges 9 to 135 form an integral part of lhcse financial statements. 
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31 December 2019 

3,422 

2,452 

---99. 

s.m 

This version of the financial statements is a free translation from the original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
uire has been taken to ensure tfotl the lranslotion is an accurate represent:.ilion of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation or information, ,iews or c,pinion~. the original language version of our repnrt takes precedence over this 
translation. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 
(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 

Commercial Residential 
buildings buildings Egui9ments Land Total 

Gross cost as at 1 January 59.910 652 6.335 66.897 
2019 
Changes in leasing contracts 23.920 8 17 24.737 
Additions 5.144 6 5.150 
Disposals L3...l!.Q.} .(fil w ~ (3.2zQ) 
Gross cost as at ~ - 630 WW ~ 
31 December 2019 

= 

Gross cost as at 1 January 85,864 630 7,020 93,514 
2020 
Changes in leasing contracts 18,407 762 224 19,393 
Additions 38,918 141 481 39,540 
Disposals (35,604} J8._Q} (35,684) 
Gross cost as at -10--Z.58.s - 1,.'i:33 z.6-45 u6,1,63 
31 December 2020 

-

Commercial Residential 
buildings buildings Eguinments Land Total 

Accumulated depreciation 
as at 1 January 2019 
Depreciation charge for the year 19,933 6 425 551 20,915 
Disposals _(4fil .(fil fs1 .(59} 
Accumulated depreciation 
as at 31 December 2019 ~ - ~ 55! 20,8,56 -
Accumulated depreciation 
asat1Janua1~2020 19,885 420 551 20,856 

Depreciation charge for Lhe year 20,910 728 556 22,194 
Disposals (11,209) .(.14} (11,223) 
Accumulated depreciation 
as al 31 December 2020 29-,586 - .l.148 LQ,93 31..8.zz -
Net book value at 31 
December 2019 QS.,.~__9 -- 21.0 ~ ;z2,6s.a 
Net book value at31 
Decen1ber 2020 n.999 - 3§,s fl.5.5g ful.93-6 -

The following amounts are recognised in the statement of profit or loss: 

[uterest expense on lease liabilities 

Depreciation charge for short-term leases 

Expenses relating to leases oflow-value assets, 
excluding short- term leases oflow-value assets 

31 December 2020 

496 

31 December 2019 
464 

22,194 

2,724 

The accompanying notes from pngcs 9 Lo l35 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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20,915 

2,653 

This version of the financial .statements is a free translation from I he original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possihle 
care has been Luken to en.sure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interprelali<>n of infom1ution, views or opinion~, the original language version of our report takes prect.-dence over this 
translation. 
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23 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 
31 December 2 0 2 0 3 1 December 2019 

Amounts in course of settlement with banks (i) 
Amounts to be recovered from banks and clients 
Other debtors 
Total 

20,512 

19 
.!.&9Q 

_gg,m 

43,754 

19 

99.i 
~s 

(i) Within 'Amounts in course of settlement with banks' accottnt there are included commissions 
and penalties due from corporate clients and individuals of RON 869 thousand (2019: RON 
915 thousand) as well as cash in the process of settlement, intra-cash settlements on 
customer hansactions and other settlement accounts with: owu operations, reconciliation 
operations, EPOS deposits/withdrawals, ATM supplies, etc. 
Other financial assets are not collateralized as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. For the 
amounts detailed as at 31 December 2020, the Bank intends to recover them during 2021. 

24 OTHER ASSETS 
31 Decembe r 2 020 31 December 2019 

Prepaid expenses/Prepayments 8,369 

737 

7,816 

Otl1er guarantees for rent and utilities (i) 

Receivables from the state budget 
Other assets (ii) 

10,400 

4,374 

(772) 

4,418 

674 

4 ,051 

4,071 

Adjustments for expected loss - stocks 

Other debtors 
(772) 

5,337 
Adjustments for expected loss - other debtoTS 

Total 
(2,721) 

24,&15 

(3,292) 

~ 
(i) 

(ii) 

Guarantees for rent and utilities are advances paid by the Bank to suppliers of these services 
and blocked by these suppliers as guarantees. 
From the total of 'Other assets' category as at 31 December 2020, RON 2,919 thousand (31 
December 2019: RON 2,767 thousand) represents repossessed collate rals from foreclosed 
loans to customers in the amount of RON 1,502 thousand, and RON 1,417 thousa nd (31 
December 2019: RON 1,265 thousand) represents the Bank's patrimony under Law no. 
77/2016 with subsequent modifications and completions regarding the payment of some 
buildings in order to settle the obligations assumed by credits. 
The assets do not meet the definition of non-current assets held for sale, and are classified as 
inventories in accordance with IAS 2 - Inventories. The assets were initialJy recognised at fair 
value when acquired. 

Adjustments for expected loss for other assets that can be reconciled as follows: 

2 020 

4,064 

2019 

6,021 Balance at beginning of the year 

Derecognition of other assets (236) (3,354) 
!335)_ h39.1 Charge/(release) of provision to income statement (Note 9) 

Balance at end of year 3"4.93 4..QM 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 lo 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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25 DEPOSITS FROM BANKS 

Sight deposits 
Out of which, current accounts to other banks 
(LORO) 

Term deposits 
Total 

31 December 2020 

171,409 

19 

900.992 

l,.Q,72,401 

31 December 2019 

45,017 

17 

190,388 

~ .. AQ.5 

As at 31 December 2020 and at 31 December 2019 all "Deposits from banks" were on a short term 
basis - maturity of under a year. 

26 DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS 

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 

Current accounts and sight deposits 

Saving passbooks - sight 
Cu□-ent accounts - individuals 
Cunent accounts - legaJ entities and other clients 
Cards - individuals, legal entities and other clients 
Sight deposits - legal entities 
TotaJ cun-ent accounts and sight deposits 

Term deposits and savings 
Tenn saving passbooks 
Term deposits - individuals 
Term deposits - legal entities and other clients 
Collateral deposits (i) 
Other term deposits 
Total term deposits and savings 
Total 

(i) CollateraJ deposits are provided for: 

Letter of creclit 

Administration guarantees 
Consignment 
Guarantee loans 
Guarantees for good performance of commercial 
contracts 
Other collateral deposits 

4,805 
2,837,256 

3,694,578 

3,332,734 
229.828 

10,099.201 

134,829 

18,282,503 

4,027,166 

2,288,079 

1,315 

24,z3_3'"89.2. 

~33~.Q93 

31 December 2020 

10 L,579 

1,920,719 

206,445 

35,947 
23,389 

g,288,079 

The accompan}ing notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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5,138 
2,293,142 

2,277,577 
2,582,256 

197,665 

'.Z,355,7.'l.8 

163,986 
16,161,301 

2,479,536 

1,823,127 
1,421 

20.,629,321 

2'1~985,149 

31 December 2019 

311 

98,507 

1,584,340 

100,091 

25,592 

14,286 

_ 1.823.127 

This version of the finandal statements is a free translation from Lhe original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure thal the translation is an accurate represent:ition of the original. However, in al.I matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report takes precedence over tbis 
translation. 
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27 BORROWINGS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL lNSTITUfIONS 

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 

European Investment Fund for the J EREMIE 

Initiative (i) 
14,243 

459,114 

92,023 

s.65~ 

19,452 

317,860 

92,023 

~_3_5 

European Bank for Investments (EIB) (ii) 

Romanian-Swiss program (iii) 

Total 

(i) On 2 July 2014 the Bank signed a Finance and Risk Sharing Agreement with the European 

Investment Fund (ElF) for the JEREMIE Initiative, amounting to EUR 10 million in RON 

equivalent (EIF EUR 5 million and CEC Bank EUR 5 million), which were fully dmwn up 

until 30 June 2015. We mention that withdrawn amounts are in RON. The loan is a financing 

facility for Small and Medium Enterprises. 

• On 17 December 20L4, CEC Bank signed with the European Investment Fund (ElF) 

an Amendment to the Agreement to extend the revolving period of credit lines 

granted after 17 December 2014, until 31 December 2016; 

• On 19 Jm1e 2015, CEC Bank signed with the Eurnpean Investment Fund (EIF) an 

Amendment to the Fund's Additional Agreement with RON 107,056,800 (EIF RON 

53,528,400 and CEC Bank RON 53,528,400), out of which on 31 December 2015 

draws were made in the amount of RON 20,518,000. 

• On 19 December 2015, CEC Bank signed with the European Investment Fund (EIF) 

a new Amendment to the Agreement lo extend the revolving period of credit lines 

by 30 June 2m7; 

• On 16 ,June 2016, CEC Bank signed with the Emopean fnvestment Fund (EIF) 

another Amendment to the Agreement to extend the "v:ithdrawal period of EIF 

funds and the Jeremie Credit Fadlity untiJ 30 September 2026; 

• On 30 September 2016, a new EIF Amendment was signed with a view to 

extending the lending peri.od (investment cTedits) by 31 December 2016. 

Total amoui1t pf the Agreement including the supplement: RON 150,536,800 (EIF RON 

75,268,400 and CEC Bank RON 75,268,400). 

The accomp:rnying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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27 BORROWINGS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 
(CONTINUED) 

Until 31 December 2020 the Bank used fifteen instalments of RON 74,967,768 and reimbursed an 

instalment of RON 60,724,885. 

The EIF does not charge interest on drawn amounts placed in credits and used by clients. Under 

ce1tain contract conditions the interest rate may be ROBOR for one month deposit plus the margin 

of 1.63% p.a. Under the terms of the conh·act, the interest rate on 31 December 2020 was 3.72%. 

Payment terms are based on customer reimbursements, with the deadline being 31 December 

2026. 

(ii) During 2013, CEC Bank signed a loan agreement with Lhe European Investment Bank (EIB) 

which status as at 31 December 2020 was as follows: 

EIB loan agreement signed on 26 June 2013 to finance facilities for small and medium-sized 

enterprises ("SMEs"), public sector entities and medium-capitalized enterprises. 

The loan had the interest rate EURIBOR 6 months plus 0-424 % per annum and a total of EUR 45 

million, from which the bank accessed the first tranche worth EUR 15 million. This tranche worth 

EUR 15 million was fully drawn on 18 December 2013. 

Payment deadlines are 18 June and 18 December of each year until final maturity on 18 December 

2020. The first reimbursement to EIB was on 18 December 2014, the second on 18 June 2015 and 

the third on 18 December 2015. 

On 18 December 2013 was signed the second tranche worth EUR 30 million, of which up to 

31 December 2014 has been used thus: 

• EUR 15 million with an interest rate EURJBOR 6 mouths plus 0 .507 % p.a., 
payment deadlines are April 3 and October 3 of each year until final maturity on 6 

April 2021; 

• EUR LS million with an interest rate EURIBOR 6 months plus 0.380 % p.a., 

payment deadlines are 14 August and 14 February of each year until final maturity 

on 16 August 2021. 

On 11 September 2014 the Bank signed a new loan agreement w:ith the EIB wo1th EUR 100 million, 

with fixed interest rate, of which up to 31 December 2018 EUR 100 million was drawn: 

• EUR 15 million with fixed interest rate of 0 .456 % p.a., payment deadlines are 

January 6 and July 6 of each year until final maturity on 6 July 2020; 

• EUR 15 million with fixed interest rate of 0.269 % p.a., payment deadlines are June 

18 and December 18 of each year tmtil final maturity on 19 December 2022. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of lhc.se financial statements. 
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27 BORROWINGS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 
(CONTINUED) 

• EUR 15 million with fixed interest rate of 0.282 % p.a., payment deadlines are June 

29 and December 29 of each year until final maturity on 29 June 2026. 

• EUR 15 million with fixed interest rate of 0 .089 % p.a., payment deadlines are 

March 30 a nd September 30 of each year until final maturity on 30 September 

2023. 

• EUR 20 million ·with fixed interest rate of 0.268 % p.a., payment deadlines are 27 

April and 27 October of each year until final maturity on 29 April 2024. 

• EUR 15 million with fixed interest rate of 0.349 % p.a., payment deadlines are 12 

April and 12 October of each year until final maturity on 12 October 2024. 

• EUR 5 million with fixed interest rate of 0.069 % p.a., payment deadlines are 19 

January and 19 July of each year until final maturity on 19 July 2023. 

At 27 October 2017 a new amendment to EIB Loan Agreement was signed with a value ofEUR 100 

million through which tl)e period of use of funds in loans was extended until 28 February 20 L8. On 

22 February 2018 was signed the additional no. 4, w l1icb extended the period of use and allocation 

until 31 August 2018. 

The loan represents a finance facility for small and medium enterprises ("SMEs"), public sector 

entities and companies with average market capitaliuition and has a component for the companies 
that encourage the youth. 

On 30 July 2020 the Bank signed a new loan agreement with the EIB worth EUR 50 million. The 

loun represents a finance facility for small and medium enterprises ("SM Es"), public sector entities 

and companies with average market capitalization. 

The loan was fully drawn on 30 September 2020 ""-ith fixed interest rate of 0.099 % p.a,, payment 

deadline being 30 September of each year until the final maturity on 30 September 2025. The first 
reimbursement will be made on 30 September 2021. 

As at 31 December 2020 for the loan agreement signed with the European Bank for Investments 

(EIB) the Bank pledged financial assets measured at amortized cost as collateral, with a fair value of 

RON 298,842,058 (31 December 2019: RON 422,113, 129). 

(iii) On 16 January 2014, CEC Bank signed a collaboration agreement with the Department for 
SMEs, Business and Tourism - DIMMAT within the Romanian-Swiss SME Program, 

amounting to CHF 19,890,000 in RON equivalent to a RON 3.6616 exchange rate for SME 

lending. The Program Fund is currently CHY 24,390,000, resulting from the initial fund 

supplemented ¼ith CHF 4,500,000 in RON equivalent al a rate of RON 4.2656. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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27 BORROWINGS FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL TNSTJTUTlONS 
(CONTINUED) 

So far, five additional acts have been signed to the collaboration agreement, the modifications 

aiming at both the flexibility of the credit granting conditions, the supplementation of the funds 

and the possibility of granting new investment credits from the amounts accumulated in the transit 

account until 31 December 2018, representing both the rates reimbursed by the beneficiaries of the 

loans granted by the Bank, as well as the decreases resulted during their performance. Thus, the 

granting of new credits will not exceed the amount of RON 42,857,142.86, out of which RON 

30,000,000 represents 70% of the approved credits and RON 12,857,142.86 (30%) represent the 

Bank's own contribution (Additional act no. 5 / 14.u.2018). 

The loan bas zero interest. Up to 31 December 2020 there were 40 draws w01th RON 

92,023,272.81. Payment terms are based on customer repayments, which also have an impact on 

final maturity. 

28 PROVISIONS 
31 December 2020 31 December 2019 

Provisions for litigations 

Provisions for internal and external frauds 

Provisions for loan commitments 

Total 

The movement in provisions for litigations are listed below: 

1,814 
2,157 

24,856 

..2.8.£27 

2,275 
2,480 

MA3.8 
~ 

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 

Balance at l January 
Additional provisions, including increases to 

existing provisions 

Unused amounts reversed dtll'ing periods 

Balance at 31 December 

2,275 

106 

The movement in provisions for internal and external frauds are listed below: 

1,742 

·u December 2020 31 December 2019 

Balance at 1 January 
Additional provisions, including increases to 

existing provisions 
Unused amounts reversed during periods 

Balance at 31 December 

14 

f332l 
2,1.S'Z 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statement~. 
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28 PROVISIONS (CONTINUED) 

The movement in provisions for loan commitments are listed below: 

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 

Balance at 1 January 
Additional provisions, including increases to 

existing provisions 

Unused amounts reversed during periods 

Other movements 

Balance at 31 December 

14,438 8,632 

38,568 33,314 

(28,212) (27,568) 
____Qg __QQ 

2-1-,856 M,_43.8 

Within provision for litigations are included the amounts provided for certain litigations in which 

the Bank is involved as defendant and litigations that could result in future cash outflows. Based on 

the status of the legal proceedings, it is estimated a cash outflow (provisions balance as at 31 

December 2020) of RON 1,814 thousand (3t.12.20J9: RON 2,275 thousand). The Bank's 

management considers Umt these legal cases will not have a significant negative impact over 

financial result and position of the Bank. See also Note 37 Contingent liabilities and commitments. 

29 DEFERRED TAX LlABlLJTIES 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2020 are attributable 10 lhe 
temporary differences detailed in the table below: 

Fair value of financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehensjve income- debt instruments 
Fair value of financial assets measmed at fair value 
U1rough other comprehe nsive income - investments in 
equity instruments 
Revaluation reserve for land and buildings 
Other tangible and intangible assets (i) 
Right-of-use assets 
Other items 
Total 
Deferred tax liability at 16 % 

31 December 2020 

Assets Liabilities Net 

l,921 
80,008 

81,929 

=13,1,Q,2 

(257,407) (257,407) 

(277,495) 
(6,529) 

(543,655) 
(8_6,985) 

(2,224) 

(277,495) 
(6,529) 

1,921 
80,008 

(461,126) 
(73,876) 

The occompan)ing notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statemenls. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(AH amounts are in RON thousands unless othe rwise s tated) 

29 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2019 are attrib utable to the 

tempornry differences detailed in the table below: 

Fair value of financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income - debt instruments 
Fair value of financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income - investments in 

equity instruments 

31 December 2019 

Assets Liabilities Net 

(35,779) (35,779) 

(21,274) (21,274) 

Revaluat ion reserve for land and buildings (285,685) (285,685) 
Other tangible and intangible assets (i) (61580) (6,580) 
Other items Q5.,.9.9.5 ___ Q.5..99.5 

Total ~ (3.49,318) (2.83,323) 
Deferred tax l iability at 16 % _1_Q,.5.SS (~) (.45.,3.12) 

(i) Deferred tax on other tangible and .intangible assets is due to the change in the usefuJ life of 
certa in classes of assets (Notes 19 and 20). 

Movements in deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2020 are as follows: 

Recognised 
Recognised in in_other 

LJanuarv profit or compre hensive 
2 0 20 loss account income 

Fina ncial assets measured at fair 
value through other 

(5,725) (35,460) 
comprehensive income - debt 

instruments 

F.inancial assets measured at fair 

value th rough other 

comprehensive income- (3,404) 3,048 
investments in equity 

instruments (*) 

Revaluation reserve for land and 
(45,710) 

buildings 
1,223 87 

Tangible and intangible assets -
(1,053) 8 

changes in accounting useful Life 

Right-of-use assets 307 
Other items 10.560 2,243 ---
Total (45,332) 3.7lu (32,,32,5) 

The accompanying notes from pnges 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial s tatements. 
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(41,185) 

(356) 

(44,400) 

(1,045) 

307 
12,803 

<z~.826) 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDE D 3 1 DECEMBER 2 020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

29 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

Movements in deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2019 are as follows: 

Recognised 
Recognised in in_other 

1Janu1u:y profit or :.omprehensive 31December 
2019 loss §Ccount income _gQ!9 

Financial assets measured a l fair 

value through other 
3,922 (9,647) (5,725) 

comprehensive income - debt 

instruments 

Financial assets measured at fair 
value th rough other 

comprehensive income - (2,0LS) (1,389)1• (3,404) 

investments in equity 

instruments(*) 

Revaluation reserve for land and 
(47,019) (45,710) 

buildings 
1,302 7 

Tangible and intangible assets -
(1,168) us (1,053) 

changes in accounting useful life 

Other items 8,269 2,291 10,560 
Total (38,oll) 3,ZQ§ (ll.Q29) (45,33~) 

(*) l n the amount of RON 1,389 thousand it is also induded the value of deferred tax related to 
Swift sh ares reclassified from investments lo cost in equity invesbnents valued at fa ir value through 
other comprehensive income as a result of the application of IFRS 9. 

30 LEASE LIABILITIES 

Lease liabilities 

Debts attached 

Total 

The analysis of rnatutity of lease liabilities 

Less than one month 

Between two and three months 
Between four and six months 

Between seven and nine months 
Between ten and twelve months 
Between thfrteen and sixty months 
Over sixty months 
Total 

31 December 20 20 

86,827 

4.2 

_86,874 

31 December 2020 
1,931 

3,835 
5,538 
5,273 

4,915 

53,465 

..ll.9J.2 
86_,87.4 

31 December 2 019 

74,171 

~2 

_74,.213 

31 December 2019 

1,829 

3,666 
5,000 

4,600 

4,117 

40,642 

l...4,359 
24,213 

The accompan)ing notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise s tated) 

31 OTHER LIABILITIES 

Social Contributions d ue to State Budget 
Taxes payable to State Budget 
Employee profit participat ion 
Other liabilities 
Provision for employee benefits upon the 
tem1 inat ion of the employment contract 
Provision for employee benefits in the fonn of 
compensatory absences 

TotaJ liabilities 

3 1 December 2020 

16,401 
6,219 

27,458 
986 

13,960 

~ 

31 December 2019 

17,349 
15,351 
34,121 

1,619 

73,,94l 

Social Contributions due to State Budget in balance represent contributions payable until the 25th 

of the next month . 

32 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABJLJTlES 

Deferred income from financial gua rantees issued 
Sundry creditors 
Other fi nancial liabilities 

Total financial liabilities 

Current 

33 SHARE CAPITAL 

31 December 2 020 

709 
22,543 

.!3.&Z1 

~ 

31 December 2019 
198 

16,825 

14&!4 

31,932 

3.!,<l3Z 

The share capital of the Bank was RON 2,499,746 thousand as at 31 Decemher 2020 
(31 December 2019: RON 2,499,746 thousand). The Bank is 100% state owned, Ministry of Public 
Finance being the sole shareholder. The issued share capital is comprised of RON 2,290,661 
thousand consisting of 22,906,616 registered shares with a value of RON 100/share. 

31 December 2 0 20 31 December 2019 

Share capital as per Trade Registry (i) 

lAS 29 inflation adjustment 

Total s hare capital 

2.2.99.661 

209.08.5 

2.~0.6.61 
209.085 

(i) The share capital was increased in 2019 with a total value of RON 940,000 thousand, 
representing the cash contribution of the sole shareholder, the Romanian State. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial htalemcnts. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(AH amounts ru·e in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

34 REVALUATION RESERVES 

The Bank last revaluation of the land and buildings was made at 31 December 2018 based on a 

service contract concluded with Veridio SRL (Veridio Trusted Advisory). 

The revaluation reseive increased at 31 December 2018 as per the land and buildings revaluation 

performed. 

Revaluation reserves are non-distributable until their realization through the tangible assets sale/ 

disposals referred to. 

Revaluation 
reserve gross Deferred tax Total net 

Balance as at 1 January 2019 522,838 (60,503) 462,335 
The revaluation reserve representing the 

surplus realized (1,698) 201 (1,497) 
Net result from revaluation (Note 19) 

Balance as at 31 December 2019 52L..14_Q (gQ,29_5) ~_5 

Balance as at 1 January 2020 521,140 (60,295) 460,845 
The revaluation reserve representing tbe 

surplus realized (2.558) 180 (2.378) 

87 87 Net result from revaluation (Note J9) 

Balance as at 31 December 2020 518.582 (6.0.02.8) 458.,_554 

35 OTHER RESERVES 

Statutory legal reserve (i) 

General banking risk reserve (ii) 

Retained earnings 

Total 

31 December 2020 

179,760 
65,840 

W.53 
24-8,.553 

31 December 2019 

158,924 
65,841 

Ul.14 

227,739 

(i) Stahttory legal reserves represent accumulated h·ansfers from retained earnings in 

accordance with relevant local regulations. These reserves cannot be distributed to 
shareholders. 

Local legis1ation requires 5% of the Bank's gross statutory profit to be transferred to a non­

distributab]e statutory legal reserve until this reserve reaches 20% of the Bank's statutory 

share capital. In 2020 the Bank transferred RON 20.836 thousand to statutory legal reserve 

(2019: RON 23,949 thousand). 

(ii) Reserves for general banking risks include amounts allocaled in accordance with the banking 

legislation and are separately disclosed as allocations of statutory profit. These reserves are 

not distributable. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financfal statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
Parties are considered to be related if one party bas the ability to control the other party or to 

exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. ln 

considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the 

relationship, not merely the legal form. 
The nature of the related party relationships for those related parties with whom the Bank entered 

into significant transactions or had significant balances outstanding at 31 December 2020 is 

detailed below. Transactions were entered into with related parties during the course of business at 

market rates. 

Transactions with shareholders 

The sole shareholder of the Bank is the Romanian Government, represented by the Ministry of 
Public Finance. A number of banking transactions were initiated, by which the Bank acquired 

coupon notes denominated in local cmrency issued by the Romanian Ministry of Public Finance. 

These transactions were carried out under commercial terms and conditions and at market rate. 
The transactions "vitb the Romanian Ministry of Public Finance are presented in the relevant notes 

to these financial statements (Notes 15 and 16). 

Transactions with management of the Bank 

The Bank performed a number of banking transactions with the management of the Bank in the 

normal course of business. 
Loans to employees and directors are granted in favourable conditions from market interest rates 

and arc provided in the ordinary course of business. At 31 December 2020, the balance of loans 

granted to employees and directors was RON 151,437 thousand (31 December 2019: RON 164,206 

thousand) and the balance of the deposits was RON 212,598 thousand (31 December 2019: RON 

185,968 thousand). 

Key management compensation is presented below: 
Accrued Accrued 

Expenses liability at Expenses liability at 
31 December 31 December 31December 31 December 

2020 2020 2019 2019 
Shol"l-term benefits: 
- Salaries 38,882 91 36,803 
- Short-term bonuses 2,346 2,012 

- Benefits in-kind 4 3 
Bonuses upon the termination of 
the employment contract 55.9 - -- -
Total ~w 91, ~ 

Accrued liabilities represent contributions payable until the 25tb of the next month. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 lo 135 form an integral part or lhcsc financial statements 
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CECBANKSA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(Al] amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwise stated) 

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 

Transactions with State-controlled entities 

The Bank performed a number of banking transactions with organisations or companies controlled 
by the Romanian State, in the ordinary course of business. The transactions with organisations or 
companies controlled by the Romanian State took place in the ordinary course of business. 

The Bank applied IAS 24 regarding the simplified treatment in Lhe presentation of related party 
transactions. 

At :11 December 2020, the outstanding balances with related parties were as follows: 

Closing balances Shareholder Key 
- Ministry management 
ofFinance er onnel 

Total Assets J,3-,310 -444 §..5.g;j 

Out of which: 

Financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehens ive income 11.062.866 
(contractual interest rate: 0-45%-6.75%) 
Investments in debt instruments al 

amortized cost (contractual interest rate: 1%- 2.267.578 
5.95%) 
Loans and advances - gross exposure 

6.545 (contractual interest rate: 0%-35%) 
Adjustments for expected credit loss (40) 

; 6.565 
Total liabilities 
Out of which: 6.565 
Deposits (contractual intel'est rate: 0%•13%) 6.545 

ContractuaJ commitments, financial 
guarantees and other commitments, 36.585 7:J.i) 
out of which: 

Issued 687 
Received 36.585 83 

Tho accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial i;talcmcnts. 
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Other 
related 
parties 

4--3-7_6~8-1-6 

4.425.398 

(48.522) 

3..4ll.055 

3-411.055 
4-425.398 

43-9i868 

401.258 
38.610 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2 020 

(All amounts are in RON thousands unless otherwis e sta ted) 

36 RElATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 

At 31 December 2019, the outstanding balances with related parties were as follows: 

Closing balances 

Total Assets 
Out of which: 

Financial assets measured at fair value 

through other comprehensive income 

(contrach1al interest rate: 1.25%-6.75%) 

Investment'> in debt instruments at 

amortized cost (contractual interest rate: 

2.25%-5.95%) 
Loans and advances - gross exposure 

(contractual interest rate: 2.84%-14.49%) 

Adjustments for expected creilit loss 

Total liabilities 
Oul of which: 

Deposits (contractual interest rate: 0%-13%) 

Contractual commitments, financ ia l 
guarantees and o ther commitments, 
out of which: 

Issued 

Received 

Shareholde r 

- Minis try 

of Finance 

-7.,_9.92484 

5,594,768 

Key 
management 

personn el 

7,225 

7,245 

(20) 

1-,_081 

7,081 

8.13 

725 
88 

Other 
re lated 
parties 

4cl.~ 

4,238,054 

(25,870) 

1,Q..~25 

1,687,225 

883,453 
8,198 

The key personnel of the Bank's management includes the following functions: Chief Balance ALM 
Officer-CBO, Chief Financial Officer - CFO, Chief Risk Officer - CRO, Director (Large customers 

Division, SME Division, Legal Division, Contentious Division, Compliance Division, internal Audit 

Division, Antifraud and Control Division, Cards Division, Operations Division, Remote Operations 

Division, Arrears and Asset Recovery Divisions, Credit Monitoring Division, Analysis of Individual 

Loans Division), Head of Independent Department (Evaluation (Independent) Department, 

Factoring (Independent) Department. Treasury (Independent) Department). 

The balance of the securities issued by the Ministry of Finance is presented in Note lS and 16 of the 

present financial statements. 

The accompan)ing notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 
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36 REI.ATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 

Tbe income and expense items with related parties for the period J anuary - December 2020 were 
as follows: 

Interest income 
Interest expense 
Net impairment loss on loans and 
advances to customers 
Commjssion income 

Shareholder 
Ministry 

of Finance 

374,361 

Key Other 
manageme nt re lated 

personnel parties 

269 177,636 
(38) (3,181) 

(22) (20,404) 

113 

The income and expense items with related parties for the period January - December 2019 were 
as follows: 

lnterest income 
Interest expense 
Net impairment loss on loans and 
advances lo customers 
Commission income 

Shareholder 
- Ministry 
of Finance 

203,667 

Key Other 
management re lated 

pe rsonnel parties 

297 194,340 
(JO) (2,661) 

(6) (16,323) 

210 

In respect of the transactions with Nl3R, the Bank had at the year end the following balances: 

Current accounts held at National Bank 
ofRomanfa (Note 12) 

31 December 2020 

3,930,328 

The income and expense items with Nl3R for the period were as follows: 

3 1 Decembe r 2019 

3,333,093 

·u December 2020 31 December 2019 

Interest expenses arising from REPO 
transactions with National Bank of Rmua.nia 
Interest income from Cltrrent accounts 
held at National Bank of Romania 
Interest expense from current accounts -
Lombard loan 

1,128 

6,714 

710 

The ~rccompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form :m integral part or these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 

(All amounts are in RON thou.sands unless otherwise stated) 

37 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 

Litigations 

As at 31 December 2020 the Bank is subject to several legal actions arisen in the normal course of 
business. The potential obligations existence regarding the litigations will be confirmed by future 
events that are not entfrely controlled by the Bank. From the same reason, the Bank cannot reliably 
estimale the time in which it can effectively record the losses. 

Contingent liabilities related to third 
party litigations (including customers) 
and to other operational risk events in 
compliance with IAS 37 

31 December 2020 

40,606 

·u December 2019 

21,990 

During 2020, the Bank increased by RON 18.6J5 thousand the balance of contingent liabilities due 
to the records of possible penalties stipulated in the third paity rental agreements. 

Taxation 

The Romanian taxation system is undergoing a process of consolidation and harmonization with 

the European Union legislation. Accordingly, there are still different interpretations of the fiscal 
legislation. In various circumstances, the tax authorities may have different approaches to ce1tain 

issues, and assess additional tax liabilities, together with late payment interest and penalties 

(currently, penalties determined by the duration of delay, plus 0.01% per day delay). In Romania, 

tax periods remain open for tax inspection for 5 years. The Bank's management considers that the 

taJ< Habilities included in these financiaJ statements are fairly stated. 

According to the Emergency Ordinance no. J14 regarding the establishment of measures in the field 

of public investments and fiscal-budgetary measures, the modification and completion of some 

normative acts and the extension of some deadlines, banking institutions are forced to pay a tax on 

financial assets starting with 2019. 

In 2020, tbe Bank did not pay the tax on financial assets in the light of Emergency Ordinance no. 

1/2020 on fiscal and budgeta1y measures and for amending and completing some normative acts, 

issued on 06.01.2020, which repealed Emergency Ordinance no. u 4/20J8. 

According to the rules on the methodology for caJculating the asset tax, according to chapter X of 

the Emergency Ordinance no. 19 / 29.3.2019, the tax on the Bank's financial assets is in amount of 

RON 9 ,921 thousa nd as al 31.12.2019. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 t() 135 fonn on integral part of these financial s tatements. 
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37 CONTINGENT LLABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Trans fer pricing 

Romanian tax legislation includes the ·'market value" principle according to which h·ansactions 

between related parties should be carried out at market value. Local taxpayers engaged in re1ated 

party transactions have to prepare and make available upon the written request of the Romanian 

Tax Authorities their transfer pricing documentation file. Failure to present the transfer pricing 

documentation file, or presenting an incomplete file, may lead to non-compliance penalties; 

additionally, notwithstanding the contents of the transfer pricing documentation, the tax 

authorities may interpret the facts and transactions differently from management and impose 

additional tax liabilities resulting from transfer price adjustments. The Company's management 

believes that the Company will not suffer losses in case of a fiscal inspection on the subject of 

h·ansfer prices. However , the impact of any challenge by the tax authorities cannot be reliably 

estimated. It may be significant to the :financial condition and/or the overall operations of the 
entity. 

Creclit re lated commitments 

The Bank made investments on the inter-bank ma rket and granted loans that were not fully drawn 

by the clients. The validity period of these commitments does not exceed the contractual maturity 

and their utilisation is restricted by contractual provisions. 

At any time the Bank has com mitments for loan granting. These commitments take the form of 

approved loans and credit line facilities. The amounts reflected in the commitments for loan 

gra nting are based on the assumption that all the amounts may be withdrawn without restrictions. 

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as 

required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit, which represent irrevocable assm-ances that the 

Ba nk will make payments in the event that a customer canno t meet its obligations to third parties, 

carry the same credH risk as loans. Documentary a nd commercial letters of credit, which are 

written underta kings by the Bank on behalf of a customer authorizing a third pa rty to draw drafts 

on the Bank up to a stipulated amount under specific tenns and condjtions, are coUateralized by the 

underlying shjpments of goods to which they relate and therefore car ry less risk than a direct 

borrowing. Commitments to extend credits represent unused portions of authorizations to extend 

cred it in the form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With respect t o credit risk on 

commitments to extend credit, the Bank is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the 
total unused commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused 

corn_mjtments since most commitme nts to extend credit are contingent upon customers 

maintaining specific credit standards. The Baok monitors the maturity of credit commitments 
because longer- term collllllltmcnts generally have a greater degree of credit risk than shatter-term 

commitments. 

The accompanying notes from pages 9 to 135 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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37 CONTINGENT LIABILinES AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Loan commitments and guarantee letters issued on behalf of clients in balance are the following: 

31 December 2020 31 December 2019 

Letters of guarantee issued for customers, out of which: 719,439 528,432 
Guarantees for auctions 904 458 
Good performance guarantees 

Guarantees for advances refunds 

Guarantees for payment insmance 

112,121 70,309 

388,559 296,88J 

99,682 70,467 

846 Guarantees for custom duties and other claims 

Other guarantees 118,173 89,473 
Undrawn credit commitments 

Total 
Provision for undrawn loan commitments and financial 
guarantees issued (Note 28) 

3,422,335 3,zz3,044 

~~ 4,30-1.A'.Z,6 

_ 24,8T56 14,4_~ 

Part of the issued to customers guarantees are covered by cash collateral deposits in amount of 

RON 12,603 thousand (2019: RON 7,430 thousand). 

38 EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 

There were no significant events subsequent to the date of the financial statements that require 

adjustment of or disclosure in the financial statements. 

Bogdan Constantin Nea 1 

General Managcr-Pres· / 

( 

,Stefan Silviu Fata 
Director, Accounting Division 

The accompan)fog notes from pages 9 to 135 form an mlcgral part of these financial statement.~. 

Page 135 of 135 
Thi$ version of Lhc financial statements is a free translation from Lhe original, which was prepared in Romanian. All possible 
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accw·atc representation of the original. However, in all matters of 
interpretation of information, views or opinions, Lhe original language ver~ion of our report takes precedence over this 
translation. 




